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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the
“Directors”) of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would
like to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2019 is an unusual year due to the tightening of Sino-US trade
war, the social events in Hong Kong and the overall slowdown
of the economy in the PRC as well as the rest of the world.
The business environment is especially challenging for our loan
referral and financial guarantee services as our customers are
unavoidably affected by the adverse situation. However, we
continued to work closely as a team and with our customers in
order to mitigate the risk and strive to identify better opportunity
to improve our operations.

PROSPECT

Looking forward to 2020, in view of the complicated and
ever-changing global economic and trading situation, there
are both challenges from global economic slowdown and
opportunities from regional development. However, with the
outbreak of the COVID-19, we are unable to ascertain the impact
of the virus on the global economy. Nevertheless, the Group
will continue to strengthen the supply-chain financing services
and financial guarantee operations in the PRC with the focus on
serving the small to micro customers which is in line with the
government policy.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our management team and staff for their
commitment and contribution to the Group. | would also like to
thank our shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
business partners, customers and professional parties for their
continued support.

Liu Kequan
Chairman
Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT E CIN=PNE- B

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial ~ AEBEFERFREZR TERAWERE-
property development, general trading of consumable goods, HERHN—MRE S BTHEL RBREL &
securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management FEE&EMH&Q%%(@%E%@Q CEE
and loan financing operation includes loan financing, financial — #E®RR% - EXEN LERRE) °

guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy services.

AEBBE_T-AF+-_A=t—HLLHF
E(ZF—AMEF)NRARDBEEHRN

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (“FY2019") are stated in the table below:

%
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Revenue from: REUATEREBEZRA:
Industrial property development TERAMEERRE 13,444 13,342
General trading —REZ 66,002 60,043
Securities brokerage et 405 710
Insurance brokerage R s 8,596 8,007
Asset management EEER 138 471
Loan financing EXRmE 62,420 70,022
151,005 152,595
Segment (loss) profit from: REUATREZDH (EE)®EF:
Industrial property development TERAYMEERRE (5,949) (6,925)
General trading —REZ 2,872 4,255
Securities brokerage BHLELL (2,470) (2,287)
Insurance brokerage R4 267 (435)
Asset management BEEER (2,983) (5,405)
Loan financing ERmE (82,800) 54,605
(91,063) 43,808
APEESREZEREBRAR | —T—NFFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Industrial Property Development

The revenue from industrial property development segment
mainly represented the warehouse storage income generated
from the warehouse operation. The warehouse of the Group
is located in Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"). It is divided into 6 units and the total areas
is approximately 48,600 square meters. Revenue from the
warehouse operation recorded an increase of HK$102,000 to
HK$13,444,000 for FY2019 (for the year ended 31 December
2018 ("FY2018"): HK$13,342,000) and a segment loss
of HK$5,949,000 has resulted (FY2018: segment loss of
HK$6,925,000). The average occupancy rate for FY2019 was
over 84% and primarily used as storage of raw materials and
textile products. Although the Sino-US trade war in 2019 has
brought negative effect on the general trading and exporting
business in China, as the customers of the Group’s warehousing
operation mainly focus on local trading business, there is no
material effect on the Group’s income generated from the
warehouse operation. As the outbreak of a respiratory disease
caused by a novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") in the PRC, our
warehouse operation has been reduced as instructed by the local
government after the Chinese New Year holiday. Due to rigorous
quarantined policy, the process of renewal of the warehouse
rental was suspended. Nonetheless, when COVID-19 in the PRC
is under control, the management will continue to identify new
customers as tenant of our warehouse operation.

General Trading

The Group continues to co-operate with a major distribution
agent of Moutai, a reputable distilled Chinese liquor brand,
to sell Moutai and other popular Chinese liquors in 2019.
The revenue generated from the liquors trading for FY2019
amounted to HK$66,002,000 (FY2018: HK$60,043,000),
resulting in segment profit of HK$2,872,000 (FY2018: segment
profit of HK$4,255,000).

The revenue increased but the segment profit decreased because
of the impairment loss on other deposits and the decrease
in other investment income in trading segment in 2019. The
domestics demand for Chinese liquors was further discouraged
by the outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC before the Chinese New
Year in February 2020. We anticipated that the market demand
for Chinese liquors will recover when COVID-19 is under control.
Meanwhile, we continue to negotiate with our supplier to
secure a stable supply in the future. The Group will continue the
Chinese liquors trading business and further develop the sales
network to increase its volume and profitability gradually.

TERAMERRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities Brokerage

The Group's securities brokerage services in Hong Kong comprises
securities brokerage, securities trading and margin financing.
Revenue from the segment for FY2019 was HK$405,000 (FY2018:
HK$710,000) and resulted in segment loss of HK$2,470,000
(FY2018: segment loss of HK$2,287,000). Investor confidence
is affected by uncertainties in the market including the Sino-US
trade war as well as continuous depreciation of Renminbi
("RMB") against United States Dollar ("USD") in 2019. Our
operation faces keen competition with low profit margin on
regular securities trading business. In order to tackles with the
challenges, we confirmed to implement cost saving measures to
reduce the cost of operation. At the same time, we are looking
into new products including but not limited to IPO placement
and underwriting, custodian services for stock loan, odd lot
trading, fixed income and structured products trading in order to
broaden our products mix.

Insurance Brokerage

During the year, we continue to provide tailor-made financial
solutions and independent advisory services in connection with
insurance products to our client and operate long term (including
linked long term) insurance and general insurance business plus
Mandatory Provident Fund products.

Revenue from the segment for FY2019 was HK$8,596,000
(FY2018: HK$8,007,000) and resulted a segment profit of
HK$267,000 (FY2018: segment loss of HK$435,000) as a result
of our stringent measures on costs control improved the profit
margin. However, the insurance brokerage business is still facing
challenge of keen competition in the market. According to the
Insurance Authority of Hong Kong, the number of authorized
insurance brokers in Hong Kong was increased from 798 as
at 31 March 2019 to 824 as at 31 December 2019. Looking
forward, the whole world will be pre-occupied with COVID-19
and its impact on the already very fragile global economy in the
first half of 2020. The travel restriction to contain the scale of
COVID-19 has significantly decrease new customers coming from
the PRC to Hong Kong to purchase insurance policies. Despite
the challenges ahead, the Group will continue to strengthen the
existing sales team and to develop different clientele and foster
close relationship with insurance companies and offer diversified
products to our customers in order to stay competitive in the
market until COVID-19 is under control.

BEEEN WK DT

REBEEBECEFREREREBETES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Asset Management

Our asset management segment manages a hedge fund
established in the Cayman Islands, “Spruce Light Absolute Return
Fund” (the “Fund”). The Fund is investing primarily in equity and
equity related instruments of companies listed in Hong Kong and
the PRC and its net value of assets under management as at 31
December 2019 was approximately US$5.5 million. Revenue from
the segment for FY2019 was HK$138,000 (FY2018: HK$471,000)
and resulted in segment loss of HK$2,983,000 (FY2018: segment
loss of HK$5,405,000). Due to some redemption made by certain
fund investors during the year, the size of the Fund decreased
by approximately 43% in 2019. Therefore, the management fee
income for the asset management decreased significantly.

In 2019, the overall macro-economy of the PRC has been
gradually picking up as a result of the reduction in government
service charge, corporate tax and the interest rate, although the
continuous depreciation of RMB against USD. Despite there is
still uncertainty on future development in Sino-US trade war,
the tensions is expected to ease after the phase-one trade
deal was signed by the PRC and the US. The PRC has achieved
an economic growth rate of 6.1% in 2019, and its economic
structure has continued to improve. In term of the securities
market in the PRC, as the major onshore and offshore PRC
stock indexes rose, the general performance of the fund under
management of asset management team recorded positive
returns.

Amid the great uncertainty in the global economy in 2020,
development landscape restructuring may arise in various
economies due to the challenges faced by their public health
system during COVID-19. Opportunities and risks coexist in
the PRC. On one hand, the domestic economy in the PRC is
expected to improve attributable to its huge domestic demand,
favourable government policies and relatively lower reliance on
other countries. As such, in the long run, companies in the PRC
with excellent management and competitive landscape could
still achieve outstanding performance growth. On the other
hand, the companies, which fail to keep up with the market
development, will be less competitive and unable to tackle with
the continuing challenges. The asset management business
segment of the Company will continue to explore opportunities
and innovated investment strategies for the stable growth in
both scale and performance.

EEER

BMMEEEEI S EERNFAEHESKILA
YR E & [Spruce Light @ O R E S| ([E
) HEFERENREBRFELETAA
ZRERREZEHBIARERN -_ZE—NF
T A=1+T—HMEBEEEEFEAA5,500,000
XL - RN Fa 5 #BUA &138,000
B (ZZE— N\BFF:471,0008 7T) » 7 30 &
18/52,983,0008 T (ZZE— N\ &F : o2 E1E
5,405,000/ ) c RN FARAE TELIKEEE
HHER — T - NFESHRERDL43% -
I EEEEMNEEBWABEZRE-

“E-NF BEARBAEITIHERE B
BFSBORT RS MM SHE NG P&
RERERERBER P XE BRI
- BERREEHEZTXBREFS HERESH
EMBRNE 2FEERREE61% KH
EETSENE - AP EEFTSETE T8
BRINNBERERBOE LR EEEEER
EENESHEBERRRG LRS-

—EEF HEAKLERRALERNITEE
HoEAREEARGERER TR T RRSH
] 1M 0 7 AY DK 8K 7] gk 5| AE T [R) AC 5 28~ A 38
REBEF M N ESKEEK - BUFBUR
BE HEMABRKGEES TS SHE &
HBEFERA RRE#BIW T -Eitt - &5
RE BEEEFEEABRFEBNTEHLE T
BERESEENEERER -Z—FHHE EE8E
MBERFEEN AR BFNREE BEE
HIFBENE - AR EET B RRGE
ERNEB LA IR E R  EERENMES
BB o

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loan Financing

Our loan financing services comprise financing guarantee
services, loan financing, financing consultancy and loan referral
services in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Revenue from the segment for FY2019 was HK$62,420,000
(FY2018: HK$70,022,000) and resulted in segment loss of
HK$82,800,000 (FY2018: segment profit of HK$54,605,000).
The decrease in segment revenue was mainly due to less
loan referral and financial consultancy business in the PRC
and partially offset by more financial guarantee business. The
segment loss was mainly due to the increase in the provision
against the outstanding guarantee issued and impairment loss on
loans and interest receivable.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group balance of the loans
and interest receivables was approximately HK$152,449,000
(FY2018: HK$113,952,000), interest rate of the loans ranged
from 5% to 20.4% (FY2018: 6% to 30%) per annum and the
total guarantee issued by our financing guarantee operation
was RMB875,709,000 (approximately HK$979,568,000) (2018:
RMB492,300,000 (approximately HK$560,434,000)).

Loan Financing Business in Hong Kong

During the year, Hong Kong property market has undergone
a modest correction and the Sino-US trade war has adversely
affected Hong Kong’s economy growth. Our loan financing
operations in Hong Kong is mainly on the provision of mortgage
loan. To remain competitive while mitigating the overall credit
risk, we adopted a stringent credit approval policy and worked
closely with external property valuation professionals in valuing
the subject property to ensure the loan to value ratio of the
relevant properties are maintained at a reasonable level. In
addition, we installed tools to monitor the trend in the property
market, which will provide alert to our credit team in case of
significant fluctuation or irregularity is noted in the mortgage
under supervision. Credit assessment includes full review of credit
history and personal TransUnion credit report of the potential
customers is performed. We will continue to implement a prudent
strategy with stringent internal loan management system,
including credit assessment and risk management and cooperate
closely with external professionals for property valuation, credit
check and legal counsel and maintain the Group’s focus on high
net worth customers through our partnership with business
partners such as loan referral agents.

BEEEN WK DT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Loan Financing Business in the PRC

In order to achieve the target of “supporting small and micro
enterprises (“SMEs”) and agriculture-related entities”, the
State Council published the Guideline Opinions Concerning
Effective Implementation of Government-backed Financing
Guarantee Funds to Support the Development of SMEs and
“Agriculture, Rural Areas and Farmers” ( B85 B 203 & B T
MREERESERVEIRIMIGEN" =R ERNIE
EE H))in 2019, which set out the business scope and size
of government-backed financing guarantee and re-guarantee
companies and instructed them to focus on the principal
financing guarantee operations that facilitate the development
of SMEs and agriculture-related entities. In October 2019,
Supplementary Regulations on Supervision and Administration
of Financing Guarantee Companies ( (B & ER A G EEBE E1E
I E) ) (the ” Supplementary Regulations”) were jointly
issued by the members of the Inter-ministerial Joint Council for
Regulation of Financing Guarantee Business ( & & 14 & (R 2 1%
ECE IR E 25 ) In line with existing laws and regulations,
the Supplementary Regulations stipulate that the principle
regulatory obligations shall be performed by the Supervision and
Administration Departments of financing guarantee companies,
and the regulatory scope will be extended to cover institutes such
as housing purchase guarantee companies and credit promotion
companies which have not obtained the business license of
financing guarantee business but actually engage in financing
guarantee business. By imposing supervision on credit promotion
companies, the issuance of Supplementary Regulations will
enable to further regulate the financing guarantee operations
and facilitate the steady development of financing guarantee
industry.

Looking forward in 2020, our financing guarantee services and
financing consultancy business in PRC will focus on small to
micro enterprise financing and personal consumer loan services.
We will develop our business and deepen our relationship with
clients by providing tailored financial products. We will take
various measures to further optimize the organizational structure,
improve our market knowledge and risk control, that to improve
customer satisfaction to support the implementation of new
projects and ensure compliance and stable operations.

RPBENERMERHK

—ET-NF RUEED XIXRINBR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Non-fulfiliment of profit guarantee of Sino Wealth Group

Pursuant to the agreements in relation to the acquisition of Sino
Wealth Investment Co., Limited (“Sino Wealth"”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Sino Wealth Group”), New Wealth Investment
Co., Limited (“Sino Wealth Vendor”) had guaranteed that the
audited net profit after tax of It R LR ITREERBER A
Alfor FY2019 would be not less than RMB30 million. If the Sino
Wealth Group recorded an actual loss for FY2019, the amount
of actual profit for the calculation of compensation for the
non-fulfilment of profit guarantee shall be deemed as zero.

Due to the adverse situation in the financial sector in the PRC,
which has tightened the funding source, the operation of the
provision of financing guarantee and the consultancy services
of Sino Wealth Group had encountered severe challenges,
particularly in souring funds and generating revenue. In addition,
the Sino Wealth Group recognized a provision for financial
guarantee of approximately HK$84,120,000 for FY2019. As
a result, Sino Wealth Group failed to meet the said profit
guarantees.

After deducting the third installment of the consideration in the
sum of HK$6 million to be paid by the Group to Sino Wealth
Vendor, a cash compensation in the sum of approximately
HK$33.9 million (being 1.2 times of the profit guarantee of
RMB30 million) payable by Sino Wealth Vendor to the Company.

The Group has entered into negotiation with the Sino
Wealth Vendor in respect of the compensation in light of the
non-fulfilment of the profit guarantee. The Group will make
further announcements in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR DN

Litigation
PRC

() The Company has appointed PRC legal advisers and the

applications for arbitration in enforcing the variable interest
entity contracts (the “VIE Contracts”) have been filed
and accepted by /R # % & & (Shanghai Arbitration
Commission, “SAC”) in August 2016 (the “Arbitration”).
Details of the applications are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 August 2016. On 22 February
2017, our PRC legal advisers received three decisions issued
by the SAC to suspend the Arbitration as (i) t/@#HT & HE
PR 2 =] (Shanghai Xinsheng Pawnshop Limited, “Xinsheng”),
EERERE (£B)ER AR (Shanghai Kuailu Investment
Group Company Limited, “Shanghai Kuailu”) and _E/&# R
# & R A &) (Shanghai Zhongyuan Pawnshop Company
Limited, “Zhongyuan”) are involved in a criminal investigation
conducted by the public security authority of Shanghai,
the PRC; and (ii) the shares of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
were frozen by such public security authority. Hence, the
Arbitration has been suspended since 21 February 2017.

In respect of the case against Shanghai Kuailu, our PRC
legal advisers understood from SAC that SAC received
a court decision in respect of the criminal case against
Shanghai Kuailu, its chairman and the certain parties,
pursuant to which they are convicted of fraud, in late 2019.
Subsequently, SAC provided our PRC legal advisers copies
of the court decisions. As at the date of this report, SAC
has yet to provide to our PRC legal advisers any direction
on the resumption of the Arbitration. In respect of the case
against Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, our PRC legal advisers
has not received any oral or written updates from SAC on
the Arbitration nor the criminal investigation. The PRC legal
advisers will closely monitor the latest development of the
cases and further announcement will be made if there is any
updates on the Arbitration.

The financial impacts of the de-consolidation resulting
from the incident has been fully reflected in the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 and the suspension of the
Arbitration is not expected to create any adverse impact on
the Group as whole.

()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(I A PRC subsidiary of the Company, which primarily engages
in the financing guarantee business, has commenced a
proceeding against a P2P platform in Beijing, the PRC in
respect of the guarantee deposit paid to and withheld by
the P2P platform in the course of our financial guarantee
business. In 2019, our PRC subsidiary appealed against the
first instance decision in favour of the P2P platform that the
P2P platform has a right to withhold the guarantee deposit
paid by our PRC subsidiary for securing the loan advanced
to the clients. In December 2019, the appeal court dismissed
the appeal of our PRC subsidiary. The financial impacts of
the case has been fully reflected in the financial year ended
31 December 2019 and is not expected to create any adverse
impact on the Group as whole.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses mainly consist of operating expenses of
industrial property development, general trading, loan financing,
securities brokerage and insurance brokerage. Administrative
expenses include the office utilities and administration, legal
and professional fee, employee benefit expenses, depreciation
of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment and
amortization. Administrative and other operating expenses
amounted to approximately HK$141,642,000 during FY2019,
which is increased by HK$25,806,000 as compared to
HK$115,836,000 during FY2018. The increase mainly resulted
from the increase in legal and professional expenses in relation
to the Company’s major transaction during FY2019 and overall
expenses due to the growth in financial guarantee operation of
the Group. The management will continue to act on its stringent
measures on costs control to maintain the administrative and
other expenses at a reasonable level.

Finance Costs

Finance costs have decreased from approximately HK$11,560,000
during FY2018 to approximately HK$8,232,000 during FY2019.
The decrease in the finance costs was caused by repayment of
bank and other loans during the year and decrease in imputed
interest on deferred consideration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts the policy of prudence in managing its
working capital. The operation of the Group was primarily
financed by externally generated cash flow and external
financing. As at 31 December 2019, the shareholders’ fund and
net current assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$451,737,000 (2018: HK$664,625,000) and HK$300,624,000
(2018: HK$401,468,000) respectively. On the same date, the
Group's bank balances and cash amounted to HK$205,530,000
(2018: HK$269,578,000) which were principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and the current ratio was 2.16
(2018: 3.49). The main reasons for the decrease in bank balances
were the settlement of consideration payable and increase in
loans receivable during FY2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total borrowings were
denominated in RMB at the fixed rate of 6.37% amounted
to approximately HK$78,302,000 (2018: HK$88,226,000) of
which approximately HK$11,186,000 is repayable within 1 year,
approximately HK$11,186,000 is repayable between 1 to 2 years,
approximately HK$44,744,000 is repayable between 2 to 5 years
and approximately HK$11,186,000 is repayable over 5 years. The
gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total borrowings over
net assets, was 17.3% as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 13.3%).
The decrease in borrowings because we made RMB7,500,000
repayment during FY2019.

There was no capital commitment in respect of the acquisition
and construction of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2019 (2018: nil).

The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and expenses are
mainly in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Therefore, the Group did
not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment Loss on Goodwill

The impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$111,257,000 (the “Impairment”) recorded for FY2019 in
respect of the three cash generating units (“CGU"), namely the
financing referral CGU, the financial guarantee CGU and the
assets management CGU of the Group, which provides financial
consultancy and loan referral services and asset management
operation (the “Impaired Operations”). The Impaired Operations
in PRC and Hong Kong were acquired by the Group in 2016
and 2017 with the objective to expand into the PRC's financial
services sector and asset management operation in Hong Kong.
However, due to the Sino-US trade war in 2019 which lead to
the business slowdown in PRC and Hong Kong, the Impaired
Operations were unable to achieve the growth rate forecast for
the year. Therefore, the valuation conducted by our external
independent valuer has adjusted and resulted in the impairment
loss on the goodwill for those Impaired Operations.

Fund Investments

Our investment portfolio is classified according to HKFRS 9. The
carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were approximately HK$6,369,000 and
HK$30,260,000 respectively as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$15,872,000 and HK$77,695,000). The investment portfolio
includes; (i) unlisted investment funds, which primarily invested
in listed equity in the PRC and Hong Kong, (ii) listed equity in the
PRC and Hong Kong, and (iii) unlisted investment fund, which
primarily represent an investment in 20% equity interest in the
registered capital of an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC
which is engaged in property development project in the PRC.

Contingent Liabilities

There are no significant contingent liabilities noted as at 31
December 2019 except for the guarantees issued in note 54 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Capital Structure

In December 2018, 9,000,000 share options were exercised at an
exercise price of HK$0.187 per share. Such shares were allotted
and issued in January 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M}EJE‘“-J' &I’ *ﬁ'

Charges on Assets

Our warehouse located in Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
with the following carrying amounts have been pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

BEHREE

RPN EETHREARNEBEERALE
B —RRTRAMIELER SEEEE
m -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=t—BLEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —N\F

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Property, plant and equipment Y% BB KRR 82,650 92,416
Prepaid lease payments A E KA - 23,021
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands EREEE-—HELH 21,914 S
104,564 115,437

Save for the above, the Group does not charge other assets to
secure its borrowings.

Foreign currency exposure

As confirmed by the Directors, the Group's present operations
are mainly carried out in the PRC and HK, and all of the Group's
receipts and payments in relation to the operations are basically
denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risks. The management will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange exposure and take appropriate measures if
needed.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has 174 employees (31
December 2018: 138 employees). Remuneration is determined by
reference to their respective qualifications and experiences and
according to the prevailing industry practice. In addition to salary
payments, our staff benefits include contribution of mandatory
provident fund, a discretionary bonus program and a share
option scheme. As required by the regulations in the PRC, the
Group makes contributions to mandatory social security funds
for the benefit of the Group’s employees in the PRC, including
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
personal injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2020 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 18 June
2020. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 15 June 2020 to Thursday, 18 June 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 12 June 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director (the "ED"), chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEO") and the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) on 30
June 2016. Mr. Liu ceased to act as the CEO on 8 June 2018 and
remains as the Chairman and continue to serve as an ED. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu
was previously the chief executive officer of 2 ¥ T % & %
5 B BR 2 &) (Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate
specialising in investment, real estate development, tourism
development and bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry
and has extensive management experience. He graduated from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a major in Applied Chemistry
in July 1994. Mr. Liu also obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Mr. Yang Dayong, aged 44, was appointed as an ED and CEO
on 8 June 2018. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Yang is the founder of 1t R Z Kt 17 @b & R
AR~ 7] (Beijing Anjia Shihang Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.).
He has more than 20 years of experience in the field of fintech
investment, risk management and merger and acquisition.
Mr. Yang graduated from Peking University with a degree in
Economics. He received a Master’'s degree in Economics from
Tsinghua University and a Doctoral degree in Economics from
Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated
as an ED on 5 July 2016. Mr. Zhang is currently the managing
director of Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited which was
previously owned by a Hong Kong listed company. He has over
20 years of experience in investment, corporate management
and international trade industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from Jilin
University of Technology (now known as Jilin University) with a
major in Metallic Materials Engineering.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He holds a Master’s
degree in Accounting from Curtin University of Technology (now
known as Curtin University).

Dr. Lyu Ziang, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 July 2016. He is currently the
deputy technical head of R&D division of /BB EBRBEKE 5
A BR A &) (Shanghai Kuajingtong International Trade Co., Ltd.).
Dr. Lyu has years of experience in identification and control
of trade and financial risks. He worked at managerial level of
certain technology companies. Dr. Lyu graduated from Tsinghua
University with a degree in Thermo-Dynamic Engineering and
Control in July 1994 and also received a Master’s degree in
Computer Software and Theory as well as a Doctoral degree
in Computer Technology Application from Beijing Jiaotong
University in May 2003 and July 2012 respectively.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of JRIIBALREME FBR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He
graduated from BRPE& FHMEFIZET (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes that an increasing diversity at the Board
level is inductive to the attainment of the Company's strategic
objectives and the Company’s sustainable development. All
Directors share their competence to bring sustainable growth
to the Company. Recognizing diversity is a wider issue than
just gender diversity, the Board aims to achieve diversity on the
Board in other respects including age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicities, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. In identifying suitable candidates for
appointments to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
take into consideration the Company’s business models and
specific needs. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity criteria and perspectives. The Nomination Committee
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge of the Board and the diversity representation of the
Board, how the Board works together as a unit, and other factors
relevant to its effectiveness.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, being
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman), Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive
Officer) and Mr. Zhang Peidong, and three independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

EEERRE

£5E

EEeRm-UNTERIRREE (XFE) -
BARBRE (TTHRAE) RERMREL AR

“UBIHFRTEFRERLEE aFREL
RERF LA -

10 board meetings and 1 general meeting were held during the ~F R ERIT+AXEFTCHL —AREKX
year. The individual attendance record is as follows: g 1.)”3|JWA BRI T
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to
Directors attend attend
BHE BHE
REREE AERLE
E=g IR R
BEx BEXE RERE
Executive Directors: BITESE
Mr. Liu Kequan £ e 10/10 11
Mr. Yang Dayong BRBRE 10/10 0/1
Mr. Zhang Peidong oM R S A 10/10 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: HUIHNTESE
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor AR EE 10/10 171
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHREL 10/10 1/1
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFERE 10/10 11

Due to other business engagement, one of the Directors was
unable to attend the general meeting held during the year.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management
is delegated to the three executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan,
Mr. Yang Dayong and Mr. Zhang Peidong.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors are given timely access to relevant information prior
to each board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings. At the
same time, Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials to allow them to make informed decisions
on matters arising from board meetings.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber with academic and professional qualifications in
accounting, financial, management and various business fields
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with the prevailing Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Director is encouraged to
attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
listed company director or further enhancement of professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online
aids or reading relevant materials. The company secretary
of the Company continuously updates all Directors on the
latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. During the year under
review, the current Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan, Mr. Yang
Dayong, Mr. Zhang Peidong, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training courses
or by reading materials.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and monitor the financial reporting and
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman),
Dr. Lyu Ziang and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management and the auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
the auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2019.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the related results announcement and auditor’s report, and made

EEERRE

BwZERES
FEGEAUEREAE ((BREAE])
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recommendation to the Board that the same be approved. ZENMHABRER R
Two Audit Committee meetings were convened during the year. F R ZHAFAMAEZZEe 2 -ERIKE
The individual attendance records are as follows: ) u”jfﬁ?nﬂﬁiZZDT

Number of
Directors attendance
= R &
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) BAERELEE (F/F) 2/2
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHELT 2/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BRFEE 2/2
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to advise
and recommend the Board on the remuneration policy and
framework of the Company’s Directors and senior management,
as well as review and determine the remuneration of individual
executive Directors and senior management with reference to
the Company’s objectives from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) and Mr. Kwan Kei
Chor and one executive Director, namely, Mr. Zhang Peidong.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy and framework of
the Company’s Directors and senior management, assessed
the performance of executive Directors and determined the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the Company’s objectives.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was convened during the
year. The individual attendance records are as follows:

EEgCERUFMEZEe ([FMEEe]) -
I 38 B8 b <7 Al RY 5T RIS E & m B £
E-FMEE SR ERARAEETRSRER
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Il

REBFA FHEZEQCERIARAERTR
BREEENFMBRRMAE FERTES
MRE W2 ERARFNEREEBAIANTE
ENSRERENTMHEE-

R BB AHWEERTHE-EARE
AR

Number of
Directors attendance
= IR B
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) aFRiEL (EE) 1/1

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BER A
Mr. Zhang Peidong ROMR L&

11
11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties
of the Nomination Committee are (a) to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, with due regard to the diversity of the Board;
(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) to assess the independence of INEDs and to review the
INEDs" annual confirmation on their independence; (d) to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and (e) before appointments are made by the Board,
to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation to prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required for a particular
appointment. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Lyu Ziang
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the size, structure, composition as well as diversity
of the Board, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and considered the re-election of the
Directors. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed the
board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered
that the Group has achieved the objectives of the board diversity
policy during the year under review.
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The Nomination Committee follows its established nomination
policy in the selection of candidates for director appointments.
The Bye-Laws of the Company set out the process for the
appointment of Board members. In the event that the vacancy
to be filled is a casual vacancy, or an additional Director is to be
appointed, the Board will make the appointment of the Director
in accordance with the Bye-laws. In the event that the vacancy
has arisen as a result of normal retirement or rotation, the Board
shall present the candidates to the shareholders for election in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The Board shall avail sufficient
information to enable the shareholders to make an informed
choice. When a vacancy arises on the Board (through resignation,
rotation etc) or in the event that an additional Director is to
be appointed, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
Board’s needs in terms of skills, competencies and other diversity
considerations with due regard to any on-going major projects
and develop a profile of the required candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall invite Board members to submit to it profiles of
interested potential Board members. The Nomination Committee
shall consider the profiles received and select candidates
whom it shall interview to assess suitability for the position. In
selecting the potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
shall consider, in addition to the requirements in the Bye-Laws
of the Company, the mandatory regulatory requirements. The
candidate is required to expressly disclose the nature and extent
of other activities or appointments which may give rise to conflict
of interests, and hence his/her independence. The Nomination
Committee shall make its recommendation on the candidate to
the Board, and ultimately to the shareholders if required.

The Company values, promotes, and observes the Board diversity
policy in the composition of its Board of Directors. The Company
implements the policy as a part of the recruitment and selection
process in appointment of a member of the Board. The Company
is initiating the use of a matrix to facilitate a review of the skills,
competencies, experience and other attributes of the Board
members to establish a baseline. Selection of a candidate is
generally made based on a range of diversity objectives against
the baseline in the Board diversity policy. Particular regard will
be paid to the benefits of balance of skills, knowledge and
experience, and perspective differentiations introduced to
the Board from the candidates, including varied educational
background, and extensive expertise, knowledge and experience
in technology, investment, trade and financial risks identification
and control, international trade, corporate management to
professional qualification in accounting and other professional
fields.
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EEERRE

One Nomination Committee meeting was convened during the FR  BARA—KXIERLZEC & -[RIKE
year. The individual attendance records are as follows: W ER SR T
Number of
Directors attendance
B R E
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman) BlmRESE (F/E) 1
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHEL 1/1
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BRFRAE 11
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS PEERBAE
The Board as a whole performs the corporate governance duties EEE@EBEEITLEEARE EPaHE:
which include:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and (i) HIEMBFTARFTNDEEABRRNLER
practice on corporate governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous (i) BT MNEREE NS REEBNEIILEF
professional development of Directors and senior BEERRE:
management;
(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and (i) 5 M ERARREBTEAEREERT
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory FEEBER K ER
requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct ~ (iv) I E BT MNEREANEEREETHNIR
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and STHEAIRERFM(BE) K
Directors; and
(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG code and  (v) B AR RIESTEESTAMBRER L E
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. B8 #Eilﬁﬁﬁjﬁif'?g °

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,300,000 and HK$1,140,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary of the Company is
Ms. Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Our published documents
together with the latest corporate information and news are also
made available on the website of the Company. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from Shareholders at its
annual general meeting.

Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote in
Shareholder’s meetings. According to Bye-law 57 of the bye-laws
of the Company, any 2 or more Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of a written requisition in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board. Such requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at Company’s head office.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the bye-laws of the Company, no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
by some Shareholders (not being the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there had not
been any changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
The Company's bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders” interests and the
Company’s assets and reviewing their effectiveness. Review of
the Group's internal controls include major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to ensure their effectiveness include
providing a clear policies and procedure, as well as a reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across
business operations.

The Group's risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e I|dentification of significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
e Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

Risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives are
identified, evaluated and prioritized by department managers.
Management will assess the nature and impact of those risks, risk
register are then established. The Audit Committee is responsible
to manage the risk management process. Risks which cannot be
accepted by the Group are transferred, eliminated or controlled
through risk mitigation measures. Each risk mitigation measure
has a risk owner who is a department manager or designated
person who will be assigned to ensure accountability. Risks
owners are also responsible for monitoring the status of the risk
mitigation measures for risks under their areas of responsibility.

Due to the size of the Group and cost effectiveness consideration,
the Group does not have an internal audit function. Instead, the
Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of
internal control systems of the Group, assessing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and in
performing the internal audit functions for the Group. The review
covers major activities of the Group in rotation basis and also the
risk management functions. Deficiencies (if any) are identified
and improvement recommendations as well as remedial actions
are proposed.
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Audit Committee and the Board receives the risk management
report and internal control report by the independent professional
advisor annually. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and considers them to the effective and adequate.

Regarding the procedure and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group is aware of
its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The handling
and dissemination of inside information are regulated to ensure
the information is kept strictly confidential before disclosure is
appropriately approved. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of inside information. The Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public if it believes that the
confidentiality may have been breached.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board does not have a policy to pay any fixed dividend or
a pre-determined future dividend distribution policy. The Board
has absolute discretion to recommend any dividend declaration.
Dividend will depend on our financial conditions, results of
operations, cash availability, statutory and regulatory restrictions
in relation thereto, future prospects, and any other factors that
the directors may consider relevant. In any event, the Company
will not be in a position to pay or declare dividends until such
time as it has profits available for that purpose as determined in
accordance with the applicable law.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 59 and 60.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 235 and
236 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in notes 47 and 48 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2018: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company'’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
36.7% and 51.8% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 99.9% and 100% of the Group's total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Dayong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Peidong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Lyu Ziang
Mr. Zhou Liangyu

Pursuant to Bye-laws 99(B) of the bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu”) and Dr. Lyu Ziang (“Dr. Lyu”)
will retire from office as Directors at the 2020 AGM and
Mr. Liu and Dr. Lyu, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Total number Approximate

Number of Number of of shares and percentage
issued shares underlying underlying of the issued
Director Nature of Interests held shares held shares voting shares
EE#T
CEES
s E 81T P e R R ROBL
B BEME RHHE RO#A ROEH Bk
Liu Kequan ("Mr. Liu") Corporate interests 1,447,750,000 - 1,447,750,000 20.91%
(Note 1)
mR ([8%4%]) EERER (BzET)
Yang Dayong (“Mr. Yang") Corporate and 614,826,000 - 614,826,000 8.88%
family interests (Note 2)
BARE([HEE]) EBRRGER (PaE2)
Notes: B
1. The interests are held by Eastern Spring Global Limited. Mr. Liu 1. ZERCARERKIERARAEE 2%k
is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of ERRERKEBRAREIE BITRAK
Eastern Spring Global Limited. EmmAAC
2. The interests include (i) 612,810,000 shares held by Eternally 2. ZERZBENVDEGERARFTAND

Sunny Limited and (ii) 2,016,000 shares held by Mrs. Yang,
being the spouse of Mr. Yang. Mr. Yang is the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Eternally Sunny Limited.
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Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company’s associated corporations

REQXRMEBEEROREBRRO ZHR

Approximate

percentage
Number of to issued
shares/amount  voting shares/
of registered registered
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest  Class capital capital
HERT
BREERD
RA®E,/ ERELRZ
B BB EEEE BEtE 5 dAMELTE BOESH
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 55 shares 55%
Service Limited (Note 3)
b EXRERESBRBEERAF EERR (HE3) ETEk 55k
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests  Ordinary 3 shares 100%
(Note 3)
EERR (HE3) TRk 3
SEENREDH (LE)ARAA Corporate interests  Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Dingtai Runhe Investment (Note 3)
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)  ZEI#z (H33) HMEX AR
31,000,0007T
Note: B =T -
3. 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited (“Long 3. EEAERAR([EEBE]EBEITRAN

Tu") is owned by Mr. Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial
owner of 55 shares of Intraday Financial Information Service
Limited (“Intraday”), which is 55% of its issued share capital,
whilst the remaining 45 shares, which represents 45% of the
issued share capital of Intraday, is owned by the Company.
Intraday is the legal and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD
Enterprise Limited (“aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share
capital. aBCD is the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered
capital of Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which is its entire equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

T ERFRBG RAABRG L E
SRR

<:K-h¢+:ﬁ =t—B BESEEAR
ZITHRABRA RAR R MAEREAX
Tﬂlﬂﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬁ% g5 M G R G B XV EBE2 R
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nEﬁ*EA$ AR IR E %&Hﬁj%fbkm%3361%3\
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Approximate
percentage to

No. of issued
Name Nature of interest shares held voting share
e RT
BEREERG
28 A ERME ERAGEE BABR D
Eastern Spring Global Limited Beneficial owner 1,447,750,000 20.91%
RRERKBRAA EmEAA
Eternally Sunny Limited Beneficial owner 612,810,000 8.85%
B%ER AT EmEB A
Wardour International Limited Beneficial owner 125,184,000 1.80%
("Wardour™)
Wardour International Limited ERBEAE A
(I'Wardour J)
Chu Lam Yiu Beneficial owner and Corporate interest 691,000,000 9.97%
(Note 1)
KM EmEA AN EERERS (FFzET)
Note 1: Ms. Chu Lam Yiu owned the entire issued share capital of B3E1 : RAREE L 4B Wardour 22 2 Z TR AN -

Wardour and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
shares in which Wardour was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as is
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on
20 June 2011.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The participants of the Scheme are as follow:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity;

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity;

(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any invested entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute, by way of joint venture,
business alliance, other business arrangement or otherwise,
to the development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 1,127,585,717 which comprises
440,580,000 shares to be issued under the outstanding options
unexercised and 687,005,717 shares to be issued under the
options not yet being granted, representing approximately
16.28% of the issued share capital (i.e. 6,924,077,621 shares).

RPESMERERAT | =F

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESRE

BB R &
ARABER-F——F~A=+ABBY

BRRABERRAARN XA NBARES (5
g

AEEESARENAKLTENSEALE
R A - DA 22 B 3k [ SR 15 5 AR R B PR L

MEBME FICAEETTRBENREESE
ERBSIBAKEREAREEREGEEDN
ANER-

AEIMZ2EALBREUATAL:

(@) ADAE - EEAHEB AR REMIKE
MEMEE (THhE2BEBES
WITES)

K
&

(b) RAR HEMMEARHEMNREER
MEFERATES (BREBILIEANTT
E DK

(0 AEBERKEARHEMIRETRNE
] 5 4 S AR A5 (L FE 7

AEESEAREERNERNES:

() AIAKEHEMKREEREMRIE
FHEMEM IR ERMALRER:

F 3%

() AEBEMKE ARSI MRETEERMNE
A A R ASKEEAIKE QA SHERRE
ERMBETEMNZFNERSEA:

A B A R AT I
5 % R 0 (7 RS (B3 S AL AR
R R

BRAELE EHHE HUEXLHk
SHAMA N BEKA Y AR EERM
R BB EA R AR BRI 2
BAL-

RARE HER - 5T 817 T Al 2 1TA AR (D 4B 2k
/41,127,585,717h% - @%*E%FE?* BB ERT
{5 B B8 AR 4 AT T 25 17 #9440,580,000/% A% 17 &
B M AR AR E R T 3% 1789687,005,717
fER% 17 1B E R B 1T (BD6,924,077,621
A& A% 15 ) #94916.28% °

—NEFFR

39



40

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the option and subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
holding of the share options before it can be exercised, unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
of the grant of share options to a grantee. An option may be
accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option by payment from the participant and
receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or on the last date
of the said 28 day period.

The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme will expire on 19 June 2021.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

REMIEAMBRERERREASEE
o] L th B8 AR M 51 81 7] 35 AR AR RO BB AR AR
(BRETENRRITENBRE) ETEM
ERTRAEATETHNRNAT TGRSR
ARAERFEEITHRANIY%

BEEABRAREZTSETE MAMNN AR A
E ] B ) - 1R BRET 81 B IR SR T (L B R - M ME
B0 T 3% B A s A R 9% 1 B B 5t i
mTFZ AR I B AR E LR AT RSP
R

REFEZHARERERARARDBERED
BHOAERIN SAEABRETENERBRB
BN RER AN - BRETH2EA LRI
HEBRE RO B 288 AFERN Lifi28H
Hif & & — B R Z A A AR A X f1.008 7T
T 2 A4

TEERSEFSETMER BETRHERIA
T&RSE: ()ROPRE L B RARE RSB &
EBRAIOETE: ()ROVEERRLBH
AR A% XA RB IS RERMAIINF
BT E R (i) RD A E(E -

AERR _E-_—FXA+TNRES-
AR BRI R A M SRR M FE40

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



Details of movements in the share options granted under the
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BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFERE

Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as  #EEHZBERENEESFBUOT
follows:
Number of share options held
FsBREHA
Closing
Price of
share
immediately
Balance as Balance before
at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat Exercise  the date of Weighted
1 January during during during 31 December Price grant of average
Category Date of grant 2019 the period the period the period 2019 Exercise Period of Share Options HKS  share options  closing price
S # RANEE
“E-NE ZE2-NE BRERY
-A-8 tZR=t-H e REAIN il 3
£5) RiLAH &8 Bhzd BRiE RN &h BRENGER BT WmE W
Employees and 20 March 2018 451,080,000 - - (10,500,000) 440,580,000 Any time within 20/3/2018 to 19/3/2021 0.188 0.187 -
consultants
EERER “3-N\F=A=tH ZE-\FZR-tRRCZ--EZATNRHHAEN
(10,500,000) 440,580,000

Total 451,080,000 = =
@t

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Board and is based on their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. Directors’
liability insurance policies containing permitted indemnity
provisions have been taken out and maintained in force during
the financial year and as at the date of approval of this report to
provide appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the relevant liabilities and
costs associated with legal proceedings against them.
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17 RBTA S WA RS T A
W BB ERA WE- A% X RA
BET BEAARREARNEET MR
e MARENBERXNESECRBRED
ER 15 3 3 B B 4F B PO R 00 AN 3R 25 e 0 B B
ERER ARESRAEENBEANEES
RIS B R v R R R AR R R B AR
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

&SRR R MORRR

RAREE  BARB AL NEBEHEEE
ERFITBTEREEREARAMHAAEE R
BREEBRERTE-

2L ) 5 4H A 07 O B (%

AEBERREESRFEMFERBERNTIERE
RIRE 2GRS S IB R - N2 BE B
KEFEBRFHEN HI BEXERERE
EHIBUR

AEENABREESEBHERSRIFBE
NEREREAENERE -RAFE KK
BEAXKAERHF CHBMESEABREMLD

RRBR M R3IE

AEBERNRERR TEBRERBM L
JREN-EEITENREE - £ ARRE R KBS
AT L ENRANER AR D EIRERES
B AR ERRIGAETT

AEERK TR ERRERED ASEE
BREEE—SERRIERLERED -

TE2EABATHAARE

AEB Mt Al e B H X5 MR - 23F
MBS ERF EHBERR R AHFHAEE - A
TARAREBEMENT ERR MARAEARE -
TXAIEIN REFAEAEBEIL RINELE
FIAETERERKAIEESERNEMAE
B AR = -
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Risk Mitigation
Bee 1EC L By

Acquisition risk

W i L B

The Group will invest in new project(s)

and acquire new business(es) (“New
Project(s)”) from time to time to expand
its lines of business. If the project
management of the New Projects is not
conducted properly, the New Project may
adversely impact the performance of the
Group. For example:
$EI%T%&§ﬁEE&%%ﬁ¥ﬁ
(M#IEE 1) AERE EKAR - wFIEE
WIERERIWASIEET MBBAXE
HAEBORBEETNEZE - flI0:

1. Investment cost and/or consideration
is substantially higher than the
valuation

RERAR,/ZREXESREE

2. New Projects are overvalued

MEREELES

3. Insufficient financial and operational
due diligence on New Project

MBEEMBEREEEBHAETT R

4. Employee anxiety, morale and/or
engagement issues

BEEERE TR /IHMEEMA

5. Underestimation of difficulties, time
and resources required for integrating
New Projects into the Group
ﬁ%hﬁﬁﬁmk$ﬁlml%
FIERRRER

6. Failure of New Projects in satisfying
the key performance indicators
and/or proflt targets
HTIH B RREERARRBEER
EFANENSE

7. 1T infrastructure capability and
transition costs

%_&m%”“mmbﬁ&%kﬁ

8. Unable to retain the management
team and key personnel of New

Projects
f% HETIE B e TR B B K g
=

— Before investing into a new project or

acquiring a business, the Board should
assess internal resources and capacity

of the management and perform full
scope of due diligence exercise on the
new project/business, including but not
limited to business models, financial
performance, market trend, growth
opportunities, business valuations etc.
Particularly, the new project/business needs
to be consistent with the Group’s overall
business objectives and favourable to the
Group's the long term development.

ERAFEAINET LG A EEE

FE ST PO R % IR R O A2 0 3 B 3
BH BRI BENBRAS B
BTRAEBIER - 5L B
MEME BEMEE LH2 HIEE S
LRmrAREENEREEAEY
BARAEENERHEE -

The Group should also appoint external
consultants and/or professional advisor,
including legal advisors, valuer and
financial advisors, who possess with the
expertise in advising the Board and conduct
technical evaluations and/or independent
assessment.

N5 (B fE ZRE 1 EP R R &% ok BB 2 R R
(B ERER  LERM R BEER) B
RERNESSRHESZNERANALE
TR AT B &S L 7T -

Before and after the completion of the
investment and the acquisition, the
management should continuously monitor
the performance of the new project/
business ensure it is on track and within
the Board’s expectation. In case of material
changes and/or failure, the management
should report to the Board immediately.
ERE RIREE ST ATIE EEFEF#W
BAEIE B E BRI - AREREER
ReRMBEE - MEERNEREZR
ERERIABREEFTE -

The management should conduct
independent assessment on the adequacy
of critical internal control issues and risk
areas of the new project/business to ensure
all the controls and risk mitigations are in

place.
aﬁFﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁmiKW%¢
IR 2 1o B 0 £ 7 2 M 17 v o
- DARBAR & B FTE 12 5l KL B B K45
iiihs
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Risk Description

Ja, B 4 ot

Risk Mitigation
e 1EC 2 By

Information
Technology risk

=R AR

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

Some of the businesses rely much on
IT technologies to keep track of
customer information, transaction
records, personal and financial data
of customers etc. All of those records
are highly confidential. Any leakage
of those information will have serious
consequence to the Group and the
customers. IT issues, cyber-attack, system
failure or interruption of business-critical
IT systems or digital infrastructure could
compromise the Group’s business
operations, reputation and financial
position.
DEBBRERBESRIMEMRETFEL
x%ﬁﬁ-%ﬁ%ﬂA&%%%ﬁﬁm
oA e EBa BT ER 1
BEMRE BEREEREFESR
Eé% o WX A {E BRI RE - AAR X
CERHMERHEBEEENGE AR
m% j ok BRAS (L B SR b B IR AP T - 1T
PREASENEBEE BELY
ﬁ‘“Hi@R °

— The Group should continue to monitor and
upgrade its softwares and systems to the
latest cyber-attack prevention version
AEEERFEENSRMR RS WAGHFA
&Iﬁ%mﬁﬂﬁmEﬁWI

— Systems vulnerability and penetration
testing should be carried out regularly
to ensure that data are protected from
unauthorized access or uses.
EH#ETRGRRMZENS  UBRE
BXIRE EXAEEENE AR
o

— Use of up-to-date anti-virus software and
increased patching of key software.
KASHRS R S MERE T
T o

— IT risks are managed through the
application of internal policies and
management procedures, and the
maintenance service provided by third
party
12 BB L2 58 38 8 A A 3D SR AN 32
kfﬁﬂaﬁ.lm”_ﬁh1$%%
%5 e

— The Group should develop a companywide
cyber risk policy and emergency procedures
in case of security breach.

NE B FEHIE 2 7] 8 E B B 48 LR
BRESRER L 2RME-

— Technical team should receive updates and
training relating to cyber risk and business
continuity.

% i B B¢ e 13 W A A A A% TRl B A 2 75
BT BRI -

— All the critical data should be backed up
on a regular basis and all backup should
be stored in secure and safe places.
FTABRBIBRET B h - A BH XM
EERZT 2R SEh B o
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Strategy Risk
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Risk Description
| B 4

Risk Mitigation
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Credit settlement and ~ Our provision of financial guarantee, — The Group should continue to monitor

counterparty risk

EERE
HF TR

loan financing, loan referral, and loan
consultancy services are highly depend
on counterparties/partners in performing
credit check, monitoring credit
performance of the borrowers, collection
of loans, and reporting loan status etc.
If the our counterparties/partners fail
to perform the said work or do not act
in an ethical manner, it might lead to a
credit risk of the Group and potential
claim against our counterparties/partner.
Bt ERR EXME EXEN
NEREBRRBERKEE LEKBEHF
FERBARETHEERS BERE
TANEERE WEHERERHFER
RAE MR PIOEF T, BB AKRRE
R bt TYES RIREBIBIZEITE  AJRE
eS|MAEBREERRRKHEFH A
BANBERSR -

For our securities brokerage business, clients
are required to settle their securities
transactions within T+2. If a client fails
to do so, the Group will be required to
settle the amount on behalf of its client
with HKSCC with its own funds. As such,
it could have an adverse impact on the
cash flow position of the Group.

HEMNEBESFLCLEHBME  TFPER
THRAEEEFR S - WE P ARMUETT
S AEEAPANBEERKREFHE
EEREETRE -EL HAlgeeH
AEENHEERERAERK TN E -

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

the performance of the counterparties/
partners. If the staff notice any sign of
issue, they should inform the management
or the Board for appropriate actions.
AEEERFEERHFH ABANEK
B -HMEILIERIEMEENTR KE
ERAEEENEFERNEETH-

The Group should perform frequent check
on the counterparties/partners on their
works in respect of clients' creditability,
such works should be made in accordance
with the policy and procedures set out by
the Group.
AEBEEBEESHTH AR ABH
EFMEEER ZILEEREBERAEES
TEBVBUR M2 FF#ETT o

Ongoing monitor and regular review of the
Group’s financial and operation exposure
to the lending platforms and find ways to
mitigate or lessen the impacts.
REZANTE MR AEERRETA
TH B B B 75 Ko & 3 [ e 7 R BR 4 ife P& KK
ARERETE -

For the brokerage business, the Group
should perform regular review on payment
pattern of the client. If there is sign of
issue, the management should be informed
for action.

MERLREBME  NEBERE BRI ER
N REN EHETR  ERAEE
[EERERTTED
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Strategy Risk Risk Description Risk Mitigation

R W B B JE| B 4 e = B

Loan guarantee risk For our provision of credit-based financing — To strengthen the key aspects of the

B ERE R guarantee and related loan arrangement lending policy and procedures to ensure a

and consultancy services, they are
depend on the Group's internal credit
risk management strategy and stringent
credit checking policy. If the internal
credit risk management strategy and
client credit checking process are not
executed properly, in case any client
is not able to repay the loan, this may
cause adverse impact to the Group.
Further, if the lending platform becomes
insolvent, the Group might have to repay
the lender and the deposit paid cannot
be recovered.
RBEMREEERERRMBBERZH
NARARBNS  RERTFAEBNHA
HEERRERERBLRERNEERS
HR - MARZERTABEERRE R
FREREFPEERERF & A%
FAREEEBERER Mg HREEEK
PHFE - N R ETFaETEE
REERBEAMBREAEZERREMNIRS
BOE YD -
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thorough and comprehensive credit checks
should be performed before granting the
guarantee.

ISR E BUR RAZ Fr B9 RASE 77 | > FER X
HERIETHRE ZEANEERS -

To perform regular monitoring of the
financial position of the borrowers as well
as the lending platforms.

BRI SRA KR EF & R FA0R o

The Group should perform frequent check
on the counterparties/partners on their
work in credit checking, monitoring of
credit performance of the borrowers,
collection of loans, and reporting of

loan status according to the policy and
procedures set out by the Group.

NEE ERIE A S B G E 8 BOR KR P
BEREHFH AR ANGEERSES &
TAGBERREE EXKELREFRR
AR TE

Detect leading indicators of problems
early. Any sign of material issue should be
reported to the management immediately
for actions.

REPEREENEITER NEEMNERXN
FRIR ENSREERERRITE -

The Group should continue monitor

the Group's credit risk management
strategy and credit checking policies on
those partners. Those strategy and credit
checking policies should be reviewed and
updated on a regular basis.
AEEEBBEERAEEHZEARA
HITHEERREERBREEEER
R-RERBREEFEBRET PR
SR

To develop a standardized follow up and
recovery procedures for bad loans.

) TE AR AV IR AR IR A R B A2 Fr o
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Risk Mitigation
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Money lending
— Loan default risk
WE
—BEFEDNRER

Impairment provision
on the guarantee
business and financial
misstatement risk
EREGRER MY
745 i 2R BR [ B

The Group operates money lending
business. Borrowers may use their
property as collateral for the loan.

There is risk if the property market
crash, realization value of such property
may not be enough to cover the loan
amount.

REBRENEER - BERARIREAEY
FEREFERMm -l FEMETS
AR HEADENSREETRETEN
ERNERTENER -

There is risk in determining the amount of
provisions for the financial guarantee
business in which guarantees issued
were unsecured or where the financial
guarantees issued were subject to
potential collateral shortfalls. The
determination of collective impairment
allowances for provisions of guarantee
losses is dependent on the external
macro environment and the Group'’s
internal credit risk management
strategy. The amount of provision for
bad debts depends on the management
experiences. This estimations could
impact the accuracy of the financial
statement.

MELHEREEFSIBLREERNE
HmAlge e AlEERERBRELT
BEcHAREERR FHERREXHN
ERHNEREBENEETETINDEEIRER
KA B 5 N BRE B B IR 5 R
EoBEBREHRIRNEEEBRR-
ZEAE A RE R B M TG R A ERE L -

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

The Group should ensure proper

valuation is performed on the property by
independent qualified valuer before the
loan is granted.

ROERA AEBEERRBHBE LS ER
HEMEYEETEERE:.

The Group should ensure mortgage
against such properties must be promptly
registered at the land registry so as to
ensure mortgage is at the highest priority
of claim.
NEEEERAERYDEOERAE LR
T MR ER  WEREARBREB
R BSTARR

The Group should follow the policy for
the provision of losses in the financial
guarantee business and loan business
closely.
REEEBRBERREBREENER
FHRBERBEEEK -

The management should monitor closely
on the credit performance of the lending
platforms. Any sign of issue should be
reported to the management for actions.
EREREVEENETANEERR
gﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%%n%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

External experts may be engaged to
estimate the amount of provision on bad
debts that might be required.
ANHERZREINDBERGZREE
TR
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Strategy Risk Risk Description
R BE L By | B 4
Regulatory updates and The frequent updates on disclosure
compliance risk requirements, other supervision
EEEH I NS R E RS regulations in Listing Rules, accounting

standards, financial reporting and
others, the Group may have omissions
or non-compliance risks. Further, change
in regulation could make the unit’s
current business models unprofitable
or unsustainable. This is evidenced
by the PRC authorities tighten up the
regulations in P2P lending platforms.
Compliance failures could lead to
criminal and civil prosecution, fines, loss
of rights, reputational damage etc.
METRAEERT  EMEEER
SEER MR EMEMREREE
o AREREFEERI T AR -
BEoN - RO EE RS B MR E
BRX LR A#HE - ¢Iﬁ@
ERWEPPHEFEMEEEAIER
m%$$éﬁ$ﬁ»$%lTAﬁ%ﬂ
ERREWRIE I BN ERR BER

B
Government The Group’s business in securities

policies risk brokerage, asset management, insurance
I8 T R 3R R B brokerage, loan guarantee and loan

consultation services are greatly
influenced by the government policies
(including macro policies, monetary
policies and financial policies), this
increase the uncontrollable risk of the
Group's business and operation.
REENEFRLEER BEEEER
R L ETR BERERRE R AR
BEBERARE LXBABE (B2
BEHR BEBR LT BBER)ZE
SAKE XKL EBER T ERER -
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The Group should set up independent
team (external accountants, lawyers, and
other specialists) to review new disclosure
requirements and other regulations in

the Listing Rules, accounting rules etc.
Any material changes that could impact
the Group should be reported to the
management or the Board for actions.
REB RN B LEK (HMNBEFTHED - 2
Aib Ko B4 B2 A 1) 28 B8 7 AR B 6 3 %
B E R H AR - Eﬁﬁﬁi°WEﬂ

EFEAKBNIMNEAERES FHEE
BESESSRNITH-

The Group should regularly assess the
financial exposure on those business
lines that could be affected by regulatory
changes.
REEEEHAGEAREEZHTE
B 3R R AR e B 5 R e

Regular training should be provided to
staffs on new regulatory and compliance
requirements.
EEHARETIRHEAANEERARE
SKEYIEE o

The Group should continue to monitor
national and local government policies to
see the new changes.

AR B 5 1 B SR B R R T U R

To engage external consultants such as
lawyer, accountants, specialist to give
advice to the Group.

ZHEZRD - &ETAD E%AE%%%Eﬁ
MAEBERHEER

The Group should regularly assess the
financial exposure on those business lines
that could be affected by the change of
government policies.

NEE e E BIRT L AT se X BUR IR 2
TENEBROIERER -



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed in note 56 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report, there are no important events affecting
the Group after the end of FY2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float under the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by HLM CPA
Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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18 4 & 3+ 66 4T A PR 4 9]
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
FUEF AL L POA 18198 KA KR 1581501-8F
Tel FE#f: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {8 EL: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail 7 #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RPESRMERERAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 234, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BARPESHERAERATRRE

(REFRZZMELZBERLE])

NAZEBEN (A TEEIHM)EZERTH
MESIBEEF2M4EMAFESHIZRERA
AI(ATERBIERAF ) RERBAR (AT
GRIEEE|)NERAVMBRE WEEHE
BERBEER-_ZE—NF+_A=+—BH&K
AV BRAREEZZB L FEMNGEEAEDR
MEMZEKRER GEAESEHRMNEEIR
EREBR URGEEUBEREMT 2EEE
BETERBE -

BRARE GAVERRCBEESSHAA
g ([EESHMAg] ) BHNEENBRS
R ([BEEMBREENDEEMP SR
Y EEER-_ZE—NF+_A=+—H
MEATBERAREHEZALFENLGS
FEERBMGARERE YO BRES (A
BMER) BB R AlE-

B &R

BARBEELESFAMAGRHMcBEERE
Al ([FAFZER])ETRMANER - LA
RZEFEANBAT ZEER B MRS ZBED
BEREAVBRRNET—HE—FRHA R
BEAGMASEMNEXSAERT
AI(T=FAID) - BABYY SE&EE YEER
STRIBTTHMEREE - HARR BAIME
BNEZEEBRNLRE AREMANER
R E%E-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

s ET 1A

FARESFFEERERMANERHE oY
AHGEMBRERNBENZREENTIE E
LEREAERMBAERBEEMHRE
AERRETREN RMATSHELERARE
HEBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMEESTER

BANFTNAHARENEHETRE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

78 YRl (B ST A

Referring to notes 19 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Company had performed an impairment review in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
in relation to the Group's goodwill belonging to the
groups of cash-generating units (“CGU") comprising
insurance brokerage CGU, security brokerage CGU,
asset management CGU, financing referral CGU and
financial guarantee CGU. The Group had recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$111,257,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$7,143,000)
as a result of the impairment review.

2GR TBmMEMTIOR21 BERAREEEDR
BEBGTEAFR[EEREIH SEENR
eEAEU ([ReESSEM]) AR BERRELI
TELABN BRAECBEELABEN SEEREET
ELEBN RMEBNBRCELEULARERRRTE
HEBUMBHNEEETRERS - BERERS S &
SEERBE_ZT-NF+_A=+—ALLFE
MR BB EEB111,257,0008 T (ZF — /\F:
7,143,000 7T)

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs required involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions by management concerning the
estimated future cash flows and other key inputs and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AR eEABNMNAKREcEREEEEERMGE R
KR e mE N RS I A BURME L EAHE MREK
W KimE e st et -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the goodwill as a key audit
matter.

Rt - BAM R IR T e B R R E RT (SR R — IR
RESTEIE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:
BARERZEEMKDNEEREFBERE:

e discussing with and, where applicable, sought
corroborative supporting information from the
management of the Company and the independent
valuer engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”)
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies adopted and the key inputs used,;

e H BRRIEEENR BEAREEMB(LER
(T&R1ERD]) & s P ER AL (B 7 & R PR R &
ABENEENESRIEFER:

e discussing with the management of the Company
and the Valuer about the key assumptions used in
forming the CGU'’s value-in-use calculation including
the cash flow projections and discount rates used
and evaluating the relevance and reasonableness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

e H BERREREBERMGEMARTEKRCEELE
EREBEEFEMRANERRR BREESRN
ERANAAMEE WEREBRMAEEBRITE
BT R R A R RERBEEIE R A EE K

e assessing the competency and experience of the
Valuer.

o FHEMEERAEE N KK -

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BN FTNAHBEREA S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses

FEW KB RERE R EREBRRE

Referring to notes 4, 9, 26, 27, 28 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group had recognised impairment
losses, net of reversal, on loans and interest receivables,
trade and other receivables, other deposits and
provision for financial guarantees of HK$14,100,000,
HK$4,229,000, HK$55,000 and HK$84,120,000
respectively.

2B E_T - NF+_A=+T—"BLEFEZHFE
I mAM 492627 28%33° EBEEHE
HER W E TR A B U BR R E A MR IE
Hiize 2 BEERE (NEELD) RRERREED
711 /14,100,000/% 7T * 4,229,000/ JT * 55,0007 7T &
84,120,000/& JT °

Impairment assessment of receivables and provision
of guarantee losses is a key area due to the level of
judgement exercised by the management in determining
the amount of allowance and provisions.

HREEEEETREMNEGRSNHNEBRFTRZEAR
% I - R MOGR IR E R R R RE R RS T

o

The balances of impairment allowance for the
receivables and provision of guarantee losses represent
the management’s best estimates of expected credit
losses (“ECL") at the reporting date under the expected
credit loss models.
EURIBERERBLREREBEBNERIEEER
BRHEEFR([AHNEERREARKREEH
HEHEEEENREMET-

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BMAREBEZEFEMRDNEERTFEE:

e assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval to recording
and monitoring of receivables and financial
guarantees issued, the credit assessment process,
the identification and timeliness of identifying
impairment indicators, continuous re-assessment
of the appropriateness of assumptions used in the
collective assessment model and the management’s
specific provisions for individual receivables and
guarantee losses;

e MEEUWFENEFLBEERRUEBHRHIIARE
B RIRE AR ARG LEERE  EERT
ERAZ  RE R B85l R BB 2 - AR g ST R R =
RARKXRAELNFEEHTAREEE @A
FEWRRIA N R RIS B AT IR RO & B4

e comparing the total balances of the receivables
list and guarantee list, which contain information
used by management to assess impairment losses
for loans and interest receivables and provisions
for guarantee losses, with the general ledger
and comparing individual loans and guarantees
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the due diligence report, risk control
report and the loan list and guarantee list;

e LHEEREANMEEKRERLMNEMEEE R
EREBEENERFECRLEREGKRGRE
BMEARCHEN B YRABEF AL EE
PIERFMEREHNBEEE R ERBENEM
MR —EN A ERBRAETRE  BEER
EMERRREREEANERNTIRIER

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREESER

BANFTNAHEAREASHETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FEW R BB ER G R EREBRE (F)

The measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgements and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EHREEEENAEEAAE R BELEXRAE KR
ROEFEBEUATREA:

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

- ExEERRBRELEEZEM
B BT 18 AR 2E

HREBHELEEON

— Economic indicators for
measurement, and applicable
and weightings.

- ARAIEMAENKBEES UALEALERR
K n#eE

forward-looking
economic scenarios

We have identified management’s impairment
assessments of the ECL of receivables and provision
of guarantee as a key audit matter because of the
significant amounts of the receivables and provision
for financial guarantees to the financial position of
the Group and the management judgement and
assumption.

B E IR EH R W RIRTAHREEBRNRER G &
EREGAN R -—HEHARETFTR EAR) EF
O BRAME  BURRBERREZEREEHR S
HMEAEFTZEREEDHE KRR

o BHMEEERHMN

e evaluating and assessing the consistency and
reasonableness of assumptions adopted in
management’s calculation of impairment losses
for receivables and provisions for guarantee losses
by critically assessing input parameters involving
subjective judgement, seeking collaborative evidence
from external sources and comparing historical
losses against the Group’s other internal records and
prior year records. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the life-cycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit events to downgrading
the accounts to non-performing receivables and
guarantees,

e MHERBERKFBEREEEIKERERER
BRAAREN —BEREEMN FRXEHET
MR EHAENRA2E SRKINBHRZFE -
WHELERE SSEEHMAILCHER F—F
EHREETEH L - BN BRI BRM B RS
NEREEASHELEINKEBRRATR B
BMPBERE 2B RFFEOTEE

e reviewing ageing analysis of the receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable on a sample
basis;

BERAIEEERAENE KA

ZHERBRON W BEAFREERE®EBENRER

AarlkE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BN FTNAHBEREA S HETEE

Impairment assessment of receivables and
provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

FE WK R E R4 R EREBRERE (F)

e examining the management’s estimation on
the ECL of individual balances on sample basis
and the expected loss rate of each category
groups and evaluating the basis and factors
used in the estimation to the appropriateness of
the management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit impaired
receivables;

s RMREEETEEREYUHMEMAMKETHEBRE
EEBEMAARBRARNNTEBRERX Wil
MR EANEERARZ UTGHEREBHESR
= B ?aﬁféi'ﬁﬂ EHREREERENEKZKE
BRI taE 1

e recalculating the amount of impairment losses for
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses; and

o EMFERUSURREBBANMEREEREGETE:
&

e checking subsequent settlements of receivables and
guarantees on a sample basis.

o MERERUFIARERNEREEBTN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

RPESMERERAT | =F

38 3 B BT R

H At &t

BERRAEFAHAMEHNAT -HMEHBHE
?Uﬁ)%if‘#&ilﬁﬁ’]éfﬂ EREIELL TS

BRRR PO KBRS -
BPHEARBRENERL TRE LA
B R % R 8B R
=B o

EaRMEREMBERRNET RANEE
EMEEMER  EIERET EEEMER
ERESAVBEBRARMERTBREPAHN
THROBRAGFEEREBREUFFEEXN

E AR R B - E R PIT BITH TAE - 40

%ﬁiﬁ* BEMiﬁﬂﬁEéﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁ
FEREZFE-EESE BRIVRB TR

=)

YE TR B WL S R R A

EEN
1T

iy

BERREFARARETSETAI SR M
B (BB BREER) REE (RFHED)D
MRBEZRBEEEMR SRS M BERE
T BERREZARRESREMBERERN
RETFEHRNBGFRERMEBNEKEE
RERAPTFEOARIZEHEE -

EREFEMBERRE ES88NE 85
B ELENEE S WHEERIBTR MR RE

BREABENFR URERAKELE RS
HEft-BRF ERFEFAER EEEBR
HFILEE HPEEMERNBERTER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence, that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e SR =N E P
M E 1T

BZMNBER EHEEMBHRREEBRES T
77 B 70 BRRF 88 AR T 8 BUH) B K 88 SRRt
REEEARE YRR (ARERRE) £90
R EEREZBEREARERMERLD
BB RS o BR UL ASN - AT S AR A E
Hf Ak WAL A HRE 2 AR HE
i AT AEEAEEREIEANES SR
EeEKENREZ BETRRBER(BESR
AR EITHER EX - ERERRAT
FERS AR REZE IR o 35 RR BR AL A] A B HREF Sk #E BR 5
B nRAERHMEMEBRELLERAER
ERAVBRRERE KBRS VB RERMA
1E B AR TE - Bl B8 B 5 SR Rt AT 1248 18
BEXR-

ERE (BBEER) ETHEARS
BRFERTERHE RETHEXRREE-
AP IR -

o BRIMFERNMFFABERMEBZRAY
BREREGFESERBREAENRLR R R
MITETIZF A RE G LA - A R
FERMBEENENRE FARAZED
AR -mNEBFARINER BE BR
B ERR - SOEBE R ARG 2 £
PRIt R BE 3 3R R HRRF 1 B B R B K84 R IR
ARERSNAEERNERMERNE
R B8 AR Rt ) LB

o TRREERGHABMANIMES  URFTEE

MBS REF EENLIFE SEBEARMN
EHNBEREERER -

s HEEEMRASFTERNREERER
SR AR MEERENSIEE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

38 3 B BT R

s HEERARKERKLSHERNBEEE
hHEm - RIBEMEDRNETBRE BER
BFERESHENBENEENEATEENE
KmAEEHY BSEEENFELLERED
ELXEARBE -MRAMBA/FEERDT
FETE M BIA &6 21 2 BT & R B AR
REIRGAVBEBRRTNEBERE R
FREENRETR RIRFMESERIFE
REBEBR -HAANEREERNZEERS
HIEFTEGEERTBRE AT KRKFE
HIERATEES EEBTREFELE-

o FEFAMBHMERNERINH®IN BB
MAR BREREE UANGEETBHRRE
BHRAERBRBBRIZMER-

e B EXEERNERBIEXBLEDNVHBKER
ERMRR BENETERE NEKAH
BHREERER-RMEE BEEERG
BT EE B MBMIT M AT B R A
EREEE-

BREMEIRN RSB ESE T ENE
AEE RRZHE EARAERAS B8N
{PIFEZR T A a8l i 1A BB 42 il B (T AT R KR B o

BZMEMAEERRER ARUMETEH
B EMEEERERER XM
B EMNR ST ERMBELIEMNPT
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[88 ) [ BB 45 46

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

57



58

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

YIP YUEN NGA

Practising Certificate Number: P05908
Hong Kong

24 March 2020

e EURIE EE BN EIETD  RIEE B LEIH
HAMGEVBRRNBARAEE AME
RSB FH - R M ERBE RSP ML E
LR BRIPDERERTIAFAHAREESLES
R HESRRFERNBRT  MREEAHHE
BZMBETBRRXREHEKRNNARRKRES
EENRBNE RFRETEERSHER
P

EREENTERAT
HEDIE

=

HEFEHIT PO5908
BB

—E-FTF=F_+WMH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeESEREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T—)\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000
(=2 FET FAET
Revenue WA 5 151,005 152,595
Cost of sales HEMAR (62,402) (56,703)
Gross profit £ 88,603 95,892
Other income, gains and losses HMA - WamkEiE 7 63,476 30,923
Administrative and other operating TR REMEERE
expenses (141,642) (115,836)
Finance costs B B R AR 8 (8,232) (11,560)
Share based payments PARR AR 2+ 3B = (40,313)
Provision for financial guarantees BB R (84,120) (1,302)
Impairment losses, net of reversal R A B - R E 9 (18,384) (7,523)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZREEE 19 (111,257) (7,143)
Impairment loss on intangible assets — #&f & &E 2 FEEE 20 (5.722) -
Loss before taxation BrELRTE B (217,278) (56,862)
Income tax credit (expense) A8 R e (FX) 10 10,883 (1,741)
Loss for the year FRER 11 (206,395) (58,603)
Other comprehensive expense, Hith 2 WX HBRHIE
net of tax
Item that will not be reclassified REHTEEN D HEEZEmtEE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial RATEFARMEELEZ
assets at fair value through ERMEERFEES
other comprehensive income 23 (1,961) (17,108)
Item that may be reclassified Bt E P EEZ Ry EA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation  FERE & AN b & ZE 55 M E £ 8
of operations outside Hong Kong EH =% (5,797) (23,220)
Other comprehensive expense FREMZERX
for the year (7,758) (40,328)
Total comprehensive expense FRE2HEMAXEHE
for the year (214,153) (98,931)
Loss for the year attributable to: L TALEEEREE:
Owners of the Company ZN/NECTEZZ SN (206,395) (58,603)
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR i A — =
(206,395) (58,603)

RPESMERERAT | =F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEBRakEtEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E2-hAF ZZT)N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
{ig=s THET FHET
Total comprehensive expense ATATEEFEFAEEBEERE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRAREE A (214,153) (98,931)
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 25 - -
(214,153) (98,931)
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Loss per share BREE 15
Basic HAK (2.98) (0.85)
Diluted s (2.98) (0.85)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a B R R

At 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—hF+-_A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZZFT-N\F
NOTES HKS$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER NS 16 86,351 99,266
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE 18 S 22,302
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 43,075 -
Goodwill EES 19 32,722 143,979
Intangible assets BILEE 20 2,277 9,249
Interests in an associate P — B A Bl B 22 - -
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFH A E M2 E UL
other comprehensive income CREE 23 6,369 15,872
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFAEZENERMEE
profit or loss 24 28,664 37,552
Contingent consideration receivables  fEU sk A (B 25 - 4,927
Deferred tax assets BT A E 38 22,555 11,368
Deposits Be 28 3,505 3,505
225,518 348,020
Current assets REEE
Loans and interest receivables EWE R R F A 26 152,449 113,952
Trade and other receivables JHE W AR 5 % EL A JE W 5 IE 27 24,895 59,674
Prepaid lease payments TR EERIE 18 - 719
Prepayments and deposits AT RIE Rige 28 81,487 65,485
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEFAEBZNEMEE
profit or loss 24 1,596 40,143
Contingent consideration receivables — FEU sk IR KB 25 39,136 8,759
Tax receivables FE W F 18 517 927
Cash held on behalf of clients REFPHEMNRE 29 843 1,263
Restricted bank deposits R HIERITFE K 30 54,056 2,136
Bank balances and cash WITEHREE S 31 205,530 269,578
560,509 562,636
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, other payables and FERTBR R - H Ath FE A FIE K
accruals st &R 32 133,564 81,659
Contract liabilities SHAEE 52 96
Lease liabilities HERE 37 14,536 -
Liabilities from financial guarantees MERREE 33 94,594 49,870
Deferred considerations BERE 34 5,853 20,450
Borrowings BE 35 11,186 8,538
Tax payables ENERE] 100 555
259,885 161,168
Net current assets RBEEFE 300,624 401,468
Total assets less current liabilities #EERABHEE 526,142 749,488

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E MR R

At 31 December 2019 R-—ZT—hE+_-_A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZZFT-N\F
NOTES HKS$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred consideration EERE 34 - 5,175
Lease liabilities MEAR 37 7,289 -
Borrowings BE 5 67,116 79,688
74,405 84,863
Net assets BEEFE 451,737 664,625
Capital and reserve EXRHE
Share capital [N 39 6,924 6,915
Reserves i 444,813 657,710
Equity attributable to owners of RAFIHER AEIEHE S
the Company 451,737 664,625
Non-controlling interests FEERR - -
Total equity fEmAc 451,737 664,625

N ESOBE E2MBE IR AMBRRIKES
N _E-_EE-A -t BHE R
TYHERKREE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 234 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Liu Kequan Mr. Yang Dayong

BmREE BABEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial ~ BEM{MiE AZEFHBHRERZ —3H -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share option  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TERZ
e ROBE  BRERE BERRE ERGE Efifit EERE iR Mt FERER @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL AL TET TEL TAL AL TAL TEL TAL FiEn
Note 48(a) Note 48(b) Note 48(c) Note 48(d) Note 48(e) Note 48(f)
Hi£48(a) HizE48(0) HizE48(c) i s48(d) Hit48(e) GEZE]
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\§-f-A 6,870 1,947,494 23,945 9,775 (15,160) (127,344) 4821 (1,135,578) 714,829 - 714,829
Loss for the year EREE S o o S S o S (58,603) (58,603) - (58,603)
Other comprehensive expense Eft2ERY
- Change in fair value of -RATEF AL ZERE
finandial assets at fair value JEREEATEED
through other comprehensive
income - - - - - (17,108) - - (17,108) - (17,108)
- Exchange differences on -REEFR MR B
translation of operations EENELZR
outside Hong Kong - - - - (23,220) - - - (23,220) - (23,220)
Total comprehensive expense ERZERYEER
for the year - - - - (23,220) (17,108) - (58,603) (98,931) - (98,931)
Issue of shares upon exercise of T B IRIERZTR
share options 13 3,581 (1,130) - - - - - 2464 - 2,464
Conversion of convertible notes BT RRER 2 15,693 S (9,775) = S S = 5,950 = 5,950
Recognition of equity-settled BRNREEERDXAHFE
share-based payments - - 40,313 - - - - - 40,313 - 40313
Share options lapsed during the year R B % B 1E - - (22,619 - - - - 2,619 - - -
Transfer to statutory Reserve BRELTHE - - - - - - 3,759 (3759) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NFt-A=+-R 6915 1,966,768 40,509 - (38,380) (144,452) 8586  (1,175321) 664,625 - 664,625
Transitional adjustment on the initial 5 & )7 /8 FA & 5 81 B 35 £
application of HKFRS 16 E16FMBRAR - - - - - - = (398) (398) - (398)
Adjusted as at 1 January 2019 RZE-N5-F-BERE 6,915 1,966,768 40,509 - (38,380) (144,452) 8,586 (1,175,719 664,227 - 664,227
Loss for the year FREE S o o S S = = (206,395) (206,395) - (206,395)
Other comprehensive expense Ef2ERY
- Change in fair value of -RATEF AL ZERE
financial assets at fair value JEREEATEEDY
through other comprehensive
income - - - - - (1,91) - - (1.961) - (1,961)
- Exchange differences on -REEFRIMLE B
translation of operations EENELZR
outside Hong Kong - - - - (5797) - - - (5,797) - (5,797)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERXEE
for the year - - - - (5797) (1,961) - (206,395) (214,153) - (214,153)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR IRIERETRH
share options 9 2443 (789) - - - - - 1,663 - 1,663
Share options lapsed during the year 4 AT 5% i #1B A 12 - - (912) - - - - 912 - - -
Release of revaluation reserve REERATES
upon disposal of financial Wz e REERBEER
asset at fair value through other &
comprehensive income - - - - - 95 - (95) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H 6,924 1,969,211 38,808 - (44.177) (146,318) 8,586 (1,381,297 451,737 = 451,737
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—

—NE+T-A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 7 F&T FHET
Operating activities ReEED
Loss before taxation BR A% AT & 18 (217,278) (56,862)
Adjustments for: LT IEBBEEE 2555 -
Amortisation and depreciation HERITE 12,607 13,273
Depreciation of right-of-use asset CRAEEERE 17 12,971 -
Finance costs BTG AR 8 8,232 11,560
Fair value change on contingent RS AREATFEE
consideration receivables 7,25 (34,602) (3,807)
Fair value change on financial assets TE’AWTE*‘U\TE it Y
at fair value through profit or loss CREEZ AT EES 7 (682) (1,389)
Interest income AMEHA (15,693) (17,221)
Loss on written off of property, WEY % - WE KRR
plant and equipment 2 BB - 26
Net foreign exchange loss ME W B F R 27 22
Share-based payment expenses AR 7 2 A ;R IB A 2 - 40,313
Investment income FLE WA (321) (1,841)
Impairment loss on amounts due from JIE Y BSe & R R RUIE 2
associates ] TEEEE’ B 10 9
Impairment loss on trade and FH&ZEE X N H Ath & U
other receivables FIAZ BIBERE 9 4,229 2,021
Impairment loss on loans and EH&ZTM&%‘J BZRIE
interest receivables &5 18 9, 26 14,100 5,273
Impairment loss on deposits Be 2 BEEISR 9 55 229
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZRERIE 111,257 7,143
Impairment loss on intangible assets ﬂﬁﬁé?ZﬁZﬁféﬂﬁ 20 5,722 -
Other receivables written off 1 S8 EL A B L R 7 - 1,888
Other payables written back [ H@JEH/TAIE 7 - (1,486)
Provision for financial guarantees BEEREE 33 84,120 1,302
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHRHLE
in working capital RERE (15,246) 453
Increase in trade and other receivables i L BR 5K % L Ath E R IB
20 (6,878) (30,643)
(Increase) decrease in loans and VWE K RS (3Ean)
interest receivables Ve (46,354) 64,029
Increase in prepayments and deposits T FRIB R AR & 3N (17,535) (57,901)
Increase in trade payables, JE AT BR R - EL A JE < SR 1B
other payables and accruals K EEHE RGN 52,810 27,533
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients 1&%45%75255_3@5@29‘ 420 803
Decrease in contract liabilities aHEaERD (43) (3,031)
Increase in amounts due from associates JEJ%Z i N B SRIE L N (10) (9)
Decrease in liabilities from BEERABGERLD
financial guarantee (653) (465)
(Increase) decrease in restricted SR FIERITER (3E00)
bank deposits B (52,709) 6,733
Cash (used in) generated from operations & /5% (FTA )52
Be (86,198) 7,502
Interest paid EAHE (5.599) (9,491)
Income tax paid NI %ﬂ (679) (3,935)
Tax refund B 126 -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFTAZRSFE (92,350) (5,924)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%Afﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZT—N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FET FHET
Investing activities REED
Interest received B YRS 12,026 15,486
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & E ¥ % - BE K& 16 (87) (4,387)
Proceeds from disposal of (purchase of) HE (BB RAYE
financial assets at fair value through .:Jr)\ﬁ{’ﬂiﬁ% 5.7
other comprehensive income T RLEEFTEEIE 23 7,498 (7,574)
Proceeds from disposal of (purchase of) Hj’% (BE) ?E’D\%TE
financial assets at fair value through ST AERZE E’J@%ﬂ’éﬁ@
profit or loss Fr 18 5T 47,967 (20,000)
Proceeds from sales and redemption of fﬁﬁﬂiﬁ“ @?x,éfﬁﬁ/% KIA
investments 321 1,841
Settlement of deferred considerations FERBELERE 34 (11,848) (50,000)
Net cash generated from (used in) REZHRE (FTH)
investing activities REFH 55,877 (64,634)
Financing activities b & E B
Repayment of borrowings BERE 49 (8,512) (65,280)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TERERREFT 1S 3KIE 1,663 2,464
Repayment for lease liability BEMHEAE 49 (13,359) -
Net cash used in financing activities METBRMARESEE (20,208) (62,816)
Net decrease in cash and RERAESEEYRL FE
cash equivalents (56,681) (133,374)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HzZBEK
BREZEY 269,578 410,117
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX#EHH T E (7,367) (7,165)
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—-HEER
at 31 December, represented ReZEY NBITHER
by bank balances and cash kEE 205,530 269,578
Analysis of the balances of REeERAESEEYER
cash and cash equivalents: DT
Bank balances and cash fﬁﬁ e 205,530 269,578
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The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company's registered office is Victoria Place, 5" Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong is Suites 3001-11, Tower
Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods, securities brokerage, insurance
brokerage, asset management and loan financing operation
including loan financing, financial guarantee services, loan
referral and consultancy services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2. RAFG] RBEFTNRBHM

R EELIE S e
#])
RAEFEREERNHITREEITERY
B|EER

RAFE AEEBEXERTIEEGS
fhrg ([HEETMAE])BMmaEal
KRBT BB M GRS R

BEATERE HeE
AERIZE 1658
A (BBEME FGEHEEZ
WERE THETE 1
Z8g) 2k
%235k
BEATERE BB B@/E R
AERIZEIRAY B
(EEIP:N
BEA AR 18R] - Ha RSk E
1958 AY HE
BRI A
BEAGFER REE AR REE
5285 1Y TENREEZR
(EEIPN
BEARERE BB GRS AR
B RT A —E—FHFE
—E—tFRH
2 FEWE

BR T Rt & 50 - AN 4R 2 B AR T AT R A8
(EFT BB R EERYAE B E /T M iB
EFEZUBRARKRER LZEHEE
BRI BBELBEATE -
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New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
("HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has
not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the
carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied
since commencement dates, but discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application by applying
HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and comparative information has not
been restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on
lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

i. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ending within 12
months of the date of initial application; and

ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

2. ERFNE] RAEERT B AR
B R ([FAM B RS
A8 ]) (@)

R EERSE RN T REBTE ST

BHREER (8)
2.1 BB B ERFE 165 HE (18)
ERFEEA (8)

RBERFEAELVHREERNE6
SRR BT B AR - N & IR (A B
HMEEEKUTAITEEDEEAR
RRIRBEREGHEUEITRDOAS
REHENHE (AEBHEESLE
BERR)

. WEBABEMBAUBEEMEEES
HAE—IRK:

i BEIAAHBENEXERBH
BE12EANEROEERERE
AREENRTHEAGE &

i. RERERBHRNEREEER
EMER T8 BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’%‘lﬁ'_A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

70

i E

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (c

ontinued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The incremental

—NE+T-A=+—HIFE

E‘EE\'JJ) ()

BHREER (8)

2. JEAIATR] RASHERT O BB B
Bl EER ([BEYHHRE

RAFERFHERNHTREEITEEM

2.1 BB BHREERFE 165 HE (18)

ERATA ()

BRAEIDBARKEHENEEN
HE&ER: $’§IEEA§/AVE% H
HEMAHEEEEEMNE
R AEBMERZIBEEREN XA

,Tj:t £ %‘J

borrowing rate applied by the Group at 6.37%. 6.37% °
At
1 January
2019
R=ZZ-NF
—HA—AH
HK$'000
TET
Operating lease commitments RZZE—-N\FF+ZA=1+—HEEHD
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 R E AR 29,037
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant RAEREERENXMRNEEARE
incremental borrowing rate 27,755
Less: Practical expedient WA ITHEE A A -HERE R ERH R
— lease with lease term ending FR2EAAAERZEE
within 12 months from
the date of initial application (1,803)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—NF-—HA—HHNHEEEE 25,952
Analysed as paR i
Current mE 15,911
Non-current JERE 10,041
25,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. JE AT R&KIEZTH BB

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EER] ([ FETBHRE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) 2R o
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily REFEREERNEHTREETESRH
effective for the current year (Continued) BmEER (&)
2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 2.1 BB BHEERZ 1655 HE (18)
As a lessee (Continued) EBEMA ()
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 RZE-—NF-—A—AEREEEDN
January 2019 comprises the following: FEEBRENUATEIE:
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
HK$'000
FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to FERE B EERF 165718 MR
operating leases recognised KREHERBENEREEE
upon application of HKFRS 16 25,515
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BB EERBEFH 918 23,021
48,536
By class: BER -
Leasehold lands MHE Lt 23,021
Office premises WREYSE 25,515
48,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (c

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

e

ontinued)

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

2. JEAIATR] RASHERT O BB B
REER ([BEMBRE
EEE'JJ) (%)

RAFERFHERNHTREEITEEM

effective for the current year (Continued) BmEER (&)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 2.1 BEAI B HEERZE 169 HE (1B)
As a lessee (Continued) EREMA (&)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts RZE—NF—HA—B 26BN

MRERNCHREELHUATHE-T

position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not REHFEZEAVRBEERN-
affected by the changes have not been included.

Carrying amounts
previously
reported as at

31 December

Carrying amounts
under HKFRS 16
at 1 January

Notes 2018 Adjustments 2019
KRR R-ZE-h#F
—E-N\E -A—BRE
+ZA=t+-H ERMBREER
BizE EHRNEEE HAE F16ENREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Right-of-use assets BREEE - 48,536 48,536
Prepaid lease payments ENHEEHE (@) 22,302 (22,302) =
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments BREENE (@) 719 (719) =
Current liabilities TBAE
Trade payables, other payables ERER HtEARIER
and accruals Bt E R (b) (81,659) 39 (81
Lease liabilities HEaR - (15,911) (15,
Non-current liabilities krREaE
Lease liabilities HEaR - (10,041) (10,041)
Capital and reserves BEXRG#E
Accumulated losses 2EtBE 1,175,321 398 1,175,719
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Upfront payments for leasehold land in PRC in which
the Group obtained relevant land use certificate were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the non-current and
current portions of prepaid lease payments amounting
to HK$22,302,000 and HK$719,000 respectively were
reclassified to right-of-use assets.

These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of
properties in which the lessors provided rent-free period.
The carrying amount of the lease incentive liabilities as
at 1 January 2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at
transition.

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended

31

December 2019, movements in working capital

have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 as
disclosed above.

2. RG] MEEIEFTHE B
B R ([FAM B RS
A8 ]) (@)

RAFEBRFHERNHTREEITEEM
BHREER (8)

2.1 BB EHREERFE 165 HE ()
fERERA ()
GEE

(a) AEBEEREHEBLILFERENSD
HEITHHBEMNZRBERZ-_ZE—N\F
+-—A=t+—BHEABNHEERE-
RIERE B RS ERF1651%
BAAERERERS RRBHS (£
Al £22,302,0007% 7T 5%719,0005% 7T )
EEFNOBEEEREEE-

() WEHEARKEAHZEENEN
EHHERBEEH HEEEAER
“E-NAF-A-HNREERBE
BREEEAEEE-

RREBEERZERBE_FT-NF
TZAZ=t - BULEFEREZELZEH
MAESREMS SEESEH IR
BENFBEBER-_T—NF—HA—H
EI AR S AR At & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("Cco").

Statement of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are account for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16),
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable input is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equal the transaction
price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

76

(Continued)
Statement of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and
the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amounts of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Company's Board of Directors as
its chief operating decision maker.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ending within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured at
the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.
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(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, that is the
date when the Group obtains control, and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.
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(Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on the disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, that is when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives or consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, that is only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)
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(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group
has the right to invoice.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvements, buildings, warehouse held for provision of
storage services, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building
(Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or
“prepaid lease payment (before application of HKFRS 16) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions with note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.
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(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions with note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions with note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or a change
in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions with note 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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924

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions with note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise,except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation,
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group, that is Hong Kong dollars, using the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, that is a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset, all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals, that is partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control, the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units.
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(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require the delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAERTECR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITAE(E)
Financial assets THEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

At the date of initial application/initial recognition,
the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments
in equity instruments as at FVTOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITAE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Revaluation Reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “Other income,
gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group applies the ECL model to the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
loans and interest receivables, deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables); and

— financial guarantee contracts issued.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, other receivables, deposit paid and loans and
interest receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively with internal credit ratings.

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

3. BERNEETHER (#)

¢WMIA (&)
EMEE (8)
T BEERE

AEERRBEEVHERE ERNFOTE
TTRENSREERRAREERERE-
EHEEERSBNERSAREN A
[ BR B 1116 MR A K 2 5 & R &

AEBEEAEREEEHREAT TIISEA:

- BEERAFGENCREE (BRE
WEREME e BHekHeFE
H B KBRS R A BUYGRIR) &

- BEfFERERERED-

2HEHEEREEN BRI AN F
HAMEARRNEHELNTRREES
Bk 2EAEHREERE ([12EA
BHEEBE])ERARES B BRI
BEAARAEELENENEHELENT S 2
HEREERR -FAEDRBEAKERE
EEBREREL YMEFARERE
—REEMNRA R H R RE B 82 Rk
SRR BGROR TERI B R VR 2

7K S ) — B B AU B 2 B 4 AR RO
Bt &K SRR 8RR A
EEFR- RS aENBBENERDH
BB A SRS AT AR R 5
PR PO B0 (3 B ST AR T B BT A

103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, for example, a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEXE®FTEHR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIA(H)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CRMEERME (&)
(i) Definition of default (i) BANTER
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers HABEERREEmMS AKER
an event of default occurs when information developed EL%’JEE@W‘B@iI?l\*EXﬁ%HX
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that MERBETREBANKABEREREA
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the (BREAER) 2EEHERREEE (I
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals BEREMAEEFENEMR) -
held by the Group).
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that i B R - 8 &/ E E B
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 365 KK AEERR B EAE
365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and D BRIEAEEESERAIEERE
supportable information to demonstrate that a more AERAE BRAENRES REH -
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (i) EERENESBHEE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more E—HaEMHemEEMTRKIER
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the EREEETNEENENSHESE
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have F-ZemEEAHBREERE
occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes FHeREELHREERENZERE
observable data about the following events: FEHEBATEEMIEEE:
a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the a) BITAXNERALBRERYBRE
borrower; L
b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due by TEMTEBFXBPNFELT
event; =3
c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or 0 BERANERARBBERAY
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s BRENKEXNEGNRRA 4 TE
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a FAE—RBEATTISEENE
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise Bk
consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets write-off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default, that is the magnitude of
the loss if there is a default, and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAERTECR ()
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITAE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables, deposit paid and loans and interest
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to accumulated
losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

110

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, deferred
consideration, trade payables and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (for example,
convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification
is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are amortised
over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer, that
is the guarantor, to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the contracted fee
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within liabilities from guarantees. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The guarantee issued and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is initially recognised at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to guarantees
issued.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs
on the financial guarantees are determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “liabilities from financial guarantees”
in respect of the guarantees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHEUER (#)

(Continued)
Guarantees issued (Continued)
Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(i) Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the
goods or the counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. EAEFTHER

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personal services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEZFTHE M fHET AR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
a finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful life reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with a finite useful life. The residual
values reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group
would currently obtain from the disposal of the assets, after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were
already of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of their useful lives.

Impairment loss on interests in associates

The directors of the Company regularly review the recoverable
amount of the associates (including its goodwill). Determining
whether impairment is required involves the estimation of
the value in use less costs of disposal of the associates which
exceed the carrying amount of the associates. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying
amount of associates net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$267,410,000, amounted to HK$Nil.

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

4. BE ST HE MG ET T AR

A=A F ERRE (5

EETHBRZENEERR

TNIRBEBERENEZRR LN RE IR
A THAHRENEMEZRIR (BAGHA
REFTEVBRFENEERAGBHNRE
BEHBREANEAENENRR) -

IR A

AREERYME -BEMRE EHEEE
MEBBRERAFHNELEENMGTE
AFERR EEREGTERERERER
EE R F AR E R o A E R F
RREZHASE B BERAEEYE
BELEE ERAREERABEERER
FHNELEEELERREEN Dbt
HHE - RERREZFHHEERSEENR
AR N E A F RSN REER
it & B E RS A AR S8 CEMBR (AT
HEMRA) -

B &0 ] B EET7R

AAREETHERBE AR ZAAKE S
H(REERE) CETREZERE
B S RETBERZERAEAERESD
ERARTBBHE N ZEmME E5t
BEFEAEER ASBAGTERESE
EHMRRBEREMTEREZABEITR
Ko MEBRARKRE REERIBL BIF
EEEAEAREEE - R_Z—NEFER
—E-N\E+-A=+—0 BMEATZ
BRMEE (B 0k 25T R EE18267,410,000
BIL)BEBTTe

123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

124

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment mainly represents the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment other than warehouse
is determined with reference to the fair value less costs
of disposal of those property, plant, and equipment. The
recoverable amount of warehouse is determined based on a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using the depreciated
replacement cost approach. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment other
than the carrying amount of warehouse is HK$82,650,000
(2018: HK$92,416,000), is HK$3,701,000 (2018:
HK$6,850,000).

Prepaid lease payment represents the upfront payments for
leasehold land in the PRC. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the prepaid lease payments were reclassified to right-of-use
assets.

Prepaid lease payments and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
with reference to the fair value of the right-of-use assets
less costs to sell or the future expected cash flows. An
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where
the recoverable amount is less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments and right-of-use assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of prepaid lease payments and
right-of-use assets is determined based on a valuation
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group, using the depreciated
replacement cost approach. The carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments under right-of-use assets is HK$21,914,000
(prior to 1 January 2019 before application of HKFRS 16,
prepaid lease payment is HK$23,021,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, no impairment loss has been recognised for
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
right-of-use assets.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires significant
judgment and estimation, in particular, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk and credit-impaired financial
assets as well as the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by a number
of factors, changes in which can result in different levels
of allowances. At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort
for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are set out in note 51(b).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$32,722,000 (2018:
HK$143,979,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$133,050,000 (2018: HK$21,793,000).

Fair values of identifiable intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of the
reporting period or recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In order
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates with reference to the valuation results produced by
an independent professional valuer.

Fair value of contingent consideration receivables

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables arising
on the acquisition of subsidiaries was determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select
an appropriate basis from a variety of methods and makes
assumptions, including the discount rates, estimation of
post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries
and the probability of meeting their profit targets. They
are subsequently re-measured to fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in assumptions used could
materially affect the fair value of the balances and as a result
affect the Group's financial position and results of operation.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of contingent consideration receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of contingent consideration receivables
as at 31 December 2019 was HK$39,136,000 (2018:
HK$13,686,000).

Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The
inputs to this model are taken from observable markets
where possible but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2019 was HK$2,277,000 (2018: HK$9,249,000) after taking
into account the impairment losses of HK$5,722,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$NIil).
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock
price, future interest rates and the timing with respect to the
exercise of the options. The effects of a change in one or
more of these variables could result in a materially different
fair value.

Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expenses required
to fulfil the relevant obligations of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses. Such
estimation is made based on the available information as at
the end of each reporting period and is determined by the
Group's practical experience, default history of the business,
taking into consideration of industry information and market
data. It is possible that the practical experience and default
history is not indicative of future loss on the guarantees
issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2019 related to the unremitted

earnings of the PRC subsidiaries that are subject to

withholding taxes once distributed.

4. BEE@;

T T Kok 5T~ RA BA
AERTERR (&)

EHRHBEENEEROR (&)
Fifidr]

ARBEFHHEMNB LR 2 BRBEERA
BERDEGR - AXRREER R TEMN
BRARATKAERAIRARRE IS
t R NFEARKE L E L BB
DA TR R AR TR B A R BE 22
AHERRIMELE A -

5. REVENUE 5. YA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REERFANRASHIOT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Sales of goods HEEm 66,002 60,043
Warehouse storage income B EFBIRA 13,444 13,342
Income from loan financing business EXREEBZHA
— Loan referral and consultancy ~ERENRABARBEE
services fee 32,370 56,731
— Interest income from loans receivables — W E R ZF B A 2,320 5,529
— Guarantee fee income from financial —REERZEREBIRA
guarantees 27,730 7,762
Income from securities brokerage business & F 442 E 5 2 WA
— Interest income from margin financing —REFEEHE ZHMEMRA 271 332
— Commission income from securities —RBHFXHZ2HERA
dealing 125 378
— Commission income from underwriting — Bz Al 9 -
Commission income from insurance RipgaL 2B BA
brokerage 8,596 8,007
Commission income from asset management & & &1 2 & U A 138 471
151,005 152,595

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. The Group is organised into the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of a warehouse in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in the PRC.

— Loan financing segment represents the provision of
financial guarantee, loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and the PRC.

— Securities brokerage segment represents the operation of
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placements in Hong Kong.

— Asset management segment engages in the provision of
asset management services in Hong Kong.

— Insurance brokerage segment represents the provision of
insurance brokerage and agency services in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment revenues and results

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

i

D EBE R ()
O T

AT RAEERA 2 Wm0 5 & 58 RA K&
E =R

BE-_Z-NF+ZA=+—HLFE

il

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage  management brokerage Total
I%#A
NEER -RE% ENRE FHEL BEER RBREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER TER TET TET TET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2HRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-REBER - 66,002 323170 134 138 8,596 107,240
Recognised over time EREEER 13,444 - 21,730 - - - 41,174
Recognised from other source BEAREEER - - 2,320 m - - 2,591
13,444 66,002 62,420 405 138 8,596 151,005
SEGMENT RESULTS PHEE (5,949) 2872 (82,800) (2,470) (2,983) 267 (91,063)
Unallocated corporate income KABBEYA 193
Unallocated corporate expenses FABLEME (48,135)
Unallocated finance costs FAREBAK (2,594)
Fair value change on contingent EUSARELATELD
consideration receivables 34,602
Fair value change on financial assets BRAVEFABENEREEL
at fair value through profit or loss NTERE 986
Impairment loss on amounts due El-BHENAREZAERE
from an associate (10)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHEFR (111,257)
Loss before tax BHAER (217,278)
Income tax credit FEhES 10,883
Loss for the year rEEFR (206,395)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

. N SIOR N e
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7 EPE R ()
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBMAREE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_ZT-—\F+_A=+—HILFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Total
I%A
NEER —%E85 ENRE FHER BEER RS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FhET FET FiEn FiEx T ThL
SEGMENT REVENUE AEHRA
Recognised at a point in time RE-BHERA = 60,043 56,731 378 471 8,007 125,630
Recognised over time FREHE R 13,342 = 7,762 = = = 21,104
Recognised from other source B A RRE B - - 5,529 EEY) - - 5,861
13,342 60,043 70,022 710 a7 8,007 152,595
SEGMENT RESULTS NHxE (6.925) 4,255 54,605 (2.287) (5,405) (435) 43,808
Unallocated corporate income RABCERA 187
Unallocated corporate expenses APBAFHZ (47,660)
Unallocated finance costs FAWBBHKA (4,628)
Fair value change on contingent EUAARBATEED
consideration receivables 3,807
Fair value change on financial assets BRATEGABENEREEL
at fair value through profit or loss ATEEY (4,858)
Impairment loss on amounts due El—HEE A RRE L REEE
from an associate (9)
Impairment loss on goodwil BEIREEE (7143)
Share-based payments IR % 3R (40313)
Loss on written off of property, WENE BERRELEE
plant and equipment 8)
Other receivables written off s E YRR (590)
Other payables written back BEE R F0E 545
Loss before tax BRAIEE (56,862)
Income tax expense FERR (1,741)
Loss for the year ~EEER (58,603)

All of the segment revenues reported above are from external

customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segments.

At 31 December 2019

il

D EBE R ()
ANEEREE

T RAKEEERE BT 255258
DI o

R-ZZ-AF+=-A=+—H

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage  management brokerage Total
I%#A
NEER -RE% EXRE EHERL BEER RBREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER TER TET TET TET FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 109,082 37,302 491,156 11,864 2,648 2,835 654,887
Unallocated bank balances and cash FABRTERRRS 4,521
Unallocated property, KARNE BERRE
plant and equipment 2,544
Unallocated other receivables, FARAMEURE BARERES
prepayments and deposits 4,612
Unallocated right-of-use assets KAREAREE 15,257
Unallocated goodwill FIRBHE 32,722
Unallocated financial assets at fair value  KARZAFEFAL2EAREH
through other comprehensive income ~ £BEE 3,684
Unallocated financial assets at fair FABRATEFABENEHERE
value through profit or loss 28,664
Unallocated contingent FARERRARE
consideration receivable 39,136
Consolidated total assets RABEAE 786,027
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHEE 80,389 23 230,208 861 - 27 311,928
Unallocated other payables RARAMEATE 506
Unallocated deferred consideration FKARBERE 5,853
Unallocated lease liabilities FAREEEE 16,003
Consolidated total liabilities GREREE 334,290
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE
. yaiva
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D EBE R (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEHREE(E)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Total
I%A
NEER —%E85 ENRE FHER BEER RS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FhET FET FiEn FiEx T ThL
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 142,297 40,292 476,090 15,839 2,539 2,769 679,826
Unallocated bank balances and cash RABBKTERRRS 11,090
Unallocated property, plant and equipment ~ KAEMNE * BE Rk 5277
Unallocated other receivables, FARAMEKE BNTERES 4,754
prepayments and deposits
Unallocated goodwill FOREE 143,979
Unallocated financial assets at fair value RAEELTFEF AL L2 AREH 14,492
through other comprehensive income tREE
Unallocated financial assets at fair value FARBRATEIABRNEREE 37,552
through profit or loss
Unallocated contingent consideration RABRYHARE 13,686
receivables
Consolidated total assets GRAESR 910,656
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabilties AHaE 90,419 2 124,501 1418 40 443 216,843
Unallocated other payables FABEBEMNTR 3,563
Unallocated deferred consideration RAEELEARE 25,625
Consolidated total liabilities GAREREEE 246,031
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE

6. DEBE K} (&
Hig & #
BE-Z-NF+-A=+—HLEE

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management  brokerage  Unallocated Total
I%R
NERR -RES ERRE BHEL BEER RBRER FAR by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FER TET TER TET TER TET TER TET
Information included in segment results/ SADBEE/PHEENER
seqment assets:
Amortisation and depreciation BHERNE 9,012 - 3,458 /] 14 3 12,999 25,578
Bank interest income RITFSMA (35) (43) 317) (6) = @ ®) (813)
Entrusted loan interest income ZHEZFISMA - - (719) - - - = (719)
Other loan interest income EEFRFIBMA = = (14,561) = = = = (14,561)
Investment income from National Debt Reverse REBEFRBERIRERA
Repurchase products - - (155) - - - - (155)
Investment income from financial assets RERATETABRN
at fair value through profit or loss EREEIRERA = = = = = = (166) (166)
Finance costs BIBRA 5,599 - 39 - - - 2,594 8,232
Fair value change on financial assets BATEGABRNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRTEEE - - 304 - - - (986) (682)
Fair value change on contingent EUAARBATESR
consideration receivables - - - - - - (34,602) (34,602)
Impairment losses (reversal of impairment losses) RESE (BREESE) - 264 18,128 ®) = = = 18,384
Impairment loss on intangible assets EVEERERR - - 5,722 - - - - 5,722
Provision for financial quarantees REERER - - 84,120 - - - - 84,120
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_ZT-\FT+A=T—HLEFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage  management brokerage  Unallocated Total
I%RE
NELR vt ERRE FHEL AEER RRMEL RAR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FHT Ti#n T TiEx T FET T
Information included in segment results/ SAPBEE/ PHEENER:
segment assets:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 8,280 = 2,252 56 18 23 2,644 13,273
Bank interest income RIMERA (18) (673) (716) @ - (1) (51) (1,486)
Entrusted loan interest income ZREFHSMA = = (850) = = = = (850)
Other loan interest income HpERFBHA = = (14,885) = = = - (14,885)
Investment income from National Debt Reverse REBELOBERIRERA
Repurchase products - - (1,465) - - - - (1,465)
Investment income from financial assets BRATEGABRNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZREWRA - - (376) = = = = (376)
Finance costs B A 6,072 = 860 = - = 4,628 11,560
Fair value change on financial assets RATEGABENEREE
at fair value through profit or loss ZRTEEE - - (6,247) - - - 4,858 (1,389)
Fair value change on contingent EUAARBATEED
consideration receivables - - - - - - (3,807) (3,807)
Loss on written off of property, plant and equipment  #i&¥1% - HE kB2 EE - - 18 - - - 8 26
Impairment losses REEE - - 7512 1 - = = 7,523
Other receivables written off WEE Y E - - 1298 - - - 590 1,888
Other payables written back ROE M ERFE - - (941) - - - (545) (1,486)
Provision for financial quarantees BELEREE - - 1,302 - - - = 1,302
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the
locations of operations and information about its non-current
assets other than deferred tax assets by geographical location
of the assets are detailed below:

D EBE R ()

i & E R

7 £ B A o T b B AR A B

AT 27 2 [ AR 18 465 45 140 8 3 15 SN PR B

HIRARREEMAERE DN IERBE
E(REMBREERIN 2E#:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMREFHBA FRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“g-n%F  -T\F  ®-aF  -TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET THET
Hong Kong N 10,121 12,130 86,969 210,452
PRC h 140,884 140,465 115,994 126,200
151,005 152,595 202,963 336,652
Information about major customer EREXEEFNEHR

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

REBFERBEAREEBKAI0% A
ER—REPZWAMT

as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERT FETT
Customer A' BEEA 55,377 17,928

' Revenue from general trading.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HAUWA - e K g8

2019 2018
—E-hAE Z—ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fair value change on: B@AATEES:
Contingent consideration receivables JEM S A RAE 34,602 3,807
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEFABENEREE
profit or loss 682 1,389
Interest income from: FEWAKRE :
Bank deposits RITF K 413 1,486
Entrusted loan ZRER 719 850
Other loans HMER 14,561 14,885
Investment income from: KERAKE :
Financial asset at fair value through BEATEFABENEREE
profit or loss 166 376
National Debt Reverse Repurchase Bl & 2 Bl B =
products 155 1,465
Net foreign exchange loss ME W BT 1R H ER (27) (22)
Other receivables written off $i 5 L A fE W sk IR - (1,888)
Other payables written back 18 [0] B b J& T 5RIR - 1,486
Service fee income ARTE B UL A 2,263 2,192
Management service income BB RBUA 7,381 3,857
Bad debt recovered ZARY 1,882 -
Impairment loss on amounts due FEM —E B &R R IR BB B
from an associate (10) 9)
Sundry income I A 689 1,049
63,476 30,923
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BI MR AR
2019 2018
—E-hAE Z—ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Effective interest on convertible notes MR EEERNE - 296
Imputed interest on deferred consideration EZER B & (HE T8 1,228 4,332
Imputed interest on lease liabilities HEABNHERNS 1,405 S
Interest on bank loans RITERAE 5,599 6,072
Interest on other loans H &3 8 - 860
8,232 11,560
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 9. FIEEE IR E
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAETT
Impairment losses recognised on: EHRTIEBEZRERBE:
— Trade receivables and other receivables — & U AR B K B Ath B W SRIE 4,229 2,021
— Loans and interest receivables —ERERRFE 14,100 5,273
— Other deposits —HMize 55 229
18,384 7,523
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 HE_ZT-NFTA=T—RHLFEZ
December 2019 are set out in note 51(b). /Uﬂépﬂﬁuﬁ BRI EES1(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 1057158 (%) FA X
2019 2018
—E-hE Z—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current tax: = TR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 1b 2K P 1S A 425 858
Under provision in prior years: AEFERETT:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax H B 1 SE AT 1S A 76 193
Deferred tax (Note 38): EERIE (M15E38) -
Current year KEE (11,384) 690
(10,883) 1,741
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZE-N\F=RA=-+—B BELEEG
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 Wi CQ0N7ERBE (BET) (B75%) &0
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates BR) (IMEHER]) - 5| AFEH MR
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and fleZ GO ERR_ZE—NEF=A=_+TN
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered AEEZENREZEZANRBZAEERTIE -
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits BEMNEGHMAH cEKREEEEBNE
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and 2£2,000,0007% JT 4 F) # A8.25% Y B &
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The R TR 182,000,000 7T 2 % A # LA
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered 16.5% B B KA o AT & 15 5/ AR 5l
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate ERMEBEERN GG EEL165% 8
of 16.5%. B — TR
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10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued) 10.F715 8 (%) XX (@)

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group's
subsidiaries in Hong Kong have no estimated assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT"”) is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise Income Tax
Policies for Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region and Xinjiang
Kashgar Autonomous Region ( (M B & BEIRH B LB
AR ERTERRTMASASERERCEMS
REREKEAEE) ) promulgated by the State Council
on 29 November 2011, if a corporate enterprise is newly
established within calendar years 2010 to 2020 in two
specific regions with business fallen within the scope of
the Catalogue of Preferred Enterprise Income Tax for Key
Encouraged Industries in Poor Areas of Xinjiang ( {78 &
BEWESHSBEREZCEMSHEERB ) ), the
corporate enterprise can enjoy a preferential tax treatment,
that is 5-year exemption, from the first year when the entity
begins to generate revenue. Two subsidiaries incorporated in
Khorgos are exempted from income tax upon the approval by
the State Taxation Bureau of the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region in year 2017 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

10.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued) 10.F715 % () M (®)
The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be reconciled REEMEN (Be) A EEEERE
to the loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit K H A 2 T U 2 3R PR O BR 5 AT B 1B ST BR 20
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™~
2019 2018
—E-hFE —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHETT
Loss before taxation BR B A E5 18 (217,278) (56,862)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of == Wﬁﬁ A E25%
25% (2018: 25%) —N\F:25%) (54,319) (14,216)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible T—HD MAX BB E
for tax purpose 36,458 19,711
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG ANTFEE
for tax purpose (7.704) (9,461)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETRE 76 193
Tax effect of unrecognised REREFEENBMGHE
temporary differences 69 (16)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEEMEEEL
as deferred tax asset MIBEBNMBTE 14,639 9,843
Tax effect of tax exemption granted RERBRENHBEE (11,650) (13,130)
Utilisation of tax losses previously HAATARERNTIEES
not recognised (48) (253)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries P E fth B A #E & 258 1 T /B
operating in other jurisdictions AR TR R 2 11,596 9,070
Income tax (credit) expense for the year FHNFED (KR)FAx (10,883) 1,741
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R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

11.LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the

following items:

NANEEZEEE

ARERBBCHR TIIEBRER:

2019 2018
—B-hAE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHEIT
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A8 & FRIA B 5 - 750
Amortisation of intangible assets | E ER 1,113 1,165
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN £
— audit services —ZERB 1,300 1,100
— other services — B RTE 1,140 800
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses #3245 X B 17 & K A 62,399 56,702
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 12,971 -
Depreciation of property, ME BWERREOITE
plant and equipment 11,494 11,358
Total minimum lease payments for leases ERIRBEEBGHEINE175%
previously classified as operating DERKEREZZEHE
lease under HKAS 17 (Note) R4 EE (M5E) - 15,096
Lease payments for short-term lease WARFABREREFEZREH
not included in the measurement of ME R (HEE)
lease liabilities (Note) 2,314 -
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & TAXA (BIEE BB ) 48,025 50,626
Share-based payments VARR 10 > - 538 - 40,313

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS17.
After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019,
the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of
right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2.

12.DIVIDENDS

142

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018:
HK$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEMTAER (BERA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &1 (5 622&)%3831'7& /Nl
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEEFRER) R (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 6226%)&? 5 FmRBIRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT H K FE )

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

() EBERTTHARME

RIFER LR EEE QBRI
BRNESERTRARFAMSOT

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-_ZFT-hAF+-A=1+—-HLHF

B
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes  emoluments
e 2 BARER
ik REMER Mg A BE Mo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TEL TET TERT TERT TEL
Executive directors BTES
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman AR REE (EF)
(Note a) (FzEa) - 3,600 300 18 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, Chief BRBEE (THER)
Executive Officer (Note b) (HzED) = 1,200 = 18 1,218
Mr. ZHANG Peidong SRR A& - 360 - 18 378
- 5,160 300 54 5,514
Independent non-executive BIEHITES
directors
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BEREE 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE 360 - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang BT oET 180 - - - 180
900 - - - 900
Total emoluments o) ke 900 5,160 300 54 6,414
RPESRERERAR | ZT—NLFF®m 143
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R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

1BEZEM = &Fﬁﬁ( /NG
& (35622F
(FHBEEEFz ’éfﬂ)%ﬁ%(’“
622G E ) M &BE
M E) (@)

() EERTHARME (18)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE —N\F+ZHA=1T—HLF
[Z
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
e 2K RN
e H b & [l gl FEIf R WeBsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FET TET TET FET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chairman AR REE(ER)
(Note a) (BtzEa) = 3,600 300 18 3,918
Mr. YANG Dayong, Chief BARBEAE (TTRAEH)
Executive Officer (Note b) (Bi3ED) = 676 = 4 630
Mr. ZHANG Peidong SRR £ A& = 720 = 18 738
- 4,996 300 40 5,336
Independent non-executive B EHITES
directors
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor BAREE 360 = = = 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu ARFEE 360 - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang BfaEL 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie (Note ¢) REAAREL (fiEEc) 156 - - - 156
1,236 - - - 1,236
Total emoluments [k 1,236 4,996 300 40 6,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE
13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEEMTAER (BERA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION &1 (5 622&)%3831'7& /Nl
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (BFEEEFRER) R (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 6226%)&? 5 FmRBIRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT M EE) ()

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr. LIU Kequan ceased to act as the chief executive officer
with effect on 8 June 2018.

(b) Mr. YANG Dayong was appointed as an executive director
of the Company and the chief executive officer with effect
on 8 June 2018.

(c) Dr. RUI Mingjie retired as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 6 June 2018.

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. No incentive payment for
joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

() EERTHARME (/8)

GEE

@ BmREEB-_Z-NFRANBE
TEECTHRAER -

b)) BABEEB-ZT—-—N\FANBE
BEZE/ARRRNITEE RITHRAEH -

(0 WARBELTEZ-Z-N\FARBE
RERRRIBMYIFRNITES -

BE T NFE-_Z-N\F+_A
—t+—BLFE HEEEHEEM
e - REE-_FT-NLFE-_FT—-N
F+_A=+—BHLEFEAR BEMR
EREEZNHENEMRIE ER
AR E 2 22

FIRTEEMNE D EBRBEERE
—E-NEER_ZE—NE+=A
=+ BLHFEREEHEEEARQT
MRS B ERE RS ST o

FHERITEEME I EEREER
B2 ZT2—NW&EFr-_Z—N\F+_-H
—t+t—BUHFEEEAQIRIZEKNB
RAEENRB M T

FHBIERNITEETMES D EBRE
EREBE2_ZT—NEFEER_ZE—N\HF
T+ A=+—HIEFEETARRFK
HB AR ZESMRE ST -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

13.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS BEZFMNzMER (B2 A

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2018: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

14.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included two directors (2018: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor a chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

“hER=#HEER

FAXEEREERFEEERFERE (=
T-N\F: —R)BES EMeFBHR
FXWHFI3 - BT =R (ZE—N\F:
BIWHEARRESRITHRABHN TS FH
BEERFANBESFBOT

2019 2018

—E-NE —T-)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R RHMER 5,525 8,100
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R K +& Fl &t 2] 4 5% 54 72
Share-based payment expenses ARR 9 2 A RRIB R 2 - 2,907
5,579 11,079

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company and whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

ATHINLEARREETHNRSHEEA
e i HH) Fr M

2019 2018

“E-AFE —ZT—)\F

No. of No. of

employees employees

BEAHE EE AZ

HK$ nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T &£ 1,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0017& 7T & 1,500,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7c £2,000,0007% 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ JT £3,000,000/% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T £3,500,0007% 7T - 2
3 4
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R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—

15.LOSS PER SHARE

—NWE+-_A=+—BItFE
15. F I E 1R

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

RRRHEEAREERERREEEET)
BN IIBIEAE

2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Loss BB
Loss for the year attributable to owners of MABEERELREEMSH
the Company for the purpose of RNAGIEB ABIGEFANEIR
basic loss per share (206,395) (58,603)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BeET TRk FE:
Interest on convertible notes (net of tax) @R EERFE (?D P18 ) - -
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss per share FLEtESFREEEEmM S B
g (206,395) (58,603)
2019 2018
ZE2E-NAF —ZZ)\F
‘000 ‘000
TR F i
Number of shares &5 &E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 38 % hn#g F 19 & B 6,923,930 6,894,750

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company, and the weighted
average number of shares approximately 6,923,930,000
ordinary shares (2018: 6,894,750,000) in issue.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share
options since this would result in a decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the same as the
basic loss per share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share options
since this would result in a decrease in loss per share. No
adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2018 for the conversion of the
outstanding convertible notes as it would result in a decrease
in loss per share. Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is the
same as the basic loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.9% - B M &
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvements Warehouse equipment vehicles Total
BR-HER
HEMERE BE B AE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FET
Cost 2
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N\E—-A—H 10,299 161,893 4,024 3,439 179,655
Additions RE 198 3,276 343 570 4,387
Write-off ik = = (98) (350) (448)
Exchange realignment IE X R - (8,534) (84) (98) (8,716)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\EF
1 January 2019 +ZA=+—HAk
—E-A&E—A—H 10,497 156,635 4,185 3,561 174,878
Additions NE - - 87 - 87
Exchange realignment BE 5 3R = (2,724) (29) (32) (2,785)
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-h&
+=ZA=+-8H 10,497 153,911 4,243 3,529 172,180
Depreciation and impairment WERRE
At 1 January 2018 R-Z—-N\E—-A—H 4,364 59,366 2,795 1,682 68,207
Provided for the year REFEE 2,065 8,271 434 588 11,358
Write-off i = . (90) (332) (422)
Exchange realignment bE N R (3,418) (59) (54) (3,531)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ—\&F
1 January 2019 +ZRA=+—HBk
—E-NF—A—8 6,429 64,219 3,080 1,884 75,612
Provided for the year REZEE 2,099 8,278 475 642 11,494
Exchange realignment IE i - (1,236) (21) (20) (1,277)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h&F
+=A=+-AH 8,528 71,261 3,534 2,506 85,829
Carrying amounts HREE
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-h&
+=ZA=+-8H 1,969 82,650 709 1,023 86,351
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=Z+—H 4,068 92,416 1,105 1,677 99,266
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Ttz -BERZEEEFER TIFE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per REGEEFENE:
annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of remaining THEHERE R4 A EH 2 20%
unexpired terms of (LABIAE & 2%
the leases and 20%
Warehouse 5% B E 5%
Furniture, fixtures and ~ 10%-33% G- HENEHE 10% 233%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-33% il 20% £33%
The warehouse is situated on land in the PRC held under a BEMRFPELH - BEFHERRAL
medium-term to long-term land use right. i RERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

17.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

150

17 REEE

Leasehold Office
lands premises Total
HELTH BOAEYWHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 R=FB—-NE—-—H—8
Carrying amounts BREE 23,021 25,515 48,536
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-I#F
+=—HA=+—8
Carrying amounts FREE 21,914 21,161 43,075
For the year ended BE-Z-1&F
31 December 2019 +tZA=+—-HLEE
Depreciation charge meER 717 12,254 12,971
Exchange realignment e 5, 5 2 (390) (86) (476)
Expense relating to short-term lease 25 HAFA & R AN & X
and other leases with lease terms fE R BB GRS 2R
ending within 12 months of the date 251657 B #§#2121@ A
of initial application of HKFRS 16 A JE i 9 B FE & S R
32 2,314
Total cash outflow for lease HERES ML AR 15,673
Additions to right-of-use assets NEEREEE 7,986

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
1 year to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all
leasehold lands.

Restrictions or covenants on leases of office premises

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$21,825,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$21,161,000 as at 31
December 2019. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

18.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. BT B 5B
The Group's prepaid lease payments are amortised and AEE /BN EERIE LK 207 FE A
charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement BBV BmEERF16R ZAIRERELE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a REHAEGEEs REMmEEEERT
straight-line basis over the lease term prior to the application B8 55 AV B S A BR o
of HKFRS 16 mentioned in note 2.
2018
—E-)\F
HK$'000
FHET
Cost FX <
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 34,145
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (1,771)
Balance at end of the year FOREERR 32,374
Accumulated amortisation Rat#sy
Balance at beginning of the year FYHER 9,105
Amortisation for the year FNEE 750
Exchange realignment PE 52 (502)
Balance at end of the year FRER 9,353
Carrying amounts AREE
Balance at end of the year FRER 23,021
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEMSIHAOT:
Current assets mEN & E 719
Non-current assets EMBEE 22,302
23,021
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R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

19.GOODWILL 19.7 &
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost R A
Balance at beginning and end of the year ~ F ¥ &K F R4 &4 165,772 165,772
Accumulated impairment loss ZitREEER
Balance at beginning of the year F AR 21,793 14,650
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAEBRBIEREE 111,257 7,143
Balance at end of the year FRAER 133,050 21,793
Carrying amount fREE
Balance at end of the year FREERR 32,722 143,979
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are BB ERENHNF BN E215%EE -

disclosed in note 21.
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 0.\ EE
Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
BEEER
REE Ta Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F—H—H 500 10,800 11,300
Exchange realignment B 5 SR —~ 210 210
At 31 December 2018 and RZZT—N\F
1 January 2019 +TZA=+—HBK
—E-NAF—H—H 500 11,010 11,510
Exchange realignment M 5 R = (191) (191)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—hI&F
+=HA=+—H 500 10,819 11,319
Amortisation and impairment R REE
At 1 January 2018 N_ZE—-NF—-—HA—H — 1,206 1,206
Provided for the year FREE - 1,165 1,165
Exchange realignment I X 2 = (110) (110)
At 31 December 2018 and N_E—)\F
1 January 2019 +=—A=4+—8Xk
—_E-NF—H—H - 2,261 2,261
Provided for the year FREE - 1,113 1,113
Impairment loss recognised for the year & N #E R B EE B = 5,722 5,722
Exchange realignment b 5, 73 B — (54) (54)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h#F
+=HA=+—H - 9,042 9,042
Carrying amounts fRHEE
At 31 December 2019 R-EE—hLF
+=—A=+-—8 500 1,777 2,277
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\F
+=ZA=+—H 500 8,749 9,249
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20.\|ILEE (&8)

The trading rights are retained for stock trading and
stockbroking activities. The trading rights are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute
to the net cash flows of the Group indefinitely, and are
not amortised. Instead they will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are
disclosed in note 21.

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

During the year, the management performed impairment
assessment on intangible assets of each cash-generating
unit with aggregated carrying amount of HK$1,777,000 in
accordance with HKAS 36. The management estimated the
recoverable amount of those cash-generating units of which
these intangible assets have been allocated. The recoverable
amounts of those cash-generating units are lower than the
carrying amount of these intangible assets and accordingly,
an impairment loss of HK$5,722,000 is recognised for
information integration platform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 21.

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and the
trading rights with indefinite useful life set out in notes 19
and 20 have been allocated to five individual cash generating
units (CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the insurance
brokerage segment (“Insurance Brokerage CGU"), one
subsidiary in the security brokerage segment (“Security
Brokerage CGU"), two subsidiaries in the asset management
segment (“Asset Management CGU"), the subsidiaries in the
financing referral operation (“Financing Referral CGU") and
subsidiaries in the financing guarantee operation (“Financial
Guarantee CGU"). The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of
accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 allocated to these CGUs are as follows:

7B % B TR A P 4F A 0
7 1 B A

FOREAEME 19k 20E & &
BEERAFERAFH I RSGEESEERE
ERReEFEM ([REEEEMN]) B
EREBEL SN —HHBRF ([1RE
REeReELEN]) BHELLHH—
RMB AR ([BAHELREEEENM])
EEEE HOMENBAR ([BEE
BRSELEEMN]) BREESEN S HHM
BAR(IMEENRESEASM]) L
BERESONBRAA ([MEERRES
EAEBMN]) RZE—NER-_T—NE
+ A=+ —BoEEZEReELEEN
MEE (KR EFTRESE) EmEL T :

Goodwill Trading right
Be RHE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-RhF ZT-)N\F —E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FRT FERT FHL
Insurance Brokerage CGU RELCLReEEEMN 1,537 1,537 - =
Security Brokerage CGU BERUERSEEEN - - 500 500
Asset Management CGU EEEERSELEN 5,230 7,990 = =
Financing Referral CGU MEENIRSELEN 12,370 100,282 = =
Financial Guarantee CGU MERRBSELSEMN 13,585 34,170 = =
Total HEr 32,722 143,979 500 500
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL N.EENEEROFEHRFHT

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuer, the management of the Group has determined that an
impairment loss of HK$111,257,000 (2018: HK$7,143,000)
arose in relation to goodwill allocated to certain groups of
CGUs. There were no material changes in the methodology
and sources of market data applied in the valuation between
2019 and 2018. After reviewing the performance of Asset
Management CGU, Insurance Brokerage CGU, Financing
Referral CGU and Financial Guarantee CGU in 2019, the
management of the Group revised the carrying amounts
of Asset Management CGU, Financing Referral CGU and
Financial Guarantee CGU downwards, based on cash flow
forecasts.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of
the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018. The major underlying assumptions on which
management has based in the preparation of cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are
summarised below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margins based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development.
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Insurance Brokerage CGU
was determined based on a value-in-use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 19.02% (2018: 19.39%). Cash flows after the
three-year period were extrapolated using 3% (2018: 3%)
growth rate, after considering the economic conditions of
the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the recoverable
amount of the Insurance Brokerage CGU estimated from
the cash flow forecast exceeds the carrying amounts,
HK$1,537,000. Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill
of Insurance Brokerage CGU has been recognised in profit or
loss.

Security Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Security Brokerage CGU was
determined based on a value-in-use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 14.33% for the year ended 31 December 2018. Cash
flows after the three-year period were extrapolated using 3%
growth rate, after considering the economic conditions of
the market for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

158

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Asset Management CGU

The recoverable amounts of the Asset Management CGU
were determined based on a value-in-use calculation with
the assistance of the independent professional qualified
valuers not connected with the Group. The calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a three-year period, and at a
discount rate of 16.95% (2018: 16.16% and 16.66%). Cash
flows after the three-year period were extrapolated using
3% (2018: 3%) growth rate, after considering the economic
conditions of the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss
of HK$2,760,000 (2018: HK$18,000) has been provided
in relation to Asset Management CGU as the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$5,230,000 at the
end of the reporting period. The impairment loss arose
as a result of the less than satisfactory past and expected
performance of the Asset Management CGU.

Financing Referral CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financing Referral CGU was
determined based on a value-in-use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 16.93% (2018: 17.02%). Cash flows after the
three-year period were extrapolated using 3% (2018: 3%)
growth rate, after considering the economic conditions of
the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss of
HK$87,912,000 has been provided in relation to Financing
Referral CGU as the recoverable amount of this CGU was
reduced to HK$12,370,000 at the end of the reporting
period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the less than
satisfactory past and expected performance of the Financing
Referral CGU.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

21.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Financial Guarantee CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financial Guarantee CGU
was determined based on a value-in-use calculation with the
assistance of the independent professional qualified valuers
not connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period, and at a discount
rate of 17.38% (2018: 20.19%). Cash flows after the
three-year period were extrapolated using 3% (2018: 3%)
growth rate, after considering the economic conditions of
the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, impairment loss of
HK$20,585,000 has been provided in relation to Financial
Guarantee CGU as the recoverable amount of this CGU
was reduced to HK$13,585,000 at the end of the reporting
period. The impairment loss arose as a result of the less than
satisfactory past and expected performance of the Financial
Guarantee CGU.

22.INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20— E AR MR

1.8 R A ER A% B F 5

EEERRERS @

RERRBESELEM

BMEERBeELESEUMNT KRB SEET
FEASBETEFENBIEELGER
HEMBZ TREFRAEBESEEZETE-
B ERFRAENKEEE ERE=
FHEMPEBEEFRNRSRERAL K
F17.38% (ZZF— \F:20.19% ) W #TIR
K. —FHRENAESRENEREMSL
ERRE  FERA3% (ZE—N\F: 3% )8
WRERES -

BHE_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE"
EdmEERREELESENTIRRERS
$820,585,0008 Ltk VR ZB S E
FBENURBEHROATKESER LD E
13,585,000/ T o EE £ B B ET 18 T B A @l
EERBLEASBMNMNBENTEHESET

/\
= o
on =N

2019 2018

—E-hE —2-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cost of investment in associate — unlisted =~ Rt R EREMKA—IE LT 306,346 306,346
Share of accumulated post-acquisition loss 25t E(H W E R EE &

and other comprehensive expense HEtEmAx (38,936) (38,936)

Less: impairment loss B BB ETE (267,410) (267,410)
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22.INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) NN —EBE AR AR (@)

ATRILETARERAEYEME 2B

The following is the particulars of the associate, which is an

unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not RAINE R :
available:
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation ownership interest
Name and operation attributable to the Company Principal activities
Z8 AMEYREXBTE ARARECGERMEEZELN FEXH
2019 2018
—B-nF "—T)\F
Intraday Financial Information British Virgin 45% 45%  Investment holding
Service Limited (“Intraday Financial”) Islands (“BVI")
(Note a)
EREREEREER QT RERLHES KRE R
(Mg X&) (Mita) (TRBER
HE1)
Note: Bt o -

BEREEKREZAIWESBEIRBEFERE
BEfEET - RAETERERMZAKODE
B ASERAREEEEMEZ O FH
VBEEECOHAIE S RETERN -

(@) The recoverable amount of the investment in Intraday Group (a)
has been determined based on a value in use calculation. To
determine the recoverable amount of Intraday Financial, the
Group used pre-tax cash flow projection based on the financial

budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.

In the previous year, the interest on Intraday Financial was
fully impaired and the Group has already shared the losses of
the Intraday Financial to the extent of the Group's interest in
the associate. The Group has no obligation to take up further
losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised share of
losses of Intraday Group for the current year and cumulatively
were HK$6,000 (2018: HK$4,000) and HK$161,000 (2018:
HK$155,000) respectively. Considering that there is no specific
plan to revamp the business of Intraday Financial, the directors
of the Company are of the view that no reversal of the
allowance for impairment should be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e KRR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. 38 N FEE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE T EEE
INCOME
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Listed investments: LEHRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB L TRRAEF 3,684 14,492
— Equity securities listed in the PRC — B E R R AR 5 2,685 1,380
6,369 15,872
The movement in the fair value of equity securities are as BRAFFZ N FEEEBEHT 0T
follows:
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 25,521
Addition NE 7,574
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses R E A 2 X R (17,108)
Exchange realignment (IR (115)
At 31 December 2018 RNR_E—NF+ZHA=+—8H
and 1 January 2019 kK—_ZE-hF¥—H—H 15,872
Disposal & (7,498)
Recognised in other comprehensive expenses B E At 2 [ B Sz iR (1,961)
Exchange realignment ME W SR (44)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZEBE-NAF+-A=+—H 6,369
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23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

It represents the Group’'s investments in listed equity
securities designated as FVTOCI. All the listed equity securities
are stated at fair values which have been determined by
reference to closing prices quoted in active markets. The
Group does not intend to dispose of these investments in the
near future.

In the current year, the Group disposed part of the equity
securities in Hong Kong, at a consideration of HK$7,498,000.
A revaluation reserve on disposal of HK$95,000 has been
transferred to accumulated losses.

R

2N FER AR MR RS
MEREE (®)

HIEAKERIEEE/EQFESARMD
EHEBEN EMRAESFZRE A L
MRABE SR A FEIR mMAFETS
REEREBRTSMBR BT EMETE -
AEEEBREHALEZSTRE -

RAFE  AEEEEROREBHRA
BEH REBAET,498,0008 T - HEEHEE
A 7 B EE#E95,0008 T D EBRE 25t E

e

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2B AN ET AEGRNEHE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Unlisted investments funds FEFTRERES 30,260 77,695

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERERNDONA:

Current assets MENEE 1,596 40,143

Non-current assets IERBEE 28,664 37,552

30,260 77,695
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of HK$28,664,000
(2018: HK$37,552,000) represents the unlisted investment
fund established in the Cayman Islands which primary
objectives are to provide absolute returns through pursuing
different strategies, investing primarily in equity and equity
related instruments of companies listed in Hong Kong and
PRC. The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was made
with reference to the prices quoted by the fund administrator
based on the quoted market price of the underlying listed
investment which reflect the net assets value of the fund.
During the year, the Group redeemed partial of the fund and
received the principal of HK$10,000,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of HK$1,596,000
(2018: HK$40,143,000) represents the Group’s interest in
the unlisted investment fund established in the PRC. The
fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined
by an independent valuer, using a discounted cash flow
method. The assets of the fund primarily represent an
investment in 20% equity interest in registered capital of
an unlisted company incorporated in the PRC which is
engaged in property development projects. In January 2018,
the privately-offered fund offered to subscribers in the PRC
was established. During the year, the Group redeemed
partial of the fund and received the principal and interest of
RMB33,600,000 (approximately HK$38,133,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an unrealised
gain of HK$682,000 (2018:HK$1,389,000) arising from fair
value changes in unlisted investment funds was recognised in
profit or loss.
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25.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  25.fE sk AKX (B

The balance represents the contingent consideration
receivables in relation to the acquisition of Access China
Group Limited (“Access China”) and its subsidiaries (”Access
China Group”) and of Sino Wealth Investment Co., Limited
("Sino Wealth”) and its subsidiaries (“Sino Wealth Group”),
pursuant to the related sale and purchase agreements. The
amounts are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at fair value.

ZEHREEBARBEEEEE Bz B
Access China Group Limited ([ Access
China ) X H i /8B 2 &) ([ Access China
& & |) A & Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited ([Sino Wealth ] ) & E i B A 7]
([Sino Wealth &£ & | ) 2 FEM K ARAE © 3%
CHEOPBAERAFEFABINESREE
ML AFBEFE-

2019 2018

—E-hFE —FT-N\F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 THET FHEIT

Balance at beginning of the year FYEER 13,686 9,879

Compensation entitled EZBHME 34 (9,152) -
Fair value change recognised in profit A EZEER ) A F(E &

or loss 34,602 3,807

Balance at end of the year FREH 39,136 13,686

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEME LT :

Current assets MENE E 39,136 8,759

Non-current assets EMBEE — 4,927

39,136 13,686

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 14 December 2016 and supplemental agreement
dated 2 February 2017 (“Acquisition Agreements A"”), the
vendor guarantees to the Company that Beijing Xinnouwei
Assets Management Limited (“Beijing Xinnouwei”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Access China, and
its subsidiaries, shall attain certain performance targets of
RMB 10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 (the
“Guaranteed Profits”) for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

25.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group
(Continued)

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018.
Should the cash considerations payable to the Vendor be
insufficient to cover the compensation, the Company shall
have the right to sell all or part of the Consideration Shares
under escrow, the net proceeds from which shall be equal
to the shortfall of the compensation, to independent third
parties, in the securities market.

For avoidance of doubt, should Beijing Xinnouwei and its
subsidiaries record an actual consolidated loss for any of the
financial years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018,
the amount shall be deemed as HK$Nil.

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$15,889,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made
by the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreements A. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cash flows of Access China Group's forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate ranging from
14.44% to 16.48%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

25. JE U S A RAB ()

BB Access China &8 (&)

AN ARERN AR AERBE
—E-RE _BE—tLER-F-NF
T-A=+—HLEVBFERNTEIDN
HEARSKEFHRHEESE HEMNT
gﬁ%ﬁiﬁ{Tiuiﬁﬁ1 ok LN
NCIRSR: Jis: %m%ﬁﬁ*k_ﬁﬁﬁw
AENEHABORERD  EAEHAE
FRRAMS N E S B BREE

ARERE Wt REHRBMEENEB QA
RBE_FT—RF _FT—+FEK=F
—NE+ZA=+—B - E B BFE i
SEBRGEEBEE HEHESEBRATE
TTo

PRUEE BB RS AR B 2 A FEME
f@tﬂs 889,000/ 7T+ BN & 75 18 15 W BE 1%
ABFIERZREBRZM - EHRIFETY
*ET)“;Access ChinaSS B BRI ETEE 247
iﬁiﬁé/ﬁé(ﬁﬁLALﬂﬂEﬁﬁLéﬁziﬁmf+
REEMEFEHE - KAN F14.44%
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

25.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  25.JE sk AR (B (&)

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$2,683,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made by
the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreements A. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cash flows of Access China Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of
expected future economic benefits that will flow into
the group by applying probability-weighted average of
achieving the required benchmark, using a discount rate of
21.34%. The valuation was performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.
The management discussed with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Access China Group
failed to meet the Guarantee Profits, the Group is entitled
for the compensation of HK$2,811,000. Pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement A, the Group have the right to settle
the compensation by deducting from deferred consideration.
Also, an amount of HK$128,000 has been recognised as gain
on change in fair value of contingent consideration in the
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 28 July 2017 (“Acquisition Agreement S"), the
Vendor and Vendor Guarantor guarantee to the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that Beijing An Jia
Shi Hang Financing Guarantee Company Limited (“AJSH"),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino Wealth, shall
attain certain performance targets of RMB10,000,000,
RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 (the “Guaranteed
Profits”) for the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and
2019 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

25.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group
(Continued)

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019.
Should the cash considerations payable to the Vendor be
insufficient to cover the compensation, the Vendor shall
compensate the amount of difference in cash.

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,765,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made by
the Vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreement S. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cash flows of Sino Wealth Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
Group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rates ranging from
12.65% to 13.23%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Sino Wealth Group
failed to meet the Guarantee Profits, the Group is entitled
for the compensation of HK$6,341,000. Pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement S, the Group have the right to settle
the compensation by deducting from deferred consideration.
Also, an amount of HK$34,474,000 has been recognised as
gain on change in fair value of contingent consideration in
the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

25.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  25.FE& sk 2R (B (@)

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$39,136,000 (2018: HK$11,003,000), representing
Guaranteed Profits made by the Vendor in accordance with
the terms of Acquisition Agreement S. The fair value was
arrived at based on discounted cash flows of Sino Wealth
Group's forecast financial budgets used to capture the
present value of expected future economic benefits that will
flow into the Group by applying probability-weighted average
of achieving the required benchmark, using discount rate
of 17.42% (2018: 20.55% to 20.60%). The valuation was
performed by an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group. The management discussed
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation

5 B U B Sino Wealth £8 (&)

R-ZE—NAE+-_A=+—H ERK=A
REZ AFEM4539,136,0008 T (=
= — \H: 11,003,000/ 7T) » BNE H R E
WEBZSEFTIELZ2REBRF -BEHEAQ
(& J5 1B #8 Sino Wealth £ B 78 8l Bf 75 78
BehBRBReRE (ALNERERESH
FERAEZAJREMENE S KA17.42%
(ZZE—)\5F:20.55% £20.60% ) 2 1%
KA R AN LB 2 T8 B K SR AL 7 F
mZBE)MAESE - HEREREE
EHECBYAEREXAEMET-E
BERGHEMTHREERRAEELS

results.
26.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 26.FE WE FK K2 A B,

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Entrusted loans (Note a) L ER (Mixa) 336 10,245
Mortgage loans (Note b) RIBE (MisEb) 1,700 9,500

Factoring loan receivables with PifiE REH EWIRIEE K
recourse (Note c) (Fft5EC) - 41,512
Other loans (Note d) HEaER (FzEd) 169,695 57,968
171,731 119,225
Less: Impairment allowance W ORE R (19,282) (5,273)
152,449 113,952
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
15 4 .
26. RIS R A B (')

26.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Entrusted loan represented loans from the Group to borrowers
introduced by a bank in the PRC. The borrowers will repay the
loan to the bank and then the bank will return the principal
and accrued interest to the Group. While the bank exercises
supervision over and receives repayments from the borrowers,
the bank does not assume any risk of default in repayment
by the borrowers. The maturity dates are within 12 months
and the Group has a sole discretion to approve the renewal
of the loans for another one year. As at 31 December 2019,
the entrusted loans bear interest at the fixed rate of 18% per
annum.

Mortgage loans represented the loans arising from the money
lending business in Hong Kong and which are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, bearing interest at rates from 18% to 20%
(2018: 16% to 18%) per annum and secured by the pledge of
collaterals and personal guarantees.

Factoring loans with recourse, which are repayable by
instalments, represented loans granted by the Group to an
independent third party, against a portfolio of loans made
by the latter party to its customers and a guarantee from the
independent party. According to the factoring agreements
signed between the independent third party and the Group,
the legal title of the receivables of the underlying customers
was transferred to the Group and the independent third party is
responsible for the management of the loan portfolio, including
the collection of repayments from the underlying customers. In
the event of default of repayment by the underlying customers,
the Group has the right to request the independent third party
to repurchase the outstanding balances of the underlying
customers plus accrued interest. The independent third party
is obliged to repay the Group upon the collection of money
from the underlying customers, and the Group expects to
realise such amounts by collecting the repayments from the
independent third party. The effective interest rate of the
factoring loans receivables is determined at 6.6% per annum as
at 31 December 2018.

Other loans are loans denominated in RMB made to
independent third parties and, amounting to approximately
HK$136,943,000 (2018: HK$32,770,000), are secured,
bearing interest rate ranging from 5% to 6% (2018: 6% to
18%) per annum. Other loans amounting to approximately
HK$32,752,000 (2018: HK$25,198,000) are loans denominated
in RMB made to independent third parties and, are unsecured,
bearing interest rates ranging from 6% to 9% (2018: 6% to
15%) per annum.

fi s

(a)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

26.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)  26.JEWE ZX & | B (4)

An ageing analysis of the loans and interest receivables that R 3R BARIZ A KB HA B I A48 48 4 1E R
are individually not considered to be impaired as at the end BERERER KN SRR DT
of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is
as follows:
2019 2018
—®-hE -—T-N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Neither past due nor individually impaired 3t 4 780 2 75 £2 (& Bl )& (& 150,722 103,390
Less than 1 month past due #E 21 E A 1,727 9,761
1 to 3 months past due BmE =318 A - -
3 to 6 months past due #EA3=61E A - 801
6 months to less than 1 year past due BHOEAZ T EI1F - -
152,449 113,952
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

26.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Loans receivables that were neither past due nor individually
impaired relate to a number of diversified borrowers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

In respect of the loans which have been past due for less
than one month, the amounts mainly represent occasional
delay in repayment and are not indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of these loans.

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and
interest receivables are as follows:

26. JEWE ZX LA B ()

I 4 260 B 77 A Bl RUE O FE W B B % 2
BRAT I EIE R AC SR T RIBRAG R -

EBANON— (AR 2 RADEE RN E
BEERRFEH BFRTHEERZ
EEEEHESI(-

EERLF B BEREZENT

2019 2018

—E-hFE —ZFT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Balance at beginning of the year FYER 5,273 62,420

Amounts recognised during the year FAEHERERE 17,523 5,273

Reversal during the year FAERE (3.423) -
Amount written off during the year FAMEE =PI UL R 2 B IE

as uncollectible - (62,420)

Exchange realignment ME 5 58 B (91) -

Balance at end of the year FOREEER 19,282 5,273

The amount written off in 2018 as uncollectible represents
a borrower in loan financing business in Hong Kong who
was wound up, the loans and interest receivables were not
expected to be recoverable. In 2019, subsequent recovery
amount of HK$1,882,000 was credited to the profit or loss.

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from loans and interest receivables are set
out in the note 51(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

27.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. & U BR 2k N E i fE W 3k T8

2019 2018
—E-hE Z—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade receivables from: T3 E 4 2 FEYBRTK :
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BHERHER: (HiTa)
— Cash clients - BHexP 7 11
— Margin clients —REEEFP 1,246 5,519
— Clearing houses and brokers — BT R4 - 125
Loan referral and consultancy services EREN R ARG
(Note b) (FfeEb) 24,122 33,810
Financial guarantee services (Note ¢) BB ERRES (Mt 3,049 1,376
Insurance brokerage business (Note d) R =5 (KM15Ed) 35 131
Asset management business (Note e) BEBEER (Mite) 75 103
28,534 41,075
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (6,.213) (2,007)
22,321 39,068
Other receivables H & YRR 2,704 20,751
Less: Impairment allowance W ORE R (130) (145)
2,574 20,606
Total trade and other receivables JFE MR B 5 K L A P R TR 4B BB 24,895 59,674
Notes: B =T -
(a) For trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two () MBEEEPZEWEZRME  —MAREH

days to settle after trade date of securities transactions. These
outstanding unsettled trades due from clients are reported as
trade receivables from clients.

Trade receivables from margin clients net of impairment
allowance amounting to HK$1,243,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: HK$5,508,000) are secured by clients’
securities with a total fair value of HK$21,383,000 (2018:
HK$39,827,000). Management has assessed the market value
of the pledged securities of each individual customer who has a
margin shortfall as at the year end.

Trade receivables from margin clients arising from the securities
brokerage business are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

27.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from loan

(0)

referral and consultancy services are within 30 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from financial
guarantee services are mainly within 60 to 90 days upon the
contractual obligation being performed.

(d) The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product

issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution of
the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from product
issuers.

Credit terms granted to customers of asset management
business are within 30 days or as mutually agreed between the
parties.

No ageing analysis of margin loans is disclosed as, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis
does not give additional value in view of the nature of this
business.

An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade
receivables net of impairment allowance as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the trade date, is as follows:

27. 178 Wi AR 5 B B A R KT ()

FfeE: (48)

(o) BRERBN MAARBER —REE
HIRRETAEMNEMLRI0BEA-

() FEWEEERRBEEWERR 2 — MR 4E & 51
REZEABBITAENETEOEIRR-

d) REFRRECRBELE 2 BWEMBETA
R —REEHRIEREIRER
KWBIERBITALZEHERASECORA

(o) BRTEERERBEFP ZEEHR/R30BR
KEFEI KT HEERE -

ENRBEREBE2HEE ARRES
RARRE DL EERIMER - F I E R
BHEREDM-

FEW AR TR R BR (F0RRBUE B ) I R &5 2
RARBERXZBEHZREDTWAT

2019 2018

—EB-hE —ZT)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET THETT

0 — 30 days 0£30H 6,570 14,238
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,146 5,481
61 -90 days 61290H 1,195 6,017
Over 90 days 90H A E 12,167 7,824
21,078 33,560
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE
27.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)  27.J& U BR 3k & E th FE UL KT8 (&)
An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade A S 45 48 4 18 751l 3k FE [RURUE B FE U BR 3K g4
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered BHARE T
to be impaired is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired 3 #8360 HA 7T ARORL (B 6,860 14,700
Less than 1 month past due BE 2 1E A 1,048 5,395
1 to 3 months past due #mE £318 A 8,472 7,353
3 to 6 months past due #HI3E61E A 4,441 5,980
6 months to less than 1 year past due B H6fE A =1 B 14F 257 132
21,078 33,560
The Group has not fully provided for all trade receivables NEE R B B B90 8 E’]Fﬁﬁrﬂﬁlﬁﬁ
overdue more than 90 days because historical experience REHGEBEE WA ABAEKLRKHA
indicated that such receivables would be recovered. B A PR AR I T LA [E]
The movements in impairment allowance on trade receivables EWERFORERENEESHNT
are as follows:
2019 2018
—B-hAE —ZT-N\F
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Balance at beginning of the year FY R 2,007 405
Amounts recognised during the year FABRN TR 6,144 2,007
Reversal during the year FAERE (1,903) -
Amounts written off during the year FAMEE =PI UL R 2 BB
as uncollectible - (384)
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 B (35) 1)
Balance at end of the year FOREEER 6,213 2,007
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For the year ended

27.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in impairment allowance on other receivables

are as follows:

mE M BRRME

31 December 2019 BE-_ZE—NF+_A=+—HILEFE

27. & U BR 3k K E i fE W FRTE ()
4 FE U SRR E R BB I T -

2019 2018

—B-hAE —ZT-N\F

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

THET T

Balance at beginning of the year FYER 145 4,099

Amounts recognised during the year FABRN TR 1 14

Reversal during the year FAERE (13) -
Amounts written off during the year FAMEE =PI UL Rl 2 BB

as uncollectible - (3,756)

Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B (3) (212)

Balance at end of the year FOREEER 130 145

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk BRASEEERRERKREEBWERRE
exposure arising from trade and other receivables are set out fib FEUURIR B (5 B BB 60 E % B St
in the note 51(b). F51(b) °
28.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 28 TN FRIE N IR E
2019 2018
ZEBE-RAFE —ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Prepayments AT I8 2,422 2,349
Rental and utilities deposits He Rk ARBZE 4,543 4,143
Statutory deposits EERE 255 255
Other deposits (Note) Hibize (M) 78,052 62,472
85,272 69,219
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (280) (229)
Total prepayments and deposits ENFBERIECERE 84,992 68,990
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEMS O -
Current assets e & E 81,487 65,485
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,505 3,505
84,992 68,990
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE
28.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) 28. TN FRIE MR & (#8)
Note: B 5

As at 31 December 2019, other deposits mainly consist of
deposits paid to co-operators in relation to the Group’s guarantee
and trading business, amounted to HK$77,975,000 (2018:
HK$62,366,206).

The movements in impairment allowance on deposits are as

RZE—NAF+—A=+—H HEth#s
77,975,000 7t (= F — )\ : 62,366,206/5
L) EBERAEERERLEEEBENT
BYETMIESE -

ReREREOZSHINT

follows:
2019 2018
—B-nE —T-N\F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Balance at beginning of the year FH4 229 -
Amounts recognised during the year FAERN TR 272 229
Reversal during the year F R #E DO (217) =
Exchange realignment ME W R B (4) -
Balance at end of the year FRE 280 229

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from other deposits are set out in the note
51(b).

BRAASEEERR MK EMIRENE
ERBRNEZFIEEHNMES1(b)

29.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS W.REFFEAEMNIRE

The Group maintains separate trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as cash held on behalf of customers under current assets
recognised the corresponding accounts payable to respective
clients as stipulated under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The Group is not allowed to use
the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations under the
SFO.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE

30.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 30. X R $R1TF 3K
Restricted bank deposits represent the guarantee under its ZERHRITFREEWERERIZE LE
business pledged customer deposits received under tripartite EVYEs BEREPHEAEEII VM=
custodian agreements among the online lending platforms, EMREHRNEPER -REEHERE
guarantee customers and the Group under its guarantee xME ARENXRERITEREER
business. For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow e RBEFEMP R -
statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits with banks
have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
31.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 3ILIRITAER NS
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ\?g?ﬁ 552 (=& —\&F:
from nil to 1.55% (2018: nil to 1.55%) per annum. TE155B )M FEREFTE-
32.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 32.JE S BRI Eoth JE 1~ SRR % g
ACCRUALS STEM
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Trade payables from: THES 2 BAARRK
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BHERXHEB: (Mta)
— Cash clients - ReEP 386 712
— Margin clients —REBEEEF 421 654
— Clearing house — B 47 —
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R g 5 (M15Eb) 221 436
Total trade payables JE 1~ BR SR 4B 2R 1,075 1,802
Accrued expenses st E A 2,915 3,767
Deposits received (Note c) B EIZS (MIfEc) 110,348 58,741
Other payables H th f& 1~ K18 19,226 17,349
Total other payables and accruals HiENRIBREGERERE 132,489 79,857
Total trade payables, other JEAST BR R - L h 8 R IE 2
payables and accruals EETERBE 133,564 81,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

i E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

32.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the
monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in
respect of the trust and separate bank balances received and
held for clients in the course of the conduct of the Group's
regulated activities. However, the Group does not currently have
an enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits
placed.

The majority of the trade payables balance are repayable on
demand except for certain balances relating to margin deposits
received from clients for their trading activities under the
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits are repayable on demand.

The settlement terms of trade payables, except for margin
clients, arising from the securities brokerage business are two
days after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of the Group's business.

Trade payables to consultants arising from the provision of
insurance brokerage services, are generally settled within 30
days to 120 days upon receipt of payments from product
issuers.

An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage
business at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

32, JE A BR K EL A AN RTR N

SE-3::0C )
B3

(a)

BNEFREEPERIERNETARHE
ERERDERPEREREPHEEZE
ERBIRITEBRERE L TP MEEER
RICTP ORI A A% BRI &
Al S HI AT A AT B SR S IR A

REBRNERGEHRBARBRKEE HE
REEXBERETRRZEHCHEFH
REEEFRBENE TEREKI-EBB
RERESTFRAZEBARERER-

ERRECEBELZRAER (REEE
FPBIN 2 EEHR AR ZBEMA -

HRARBEERA ERNAKEEHKE
G R DML BERBIMEE RALE
WEERRER DT

— RN BE R IT AT RIK30H 2120
FREERERRELCRBEELE Z BN
Gl

A R B R AR B A8 40 75 FE 9 BR SR BR i
DT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$°000

THET FHET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 86 285
31 - 60 days 315E60H 48 120
61 - 90 days 61590H 22 17
Over 90 days 90H LA E 65 14
221 436

178 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 30 JETERFN - ML B Ia L JE

ACCRUALS (Continued) TER @
Notes: (Continued) Mt : (88)
(©) Included in deposits received was amounts of HK$98,426,000 (0 DUWEUZEH 98,426,000 70 (ZZT— N\

% 136,540,000 7T ) Jh AN & B A & = URER
EARAEEHHAMEERHIKF 25
ReBRIEEERAGVERERETRF -
BRIEEY ZERSEHER —FREE-

(2018: HK$36,540,000) which were received from customers
as collateral security for the financial guarantees issued by the
Group. These deposits will be refunded to the customers upon
expiry of the corresponding guarantee contracts. According to

the contracts, these deposits are expected to be settled within

one year.

33.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

BAUEERAE

2019 2018
—®-hE -—T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Deferred income EREU A 58 714
Provision for guarantee losses BEREBRE 94,536 49,156
94,594 49,870

Movement analysis of provision for guarantee losses: EREBRESTE
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZZFT-N\F
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Balance at beginning of the year FEH 49,156 51,229
Amount recognised during the year FABRZ TR 84,120 1,302
Amount written off during the year FAMEZ (37,211) (692)
Exchange realignment IR (1,529) (2,683)
Balance at end of the year FRER 94,536 49,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

34.DEFERRED CONSIDERATIONS 34 R E B
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZZT—N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHTT
Balance at beginning of the year FUER 25,625 71,293
Compensation from contingent KBRS ARE

consideration receivable HESSE 25 (9,152) =
Settlement =§= (11,848) (50,000)
Imputed interest mEF R 1,228 4,332
Balance at end of the year FARER 5,853 25,625

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MIBEMS AT :
Non-current liabilities ERFBEE = 5,175
Current liabilities nEaE 5,853 20,450
5,853 25,625

As at 31 December 2019, included in deferred consideration
is cash consideration in relation to the acquisition of Access
China Group and of Sino Wealth Group with carrying
amounts of HK$Nil (2018: HK$9,709,000) and HK$5,853,000
(2018: HK$15,916,000) respectively.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino
Wealth Group

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Group. Since the audited net
profits after tax of AJSH and its subsidiary for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were less than profit guarantee of
RMB20,000,000, the Group considered that the Guarantee
Profits was not met. As a result, a compensation of
HK$6,341,000 was deducted from the deferred consideration
and the adjusted deferred consideration of HK$4,659,000
was settled by cash during the year. Remaining consideration
would be satisfied in manner as to HK$6,000,000 shall be
settled in cash within five business days after issue of audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
subject to adjustment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

34.DEFERRED CONSIDERATIONS (Continued)

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino
Wealth Group (Continued)

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 20 October 2017 was HK$42,404,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
ranged from 12.05% to 13.10%.

Imputed interest expenses are calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rates
ranging from 12.05% to 13.10% per annum, the imputed
interest expenses of HK$937,000 (2018: HK$2,482,000) was
debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Access
China Group

On 22 December 2016, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Access China Group. Since the audited net
profits after tax of Beijing Xinnouwei and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018 were less than profit
guarantee of RMB30,000,000, the Group considered that the
Guarantee Profits was not met. As a result, a compensation
of HK$2,811,000 was deducted from the deferred
consideration and the adjusted deferred consideration of
HK$7,189,000 was settled by cash during the year.

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 22 December 2016 was HK$53,238,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
ranged from 14.27% to 15.79%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rates ranging from 14.27% to 15.79%
per annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$291,000
(2018: HK$1,850,000) was debited to the profit or loss of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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34 RERAE ()

BB WEESino WealthEB 2 BH &R E
(&)

R-ZE—+E+A-+HZEKBE EE
R REZRAFEAEL2,404,000% 7T © 5%
NFEHBYAEMETE FEATE
FTAZEBRFZENF12.05% £13.10% °

HENBRAYREAERAEETE &
FAZzEBBEFFMENT12.05% £13.10%
HEF B FX937,0008 T (ZF— N\F:
2,482,000 L) EfF AR FEARER 28

EREWEE Access ChinaEB 2R &R E

RZEBE—ARFF+_AZ+-H XxEEBEE
T2 A U BE Access China 2B - AR ==
EHWEEMNBAREE_ZE—N\F+=A
=t+—HLEFENKEEZBRB%ZLAFIE
0% AR 35 A R #£30,000,0007T » AN £
RERBREMREEZK AL #ESS
2,811,000 TE BIELERE R H L&
R R (E7,189,0005 7T 2 R F K LA

AN/ =
BEeEH-

RZZE-—RFTZAZ+ZHZ/KBEH"
EERESKRE 2R F1EAES3,238,000%
TR AFEIEB Y EMET -TE
NREEFRRAZCEBRMNENF14.27% =
15.79% °

BEEREREBEZGHENBSAIIERE
BRI R EAHE BRZERFMNENT
14.27% £15.79% ' {H & F| 8. f 291,000
BT (ZZ— /A% : 1,850,000/ 7t ) © &t
AREBEHE_T—NF+_A=+—H
IHFEZBERN-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

35.BORROWINGS

2019 2018

—E-hAE Z—ZZT-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Bank loans RITEK 78,302 88,226

Carrying amount repayable: ER T3 EARIE R/ BRE(E -

Within one year —F R 11,186 8,538
More than one year, but not —FA EERMEUA

exceeding two years 11,186 11,384
More than two years, but not more M LA BB R F AR

than five years 44,744 36,998

More than five years AFELAE 11,186 31,306

78,302 88,226

Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities J& : A8 & &5/~ 2 & 58 (11,186) (8,538)

67,116 79,688

Note:

Bank loans were secured by the pledge of the Group's assets as set
out in note 43. The loans carry effective interest at fixed rates of
6.37% (2018: 6.37%) per annum.

36.CONVERTIBLE NOTES

182

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement and
supplementary agreements for the acquisition of Oriental
Credit Group, 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note with principal amounts of HK$85,401,768 and
HK$42,000,000 at conversion price of HK$0.24 (after
adjustment of share subdivision on 23 December 2015)
were issued to the vendors of the Oriental Credit Group
on 3 June 2015 and 15 March 2016 respectively. It entitled
the noteholders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time after the date of issuance of 2015
Convertible Note and ending on the 21st business day before
the maturity date, which is on the fifth anniversary of the
respective dates of issuance of 2014 Convertible Note and
2015 Convertible Note. If the convertible notes have not
been converted, they will be redeemed on maturity date at
the entire principal amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

36.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 36. A] A B%

The Convertible Notes contains two components, liability and
equity components. The equity component represents the
value of the conversion option, which is credited directly to
equity as convertible notes reserve of the Company and the
Group. The liability component of the convertible notes is
carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is ranging from 9.98%
to 12.89% per annum.

The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes
recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated

as follows:

mE M BRRME

—E-AFFTZR=+T—HIEFE

E=b 40 )

ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁmﬁamﬂ 7 BAE M AR
Do fEmH ?a?ﬁHﬂEéZT B EENE
E)\EEF%K T&ZK%IZT}@HXKW%
BB RE L BERYIHHEERAE
EANERFERBDAE Eiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%@
R -BERD Z2ERFERNENF
9.98E £12.89F °

AR R R 2 R IR 2 R
EHEWT

2014 2015
Convertible  Convertible
Note Note Total
—E-mFE Z—E-1F
JRBREE TEREREE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Equity component Emdo
At 1 January 2018 R-_Z—N\F—H—H 6,072 3,703 9,775
Conversion during the year FREHR (6,072) (3,703) (9,775)
At 31 December 2018, RZZBE-N\E+A=+—8"
1 January 2019 and T-NE-A—AK
31 December 2019 —NWFE+ZRA=+—H - - -
Liability component 8E®D
At 1 January 2018 n_E—-N\F—H—H 3,989 1,665 5,654
Effective interest expenses EBRMNSMAX 196 100 296
Conversion during the year FAER (4,185) (1,765) (5,950)

At 31 December 2018,

R_ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—8"

1 January 2019 and —hWF-A-Bk
31 December 2019 —NE+ZA=+—H - - -
Principal amount, at end of the year RERZALHE - - =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

37.LEASE LIABILITIES

— = 7~ =

Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —F R 14,536
Within a period of more than one year RE—FA BT EAMF
but not more than two years 7,289
21,825
Less: Amount due for settlement with BAERBEBECRN T ZEARN
12 months shown under current liabilities B E 2518 (14,536)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months SIEIERB AR 2R+ AR ESIH
shown under non-current liabilities EE 2 I8 7,289
38.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 38R AT I & B
Provision
for financial
guarantee
MERREBE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE-N\FE—H—H 12,689
Charged to profit or loss for the year RERB T MR (690)
Exchange realignment 0E o R (631)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-N\F+-A=+—-Hk
—E-NF—-H—H 11,368
Credited to profit or loss for the year RENBRPEFA 11,384
Exchange realignment BE 3, R B (197)
At 31 December 2019 R_E-NF+-A=1t—H 22,555
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

38.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$471,071,000 (2018: HK$415,925,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$124,878,000 (2018:
HK$122,823,000) that will expire in one to five years. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries and associates established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised was
HK$11,962,000 (2018: HK$7,752,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing
for reversal of the related temporary differences and it is
probable that such temporary differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

BIELETIBEE (48)

R & # R $’§Eﬂ<§bﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
#471,071,0008 (=& — \F:
ma%am@%m)T%W%ﬁm%Xmﬂ
FR 7 £ DA TR A R 2R i ) SRR - N 4 Bt
AOAREEERREEHBEEE K
AR ESEBEBER—ZEZRAFARER
Z E518124,878,0008 T (—&F — )\ F:
122,823,000/ 70) - E M B ] TR Hi 4
$?o

BIEFBREEMERE ERBEKIZ 2N
ﬁm%ﬁ%l&ﬁ%-ﬂhﬁ“gaﬁw
10% FBHH - ZRTEH_ZEZTNF—A
—Eiiﬂ.ﬂLﬁﬁ_77t$+ A
=+ —REZAN WP BEEIIEEESE
MEVEEERE]ARBIKRLD BT HAR
BEzEMBEER-BAKEME @AM E
#5% 310% ° At AEEAEBRFA B
VHRBAREBERRR_EENF—
A—HREAZZH DR E MBMATE
o

—NF+=—A=+—8 E2HhEHK
‘“T* TR B ENERERE (M
ERMHBEREBBENROELEHREBEE
&) #%5811,962,0008 T (—Z T — )\ F:
7,752,000 7C) - M ERZEERERE
ERHIBEEE W AR AEE EE G # D
BT EZENRENZEERZER] 6

e R A B ARRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE=-ZT—hF+_A=+—HILFE
39.SHARE CAPITAL 39. (i R
Number of Nominal
shares amount
g 4= R
‘000 HK$'000
T A% FET
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each EFREE0.001E TR TR
At 1 January 2018, RZZE—-NF—-—H—1"
31 December 2018, —E-N\F+=A
1 January 2019 and =+—H8-ZZE—NF
31 December 2019 —A—BARkZZE—hF
+=—A=+—H 2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each SR EE0.00178 TTHIEB LA
At 1 January 2018, R-_ZE—-NE—A—1H-
31 December 2018, —E-N\F+ZA
1 January 2019 and —+t—B8-ZZ—AF
31 December 2019 —A—BEZZ—N&F
+=-—A=+—H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001B TR E B
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 6,870,057 6,870
Exercise of share options (Note a) TR (Pfiaka) 13,170 13
Conversion of convertible Em R ER (sEb)
notes (Note b) 31,850 32
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—-—N\F+A
1 January 2019 =t+t—BERZZE—NF
—H—H 6,915,077 6,915
Exercise of share options (Note c) TR I (Mdskc) 9,000 9
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—-NF+_H
=+—H 6,924,077 6,924
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

39.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@ On 17 May and 19 June 2018, upon the exercise of the
share options at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share,
the Company allotted and issued 11,670,000 new shares of
HK$0.001 each.

On 19 June 2018, upon the exercise of the share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.188 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 1,500,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each.

(b) On 15 June 2018, upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$7,644,106 at the
conversion price of HK$0.24 per share, the Company allotted
and issued 31,850,442 shares in aggregate to the noteholders.

(c) In December 2018, 9,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share but such shares of
HK$0.001 each were allotted on 7 January 2019.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

In 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“2011 Share Option Scheme"), which will expire on 19 June
2021, for the purpose of providing incentives or reward
to eligible participants for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any invested entity. Under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees (including any executive directors),
non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services and
customers of the Group; and any persons or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group.
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. 08 I HEETE (@)

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment
from the participant of HK$1.00. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.

The subscription price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the particular option; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the particular option; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue for the time being.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B8 I M2 (@)

As at 31 December 2019, the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 440,580,000 (2018: 451,080,000),
representing 6.36% (2018: 6.52%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme is 1,127,585,717 (2018: 1,135,271,917),
representing approximately 16.28% (2018: 16.40%) of the
issued shares of the Company.

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees and consultants during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out below:

Number of shares issuable under options

RZE—NF+_A=+—H BE=
T-——FHEREFIEREBHRERITE
B B8 A% 1 8 & w9 iR 19 E B &440,580,000
% (—ZZ — )\ :451,080,0000%) ' 1§
ARARBEEITHRHIGE636% (ZF— N
F:6.52%) AAFRAH —F——
FHERETEBETURBITHRNO &
B A1,127,585, 717k (=& — N\ &F:
1,135,271,917/%) "G AR R B BT D
B14916.28% (—ZZF— /\F :16.40% ) °

BE_T-NF+-_A=1T-HLFE"

BENMBEREMAFTEARBBRIENZ S
JIanR

RERRETRT2ROYA
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January Lapsed 31 December  Exercise price
participants 2019 Granted Exercised Note (d) 2019  period HK$
R
ZE-NF
RZZB-n% EAX t=A e
SEALER -A—-H ERE gi7fE M&E(d) =t-B  1RH B
Category I: Employees
Bl &8
20.3.2018 115,000,000 - - (10,500,000) 104,500,000  20.3.2018- 0.188
19.3.2021 Note (c)
“Z-)\f=A=+H “E-\f=A_tRE
—Z--¥=A+TNAH
M (o)
Category Il: Consultants
L=p =
20.3.2018 336,080,000 4 - - 336,080,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 Note (c) 0.188
—2-\f=AZtH ZE-\f=A=1AHZ
—ZZ-F¥=R+nA
MEE (o)
Total 451,080,000 - - (10,500,000) 440,580,000
@t
Weighted average 0.188 - - 0.188 0.188
exercise price
MEFHITREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B IR ERTE (1)
Movements of the Company’s share options held by HE_T— ) \FTA=1T—HLFE"
employees and consultants during the year ended 31 BENERMAFEARGIBRENZEEEH
December 2018 are set out below: IO
Number of shares issuable under options
REBRETRTZRAHE
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January Lapsed 31December  Exercise price
participants 2018 Granted Exercised Note (d) 2018  period HK$
R
“E-N\%
R=2-N\% BN t=h TEE
SRALER —-R—-H E& i 21T B (d) =t-B 1S B
Category I: Employees
BRI EB
20.11.2015 37,294,520 = - (37,294,520 - Note (a) 0.740
“E-nfEt+-A=TH M ()
28.12.2016 106,712,054 - (18,670,000)  (88,042,054) - 28122016 0.187
27.12.2018 Note (b)
“E-RETZAZTNR ZE-RETZAZTN\BE
ZE2-NE+ZAZttH
Pt 3 (b)
20.3.2018 - 121,500,000 (1,500,000) (5,000,000) 115,000,000  20.3.2018- 0.188
19.3.2021 Note (c)
“Z-\¥=zA=+H “Z-\(=zA=+RZ
ZZZ-%=AtANH
fitsE(o)
Category I Consultants
BRI B
28.12.2016 40,785,288 - (2,000,000)  (38,785,288) - 28.12.2016- 0.187
27.12.2018 Note (b)
“ET-RETZAZTNR ZE-RETZAZTN\BE
ZE-NE+ZAZttH
3 (b)
20.3.2018 - 336,080,000 - - 336,080,000  20.3.2018-19.3.2021 0.188
Note (c)
“Z-N\¥=zA=+AH “E-\$=zA=+RZ
ZTZ-%=AtAH
Mzt
Total 184,791,862 457,580,000  (22,170,000) (169,121,862) 451,080,000
@5t
Weighted average 0.299 0.188 0.187 0.309 0.188
exercise price
MEFHTRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE
40. 1B IR 5T 2] (m)

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 20 November 2015, the Company granted options to
subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 shares under the Scheme to
employees of the Group. The validity period of the options was
30 months from the date of grant of the options, that is from
20 November 2015 to 19 May 2018. The options entitled the
grantees to subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.005 each at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per share.

The share options were divided into 3 tranches exercisable from
(i) the expiry date of the Put Option period as stated in the
second supplemental agreement dated 8 January 2016, (ii) 20
November 2016, and (iii) 20 May 2017 respectively to 19 May
2018.

As a result of the share subdivision which was effective on 28
December 2015, the exercise price per share and number of
outstanding share options granted on 20 November 2015 were
adjusted from HK$4.59 to HK$0.92 and from 18,000,000 to
90,000,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of shares issuable under options
were adjusted from HK$0.92 to HK$0.74 and from 30,000,000
to 37,294,520 for the effects of the open offer of the Company
completed on 21 June 2017.

On 28 December 2016, the Company granted options to
subscribe for a total of 323,428,000 shares under the 2011
Share Option Scheme to employees and consultants of the
Group. The validity period of the options was 24 months from
the date of grant of the options, that is from 28 December
2016 to 27 December 2018. The options entitled the grantees
to subscribe for a total of 323,428,000 new shares of HK$0.001
each at an exercise price of HK$0.232 per share.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of options were adjusted from
HK$0.232 to HK$0.187 and from 127,748,000 to 158,810,013
for the effects of the open offer of the Company completed on
21 June 2017.

Options to subscribe 9,000,000 shares were exercised in
December 2018 and the shares were allotted in January 2019.

fi s

(a)

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

RN-ZE—RFE+—A=-+8 AQARE
ElMAEERERERHBRENRES
18,000,0008% f 17 - i I i 2 B S HA R B
BRERLHBE30EA (M2 —5
F+—A-t+HE-Z—N\FRATA
B) BRERTFTEARAEFNUNGTEES
f%4.597% T 7R B8 & ££18,000,000/% & B% M
{B0.0058 T 2 #T& 5 °

BRE>A=# RTIHBHEE_-ZF
—NFREA+ABIEHEATFITE: ()B
HAE_TE—R"F-—AN\BRNE_OERH
AR REEEARER B () =F
—A~F+—A-+E Ri)“T—tFH
A=+H-

BOFAR_—_F—AF+-_A=-+N\A
ERg R _F-AF+t-AZt+ARH
) B R 1T (50 B i M O B AR AT (R 1B I8 I
88 7 5l H4.598 LB 80.928 7T K i
18,000,00017% 73 % /390,000,00017 °

IRIRIE R R 5T BRI 30 BB RAE TR T A94T
EEMAZFTHBERNDHAEBEDRIRAR
ARZZE—tFRNAZ T —BRKRZLDHE
RENTEHOBTAERTAB TR
F130,000,00017% 53 % /337,294,52017 °

R-E—RNF+-_A=-+/\B &AARE
BT ——FEREAESRNEAEEREE R
AR 3% B AR R LA SR BB & $£323,428,000
BERE 5 - AR 2 BN ER A B B IR
BEIfEA24@ B (BN =ZFE—XE+ - A
—t+tNBEZZE—N\F+=-_A=++H)-
BB AR AE AR AR AR R ATT (B B 0%0.232
BITREES $£323,428,000/8 &A% EI120.001
B TT 2 FTRRAD ©

RIFERERT SR BRENITERE
A RFHKBEEDRREARAR T
—tFNAZ T HERZAHRZEEN
2 M0.2328 L # % £0.1878 Tt L A
127,748,00019 A% £158,810,01317 °

2H89,000,000/% % (7 B BB AR HE IS —Z — /\
F+_AETFE HEREEAROR_Z—
F—HAfdE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. 08 I HEETE (@)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) On 20 March 2018, the Company granted options to subscribe
for a total of 457,580,000 shares under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 36 months from the date of grant of
the options, that is from 20 March 2018 to 19 March 2021.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
457,580,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.188 per share.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before
20 March 2018, the date of grant was HK$0.187.

The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$0.240 on 17 May 2018 and HK$0.213 on 19
June 2018.

(d) The share options were forfeited or lapsed due to resignation of
employees and consultants during the year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted and the following inputs to the model:

()

(d)

MisE: (48)

R-ZEBE—-—NE=A-+8 EKAFRE=
T ——FHEBREFIRAAEERE RERH
% b B % DA 3R B8457,580,0000% A% 17 ©
B 2 B A E BRRER T A HRE
36f@A (AN =ZE— N\F=ZA-_+HE_-Z
Z—F=ZR+NAB) BEREGETER
ANEFATTEEFTR0.188B TRE A &
457,580,0004% & i% E 1E0.001% JT 2 #T %

{/\ S

ARABROREE_T—NF=A=+H
(BN H B ED) B (B /01878 7T °

RAE IR B AR EET T B BB ATAY N
BEIHRTEBANR-_E—N\ERA++B
0240 T RN —E—NEXATNEB
#0.21378 7T °

BREDREEERY DEFREE RE
A & T o

RO AREEENBREZ 2 FEIR
R AR A - RA R E BRI A

I B R B IR R R PR B D A6 S A6k £

TREHNER PR eI AR

20 March 28 December 20 November

2018 2016 2015
—E-RF —E—aF

—E-N\E +—-A +-A

=H=+H —+\H —+H

Fair value (HK$) ~TEEEL) 0.09 0.11 1.89
Exercise price (HK$) 7EE (Bx) 0.188 0.232 4.59
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) AR A BARE (BT) 0.187 0.232 4.59
Dividend yield (%) A% B 2 (%) - = =
Expected volatility (%) T8 H K 18 (%) 78.10 91.79 70.58
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 3 B 1 2 (%) 1.627 1.244 0.626
Expected life of options (years) TEHIE R EEH (F) 3.000 2.000 2.497
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the contractual
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$40,313,000. The
fair value per option granted was HK$0.09. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$40,313,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

41.0PERATING LEASES

40. BB X HEET &l (1)

BRERHFHOREBEAOFHEE K
WA RE R MITER T - BHIK IR
Jiﬁﬂ%ri}&méi%ﬂiiﬁi%%%ﬁ@ﬁ?& L
ARBRBEBRAE

REE_Z—N\F+_A=+—HULFE"
B /BB R F {E 540,313,000
T BHERTDBRENQFERGE
T-RBE-_Z—N\FE+_A=+—HIt
FE NS BRI R 240,313,000
/%TE°

4148 24

The Group as lessee REEEREMBA
2018
— N\
HK$'000
T

Minimum lease payments paid under FARBLCEROR PR AETYE

operating leases in respect of < TH &R E FKIE

office properties during the year 14,175

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBEHR AEERB AT HELER
KR TR A NORRRKEEER
B2 AFEWMT

2018
—T-)N\F
HK$'000
TBTT

Within one year —F R

13,118

In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF (BEEEMTE) 15,919

29,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—

—NE+T-A=+—HIFE

41.0OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
three years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with customers for the following future minimum payments
for storage facilities.

ARCS-EERINE D

REMERREAREREERTBERTE
METHAENERANES HOEE
FHRP—E=F-

AEBEERHAA

R|EHR AEEDRE EFHRIED
TNIIRRKEFIREEFFISLAH

2018
—N\%F
HK$'000
T

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

—F R
E_FEFRF (L

11,455
BIEEEWE) 3,849

15,304

42.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

194

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2018: HK$18,000) per annum.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by the municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$2,534,000 (2018: HK$1,489,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

43.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43 EEBH
Assets with the following carrying amounts have been ERAEEERZ —RIBTEEMELE
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Wz BEREBENT :
Group:
2019 2018
—E-AE —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Property, plant and equipment M BB R EAE 82,650 92,416
Prepaid lease payments A E A - 23,021
Right-of-use assets — leasehold lands CRAEEE—HE LM 21,914 -
104,564 115,437
44.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 44.FEANTRS
Balances with related parties BEALTER
2019 2018
—®-hE -—TN\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Deferred considerations (note a) EERE (MzEa) 5,853 15,916
Note: P 5T

(a)

For
the

(ii)

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the acquisition
of Sino Wealth Group with New Wealth Investment Co., Limited
("Sino Wealth Vendor”) and Mr. Yang Dayong, who is the
beneficial owner of the entire equity interest of the Sino Wealth
Vendor (“Sino Wealth Vendor Guarantor”) and one of the
shareholders of the Company. With effect from 8 June 2018,
Mr. Yang Dayong, was also appointed as the executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The remaining
considerction was or will be paid to Sino Wealth Vendor in
cash of HK$11,000,000 in the year ended 31 December 2019
and HK$6,000,000 in the year ending 31 December 2020
respectively.

the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group effected
following material non-recurring transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
paid the deferred consideration of HK$30,000,000 to
Sino Wealth Vendor.

On 27 March 2019, the Group was entitled to the
compensation from non-fulfillment of profit guarantee
given by Sino Wealth Vendor of HK$6,341,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group paid the
net amount of deferred consideration of HK$4,659,000
to Sino Wealth Vendor after deducted the Compensation.

@ RZE—+F+A=Z+H KEEHEENew
Wealth Investment Co., Limited ([Sino
Wealth & 75 ] ) & 15 K B8 %t & (Sino Wealth
EHZERAEZHEBARRNAGER
—ZR&HE) ([Sino Wealth & F R AL)
SEAK UL EE Sino Wealth B - 5 —ZF — N\ &F
NANBR BRBEENMEZTAEER
AIMITEERITHAH % TRED IR
BHE_Z—NF+_A=+—BHItFEK
BHE-_ZE-_FEE+-_A=+—RHILEE
2 [A) 3% # [A] Sino Wealth &= 5 AR &
11,000,000/ 7T }2.6,000,00078 It ©

BE_T-NFT-_A=T—HLFE X&
BETATEAREREERS

() HE-T—-N\F+ZA=+—RBILFE"
A& & (7] Sino Wealth B 77 X (1B IE R B
30,000,000/ 7T ©

(i) RZEBE—NE=A=-++tHB KEEAHRE
¥ 15 | Sino Wealth & 75 % H K I8 173% Fll
1R7E6,341,0008 THREE - BHE_ZF— AN
F+_A=+—HBIEFE K&EEFSino
Wealth & 75 37 (71 {E R (& /5 584,659,00078
TC (kR ER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

44.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

45.SUBSIDIARIES

196

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is HK$8,902,000 (2018:

HK$9,997,000) as disclosed in notes 13 and 14.

Issued and fully

44BN LT 5 (#)
BETEEEAS

REXRN BEFENEMTEEEXEFNA
8,902,000/ 7T ( —F — )\ : 9,997,000/
T0) A EE13 R 1438 58 -

45.51 B A B

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR BRTRAR ARARFBERITRAEE
a8 BRI LEREHEBEXR HEMEXEELH IERH
2019 2018
—B-NF “B-N\F
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
BE & B %
Delight Link Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of
Limited administrative
services to group
companies
MECEFRAF £ LTRRA2ET MEE R RIRHEITR
R
Spring Chance Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
REBRAA EERUHEE TRRKNIET REER
AEEEIERER PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Industrial property
A7 (transliterated RMB80,000,000 development
as Taicang Keycharm
Storage Company
Limited®)
ARERRRBERAR +E AMERARE IXRANEEE
80,000,0007T
AEENESHER PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Trading of goods
A8 (transliterated RMB5,000,000
as Taicang Haopu
Trading Company
Limited")
ARBENEHERRA  HE AMERARK EmEH
5,000,0007C
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45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Issued and fully

45.f B A B (\)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
TR LK ERITRAR KARAFMBHERTRAEE
a8 EXHH LEREHEREXR AMEREEL A TEXH
2019 2018
ZB-hE —E-N\F
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=3 G B &
LBhBEREEAE PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Provision of
[ 2 7] (transliterated RMB5,000,000 consultancy services
as Shanghai Yousheng
Investment Consulting
Limited*)
FERBBRERS e AMERARE RAH ARG
BRAF 5,000,0007T
Greater China HK Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of money
Financing Limited lending
APERERRAA B LRRAVET RHEE
Greater China Wealth HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of insurance
& Risk Management HK$2,000,000 brokerage services
Limited
APEERERERLA FE gl RERRE DR
2,000,000/ 7T
Greater China Securities ~ HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities
Limited HK$18,000,000 brokerage services
APEEHFERLA 30 ERiliEN REEFEBRE
18,000,000/ 7T
Greater China Asset HK Registered capital - 100% = 100% Provision of asset
Management (HK) HK$1,000,000 management
Limited services
APEZEER (FE) BE AMER RUBEEERYE
BRAF 1,000,000/ 7T
TREHNEEER PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Provision of loan
BRAR RMB100,000,000 referral and
(transliterated as consultancy services
(Beijing Xin Nuo Wei
Assets Management
Limited")
TRERNEEER I dMERARE RIS HEN kA
BRAT] 100,000,007 R
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45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45.M1 B A Al (&)

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMRIR ERTRER EARFBERTRAEE
£ BRBE EERAEMER A EREEL A TEEK
2019 2018
S i
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=R Gk B [FiEES
Spruce Light Asset HK Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Provision of asset
Management HK$5,000,000 management
Company Limited services
EMEEERERAR AR LR RREEEERE
5,000,000/ 7T
ERBRHt{TRE PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of financial
ERERAA RMB220,000,000 guarantee and
(transliterated as consultancy services
(Beijing An Jia Shi
Hang Financial
Guarantee Company
Limited")
TRZFETRERR FE AMERARE RERERRRSH
BERRA 220,000,0007T R
FERHREBR PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of
BRRA RMB 10,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Shanghai Jia Nuo
Investment Company
Limited)
DBRER AR H AMERARE RAE AR
BRAF 10,000,0007C
RIMEHE M ERE PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Provision of
BRAF RMB50,000,000 commercial
(transliterated as factoring
Shenzhen Xin Nuo services
Wei Commercial
Factoring Company
Limited)
RN ME FERE H AMERAR REBERERSE
BRAT 50,000,0007T
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45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Issued and fully

45.M1 B A Al (&)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
TR LK ERITRAR KARAFMBHERTRAEE
a8 BRBE EERAEMER AMEREEL A TEXH
2019 2018
—-h# o
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=8 Gk B &
ERRIHULERE PRC Registered capital - 100% = 100%  Provision of
ARBERL A RMB1,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Khorgas Nuo Li
Enterprises
Consultation Service
Company Limited*)
ERMRIHALCESNR  PE AMERARE R AR
RBERALR 1,000,007
ERRIRFZHITRE  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of
HHARBERAA RMB1,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Khorgas An Jia Shi
Hang Enterprises
Consultation Service
Company Limited?)
ERRNZZMI0E FE AMERARE A AR
EARBERAA 1,000,0007C
AR NEABRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Provision of
(transliterated as RMB100,000 consultancy services
Shenzhen Yi Li
Consultation Company
Limited")
RIENHEABRRE B AMERARE A AR
100,0007T
TEMEEERE PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of
AR AR HK$120,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Shanghai Wei Lian
Commercial Factoring
Company Limited)
FEMERRRE g HMHER RAE AR
NG 120,000,000 ¢
*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in this t AVEZEBHNEYTEEAMIB2EMEANRSE -

report for reference only and should not be regarded as its

official English name.
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e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

45.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

45.MT B A B] ()

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the financial year.

46.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS

ERIHEZRSTIERE

AEBEREL

BENARANBAA -EFRA JH
HpfEARMNFREEREBEBEN TR

RMBREER BENBARDHITEM

BERES-

46. TN B A RIMNIRE EUL B

DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES LN
The Company KAF

2019 2018
—E-hF ZZT—N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&TT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRR D A AN 376,602 376,602
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBIEEE (351,131) (279,739)
25,471 96,863
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B~ B 518 1,067,535 1,097,669
Less: impairment loss recognised B EERBEEE (1,000,623) (622,482)
66,912 475,187
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NETE 1,715 1,715

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and are repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

47.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

47.78 X BB BA 7% B R

COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A R IR E 25,471 96,863
Investments in associates REE R AR E - -
25,471 96,863
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries b =N 66,912 475,187
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H b 8 UK /T8 ~ TE A MR ¢ 802 983
Contingent consideration receivable FEW SRR AB - 2,683
Bank balances and cash IRITEEBRNIRE 319 2,993
68,033 481,846
Current liabilities REBEME
Other payables and accruals H Ath fE < RIB KR R & A 1,740 3,488
Deferred consideration EERE - 9,709
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A RIE IR 1,715 1,715
3,455 14,912
Net current assets REBEEFRE 64,578 466,934
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABAR 90,049 563,797
Net assets EEFE 90,049 563,797
Capital and reserve EXR#E
Share capital AR 6,924 6,915
Share premium iD= E 1,969,211 1,966,768
Contributed surplus E@AR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve MR ERERFE - =
Share option reserve MR 38,808 40,509
Accumulated losses 25 E1R (1,989,273)  (1,514,774)
Total equity R 90,049 563,797
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBRERNICEEER_T_TF=H

issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Liu Kequan
BmRRE
DIRECTOR
EF

“tmBEHEREENE AHRATAL

REEFREE:

Mr. Yang Dayong
BABRE
DIRECTOR
EF

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH
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R AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

48.RESERVES

(a) Share premium

48.fE 15
(a) R wsME

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value. The
application of the share premium accounts is governed
by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the New
Bye-Laws of the Company.

(b) Share option reserve

(c)

Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant
date fair value of the unexercised share options of the
Company.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued
by the Company. Items included in convertible notes
equity reserve will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(d) Translation reserve

(e)

Exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the foreign operations.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative net change
in the fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income. The
amounts will be reclassified to accumulated losses when
those financial assets are disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

48.RESERVES (Continued)

(f) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in the PRC these entities
are required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
net profits, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to
the statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing
a dividend. When the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years' losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares
currently held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of share capital.

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH
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e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

49.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 49.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

MEEPELEZABEAR

TRFANAEEREEHELZAEED
HB ERREMIFREEEYH -BELH
EXZAERASRECHARKERESRE
BRAKBGEERERERDIBRABER
BAERERENAR-

Convertible Lease
Borrowings notes liabilities Total
BE TERREE HEAE st

(Note 35) (Note 36) (Note 37)

(BF&E35) (BF&E36) (BF&E37)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR _ Fax  FEn FExn

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—A—H 159,093 5,654 - 164,747
Financing cash flows MEREME (65,280) - = (65,280)
Foreign exchange translation HNERE (5,587) = = (5,587)
Conversion i - (5,950) = (5,950)
Amortisation of discount on AR IR AL IR 2
convertible notes - 296 - 296
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\&F
+-A=+—H 88,226 - - 88,226
Adjustment upon application of RERBEMBRE
HKFRS 16 A B 55 1 65 B R - = 25,952 25,952
At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZE-—NF—H—AH
(L E5) 88,226 = 25,952 114,178
Financing cash flows BEBERE (8,512) = (13,359) (21,871)
Interest paid BERFE (5,599) - - (5,599)
Foreign exchange translation INERE (1,412) = (159) (1,571)
New lease entered HIVE bl - = 7,986 7,986
Interest expenses SR 5,599 = 1,405 7,004
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+-RA=+—H 78,302 = 21,825 100,127
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

50.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues or bank
borrowings. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the years.

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“ICO") which are subject to the relevant minimum
capital requirement; and (ii) three subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant
minimum paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.

Particularly for the financial guarantee operation, the Group
monitors regularly the residual balance of outstanding
guarantees for single customers and multiples of the total
outstanding guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group engaging in guarantee
business, so as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable
limit. The decision to manage the net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group to meet the needs of
developing guarantee business rests with the directors.

B RS R

AEEEREANE BAREAEEBE
@IS B BIER A AR S E R
{5 5 A 1 T - RS MR B B0 A
ST LI E R AR - AU LB A
£ SR BLRID B (T H R 19 9 R4 1
R E R 5 E R AR
SET PV SRR

REBBBFLAT N INRIE AR TE © ()
RIBFBRBR A THER (TRER QD BEH )
E%M—%W% A /AETHEREER
BE: LGB %&%f%%ﬁTxﬁE
AMM_%W% RIAETEEBS K
S(HEBHER) AR (IBHFEHE (K
BER)FAD THHBREZERARE&
RSB T - EEESARYERZ
fﬁ EME KT UBREEESLKH

(FER)HRB KRR 2 BFHESN T A
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e M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

50.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 50.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
other than described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year
ended date is as follows:

EARNERE R (@)

Bk EXCATatE SN AR E I EE b H A
SEINERHEINE AR E K E AR o

BE_T-NF+-_A=1T—HLFE"
AREBEHRBLEBEE - NEERIFEEN
BELREMER - ZHERDNIREEERE
FRARRRIHA ARG HEmE -

EEERSNFEANERABLLRNT

2019 2018

—E-nEF —T-)\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Total borrowings BEERR 78,302 88,226
Equity attributable to owners of RABHEE AEIL

the Company R 451,737 664,625

Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 17% 13%
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e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5.2/ T A

—E-AFFTZR=+T—HIEFE

(a) Categories of financial instruments () EMIT RS E
2019 —E-hEF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
NS |
b NS s § STAHAM
STABZEZ B AR 51 B B 2HE RSz
CREE CREE EREE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET FTET FET FET
Equity investments designated EBEREATEFALM
at FVTOC| PHWERERE - - 6,369 6,369
Contingent consideration MK ARE
receivables 39,136 - - 39,136
Unlisted investment funds FETEREES 30,260 - - 30,260
Loans and interest receivables JEUE R F B = 152,449 = 152,449
Trade and other receivables JFEE Uiz B 7R e L b W 3R = 24,895 = 24,895
Deposits e - 82,570 - 82,570
Cash held on behalf of clients 1%@??%@5’\]5%@ - 843 = 843
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIBITER - 54,056 = 54,056
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRS - 205,530 - 205,530
69,396 520,343 6,369 596,108
Financial liabilities ERMEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R
BRA SR
=R
HK$°000
TET
Trade and other payables JRE 1T B R % L At JE A< FR B 126,209
Borrowings BE 78,302
Lease liabilities HEBE 21,825
Deferred consideration EERE 5,853
232,189
RPESRIERERART | T —NLFFW
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

51.% 8 T B

&)

() EMITESE (&)

2018 —ET-)\F
Financial assets TEEE
Financial
Financial assets at Financial
assets at amortised assets at
FVTPL cost FVTOCI Total
BNFE
BAYE g e SAEHM
FTAEEZ B AT BR &Y 2HEWKZEZ
TRVEE TRVEE TREE BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBT FET FET FEx
Equity investments designated at 57 AR A FE A
FVTOCI PE WG RERE - - 15,872 15,872
Contingent consideration MK ARE
receivables 13,686 - - 13,686
Unlisted investment funds FLEMEEES 77,695 = = 77,695
Loans and interest receivables W EFRF B = 113,952 = 113,952
Trade and other receivables R M B X I Lt IO RRIR - 59,674 = 59,674
Deposits ®e - 66,641 = 66,641
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEENERE = 1,263 = 1,263
Restricted bank deposits ZRBIBITTR = 2,136 = 2,136
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRKEIES = 269,578 = 269,578
91,381 513,244 15,872 620,497
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
g X
B BR 9
TRAE
HK$'000
FAT
Trade and other payables JRE AT B R % LAt JE A< SR IE 77,902
Borrowings BE 88,226
Deferred considerations EERE 25,625
191,753
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and returns and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group's major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTOCI, unlisted investment funds, loans and
interest receivables, contingent consideration receivables,
trade and other receivables, deposits, cash held on behalf
of clients, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade payables, other payables, borrowings, lease
liabilities and deferred considerations. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

5. T A ()
(b) £ HEMEEEERRE

AEE 2 $HAES AR BEREK
EEBHRAN  FHE AERERT
RIZEME RS ARAS - FEEB

DEBEBHED  MIEERRBE
o R AT 2 5 R o B Ut AN L 5
H BT R R R IE 952 P 0 T
YREEEHAREYBRR LB
FREE:

AEEGERKREREBRRAZRNES
MEBRER RETEE R R RIE
Bl ARERRERYERFELR
LAW $$@EHH$MJEHKIA@B(
REEBFARBTISG R EmREL-

AEENFESRIABSTERAFEE
FFAEMmEANScEMEE FF L
MEEES BEREREFNE - fHﬁUZ
NARAE - B URBR 3k & L JE U 3k T
e REFHEZES %BE%'J%E/_
ER-RITEHR KRS - ERNERRH
fhEMZE -EE HEABERELER
B-ZEemIT ENFEREEMNT
FE-HZEeRm TAEEENRR B
FETI5 R B (f’ﬁgﬂ « ) R & B &Hx
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. 2T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMEEBEZREE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the lenders the repayment of
loans entered into by customers of the Group. The Group
has the obligation to compensate lenders for the losses
they would suffer if customers fail to repay.

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from financial guarantees issued. The Group
manages credit risk at every stage along the approval
process, including pre-transaction, in-transaction and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts due diligence and evaluates customers by
internal credit assessment system during the pre-approval
process. Financial guarantees issuance is subject to
approval of the management.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

When a certain number of customers undertake the
same business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the
Group mainly operates its financial guarantee businesses
in the PRC, there exists a certain level of geographical
concentration risk for its guarantee portfolios in that
it might be affected by changes in the PRC economic
conditions.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has a credit policy in place for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts on an ongoing
basis. The Group only extends credit to customers
based on careful evaluation of the customers’ financial
conditions and credit history. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. 2T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) eMEMEEEERBE (8)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments and current abilities to
pay and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as to the economic environment.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 21%
and 77% (2018: 35% from the largest customer and
71% from the five largest customers) of loans and
interest receivables from loan financing business was
due from the Group’'s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively as at 31 December
2019. The Group has concentration of credit risk to the
largest securities margin client’s exposure representing
74% (2018:73%) of total loans to margin clients as at
31 December 2019. The management is of the view that
the allowance made is adequate taking into account
the historical experience in the collection of loans and
interest receivables from these largest customers.

The credit risk on trade receivables from clearing houses
and brokers in securities brokerage and trade receivables
from product issuers in insurance brokerage service
are considered as insignificant taking into account the
good market reputations and high credit ratings of the
counterparties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The credit risk on cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market conditions.

The management is responsible in developing and
maintaining the processes for measuring ECL, the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on trade
receivables (except for secured margin loans); and general
approach to measure ECL on secured margin loans and
other financial assets classified at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk
since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2:
Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime
ECL - credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stages 1 and 2,
the management assesses loss allowances using the
risk parameter modelling approach that incorporates
key parameters, including PD, LGD and EAD. For
credit-impaired financial assets classified as Stage 3,
the management assesses the credit loss allowances by
estimating the future cash flows expected to arise from
the financial assets.

Financial guarantees carry similar credit risk to loans
and the Company takes a similar approach on risk
management.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. T A ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) TREAMEEEERBE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL according
to forward-looking information and used complex
models and assumptions in its expected measurement
of credit losses. These models and assumptions relate to
the future macroeconomic conditions and customer's
creditworthiness (for example, the likelihood of default
by customers and the corresponding losses). The
Group adopts judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to the
requirements of accounting standards such as:

(i) Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since initial recognition at each reporting
date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition
or not, our Group takes into account reasonable
and substantiated information that is accessible
without exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including
qualitative and quantitative analysis based on the
historical data of the Group, credit rating grade, and
forward-looking information. Based on the single
financial instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics of credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of default of financial
instruments on the reporting date with that on the
initial recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected lifetime of
financial instruments.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE-T—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk when
one or more of the following quantitative, qualitative
or backstop criteria have been met:

e Quantitative criteria: At the reporting date, the
increase in remaining lifetime probability of
default is considered significant comparing with
the one at initial recognition.

e Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse change in
debtor’s operation or financial status.

For loans to margin clients and loans receivables,
the number of days past due and loan-to-collateral
value were used to estimate significant increase in
credit risk. Other financial assets at amortised cost
use number of days past due as determinant of credit
risk.

Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

e Internal rating of the debtor indicating default or
near-default;

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
customer;

e The debtor leaves any of the receivables of the
Group overdue for more than 365 days;

e |t is becoming probable that the customer will
enter bankruptcy or other financial restructuring;

e The credit impairment on a financial asset may be
caused by the combined effect of multiple events
and may not be necessarily due to a single event.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. 2T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMEEBZREE (&)

(Continued)
1EERE R R EF G (&)
ATETEEBEEEE (8)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

(i) Parameters of ECL measurement

(i) FFEEMEEBHENZHK

According to whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk and whether there is an impairment of
assets, the Group measures the impairment loss for
different assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire
lifetime respectively. The key measuring parameters of
ECL include probability of default (“PD"), loss given
default (“"LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD"). The
Group takes into account the quantitative analysis
of historical statistics (such as internal rating grade,
manners of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in
order to establish the model of PD, LGD and EAD.

e PD refers to the possibility that the debtor will
not be able to fulfil its obligations of repayment
over the next 12 months or throughout the entire
remaining lifetime. For loans to margin clients
and loans receivable, the Group estimates PD
by the internal credit ratings. For other financial
assets at amortised cost the PD is adjusted based
on the credit rating of comparable companies
operating in similar businesses.

e LGD refers to the Group's expectation of the
extent of the loss resulting from the default
exposure. Depending on the type of counterparty,
the method and priority of the recourse,
past default experience and the realisation
of collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is the
percentage of loss of risk exposure at the time of
default, calculated over the next 12 months or
over the entire remaining lifetime;

e EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed at the time of the default in the next
12 months or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

216 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

BEEERRESEEBELL N
Uk EEEEREEERE A5E
HARMEED FIA12E A2
R EERBEREEE B
HEESENBERITELHBE
BEABE(TZ2HBME]) ELNE
BE([BYBBEX])MENRR
A (TEYRBRKO]) - ANEE
EZREFESHRTEE (MAILFER -
BERAAREBERRER BRAR
LVYNTEESTARATEEER
BUBAOME BHBBEREY
[ B ik 1 RE A o

o EAMEREREBEMHAERNRKI2
BAXERERGFEDR &
EBITHENEBAO A BT
WREEEPERKERER
mE  NEBARNEEENR
5T AOBE K o Bt B A 12 38 5
KA ENEREEMS &
MR BB EEBURE
B A B LR A R E ERFARIE
i 5B T EEE o

s EBABEBERREAKEHED
2 Bz i O S B EY S 1R AR E AR
B - IREBR S FrOEE
EBROATANBER BEE
WRBLREBEEADERN A
Rl ZHOEBEBERBERTR-
BABBRXRSENRERER
MAMEHREBRNA DL A
ARH1218 A R B ER er 178
HIRERETE

o EARMRE O EHEERKI2E
ASEEBRRGFENA &
BOBLERASERKEND

TH-



51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

5.2/ T A

mE M BRRME

—E-AFFTZR=+T—HIEFE

(&)
(b) ERERE

BEEEREKE (8)

=B R A E G (4)
AEFAMEEEE (B)

(iv) Forward-looking information

The assessment of a significant increase in credit risk
and the calculation of ECL both involve forward-
looking information. Through the analysis of
historical data, the Group identifies the key economic
indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL.

Credit risk exposure

=& &
Cl/\

I:l/\

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on accounts receivables individually or based on
provision matrix.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

7 Uk BR 3K

(iv) RTBE L& #

A E IR INE R MR

ERERNNE PR AR
o 7 o B 5 3B 0 17 1 52 B 5

i AR AR
il

92 ik

e N FREE

AEBZENEWERENERESS
BRANREREEEE

TTREREAS ©

AEEEREFEZABEERRERE

comprises the following categories: AT 4R R -
Internal credit Basis of recognition of
rating Description ECL provision
BRAMEEBERE
REEEPR MR zE%
Grade A The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL — not
any past-due amounts credit-impaired
A#R REYVFHEHNRABREATETMEHER S HTEEEEE -
NMEERE
Grade B Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settles in  Lifetime ECL — not
full credit-impaired
B 4% EBABINEBRRHRER EBETEEE SHEREEEE -
AMsERE
Grade C There has been significant increase in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL — not
recognition through information developed internally or credit-impaired
external resources
C#& FRNTRERHEISINIBRRER BVITHERREER R 2HPEDREEHE—
B A& T AMeERE
Grade D There is evidence indicating the debtor is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
D#& BETREBACEERBEZER HRBEEEE -
EEERE
Grade E There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
E#R BERBEBRREBABARENE M &EE B & KB © FE M 8

B M B S
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers in
relation to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix
within lifetime ECL. Debtors with significant outstanding
balances or credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of HK$3,425,000 as at 31 December 2019 were assessed

(b) TREAMEEEERBE (&)

=B /mE R E G (4)
SERRMO (&)
PR BR TR (48 )

EEAEBEZERKBRERZ — 3
AEEREELBEREACEFERNR
HEETR - TERERZHPEHREE
&5 18 &0 (B (AR 15 7 8 B P T 1 2 B IR
BRRZEERBMO B - KEE
EHEEEAREEEHRILBEEE
BEZEKBER(R_ZE—NLF+=
A=+—HZ#KHEA3,425,000/%

individually. 7T EFTE BT -
2019
—E-hF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEER REREE EBEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTET
Grade A A#R 0.0 118 -
Grade B B4k 0.1 3,707 4
Grade C C#k 13.1 21,284 2,784
Grade D D& 100.0 3,425 3,425
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.2 T A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EREREEEEREEK (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 B /a b R Ja (E s (8)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) SERBHA (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEUBR X (&)
2018
—E-N\F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RSB X RERTHE E RS
% HK$'000 HK$'000

TAETT THETT

Grade A AR 0.0 370 -
Grade B B A% 0.1 14,777 15
Grade C C# 7.7 25,928 1,992
Grade D D A% 100.0 - -
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical e BEEXDRBEETHREEZE
observed default rates over the expected life of the A0 2= 1% E W AR 3K 2 TE 5T F BA & R I Bt
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information BAEL RS 2 KA ES BRI Rl BUG
that is available without undue cost or effort. The ZHABEMEMELAR - DBRBER
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure [E 7€ B 25 B LA W AR B 8 5 78 B WL AR R
relevant information about specific debtors is updated. ZAEAERS R E R -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group BHE-_ZT-—hLF+HA=+T—A801E
provided HK$4,241,000 (2018: HK$2,007,000) FE AN K E R R B E 5 gt e R
impairment loss for trade receivable, based on the KET 184,241,000 T (ZE— N &F:
provision matrix. Impairment loss of HK$3,424,000 (2018: 2,007,000/ 70 ) Z R E BB o (A A
HK$Nil) was made on debtors with significant balances FERGEH 2 EREREEREER
and credit-impaired debtors. 182 JE W BR 3k 1 Rk (B B5 183,424,000

BL(ZE—NF:THET) -
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5188 T B (5)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMEEBZREE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1E B RgEF S (8)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) SERBHA (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) FEUBR R (48)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL T FR YRR B 51k 77 0K Bt 1 U AR K T
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the RZEHBEREEEBE2EF-

simplified approach.

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(non-credit (credit
Impaired) impaired) Total

EHEH EHEM
FEER FEBR
(REE (BfFE
HAE) i 1E) #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATT T TETT

As at 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—-\F—H—H 405 - 405
Changes due to financial R-ZZE—-N\F—H—H

instruments recognised mRAzemIE

as at 1 January 2018: B

— Impairment losses, —HRAEEE

net of reveral recognised HERE D 2,007 - 2,007

— Write-off — H 8 (384) S (384)
Exchange realignment e 5, 53 2 1) S (21)
As at 31 December 2018 and R-ZZE—)\F

1 January 2019 +TZA=+—HBk

—E-NF—H—H 2,007 - 2,007

Changes due to financial R—ZE—-—NF—H—H

instruments recognised mRAzemIE

as at 1 January 2019: Fir g &

— Transfer to credit-impaired —ERZEERE (2) 2 -

— Impairment losses, —HERAEEE

net of reveral recognised HBR# 817 3,424 4,241
Exchange realignment e 5, 53 2 (34) (1) (35)
As at 31 December 2019 R_ZE—-NF
+TZA=+—H 2,788 3,425 6,213
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on loans and interest receivables individually.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

5.2 T A ()
(b) ERHEBREBEERBEE (&)

1= B /m R R p EFF G (4)
SERRMO (&)
UL E SR F 8

74 S [ 15 T8 0D £ 5 5 9B 1L 0 4
B8 B TR BT -

AEEEMFEHABEEARDE
AT AR

Internal credit

Basis of recognition of

rating Description ECL provision
BRAHCESRERE

A ERE B R it ZEE

Stage 1 There has not been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not

FE1REER

initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon
origination.

B HERENE SRR W EEAEIE BN ELERITEE
SRERENR -

Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.

F2MEER BYIZERENEERREREEL I - EWEEERENBR -

Stage 3 There have been one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cashflows of that asset
have occurred.

F3E R ERLSHZEEMARKESREBEN TN EN—IA
HEBEEM-

Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery.

FARBER Bl BEBRREBEABABRENMFEE mMAEE BRI

[B] R IH B0 RS

RAESBMERABRIF | T NFFH

credit-impaired

T HIEEEEEE K
= ERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

ZHIEHEEEE K
= ERE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

2HEHEEEE-B
SERE

Amount is written off

& BN
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. 2T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMEEBZREE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort as well as the fair value of the
collateral pledged by the customers to the loans and
interest receivables.

Based on assessment by the directors of the Company,
the loss given default is low in view of the estimated
realised amount of ultimate disposal of the collaterals for
secured loans and interest receivables and the directors
of the Company considers the ECL for loans and interest
receivables is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
provided impairment loss of HK$14,100,000 (2018:
HK$5,273,000) for loans and interest receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ-T—hF+_A=+—HILFE
51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5.9/ T A (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cRAKRETEEEREE (£)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERR R B EFE (8)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EERREHO (&)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) EWERRFE (&)
The following table shows the exposure of ECL for loans TRINTRE -—RAEREBUER KR
and interest receivables under the general approach: MEZRBEESEMO :
2019
—EB-NEF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIRER F2M R 3R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TET THER
Loans and interest EWEZRFIE
receivables 2,036 152,393 17,302 171,731
Less: Impairment allowance R B R (10) (1,970) (17,302) (19,282)
Loans and interest EWEFRRFE
receivables, net of MBI ERE
impairment allowance 2,026 150,423 - 152,449
2018
—E-N\F
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1EE F2REE 3 E Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Loans and interest receivables  FEU4 & 2 K Fl & 48,990 70,235 - 119,225
Less: Impairment allowance R E R (38) (5,235) - (5,273)
Loans and interest receivables, fEWEZ L FIS -
net of impairment allowance  ¥1BR R E B 5 48,952 65,000 = 113,952
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. T A ()
(b) cRHEABREEEERRE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12 months expected losses method.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and deposits,
an impairment loss of HK$43,000 (2018: HK$243,000)
was recognised in the profit or loss.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost include bank
balances, restricted bank deposit and cash held on
behalf of clients. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for expected losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of other financial assets and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group assessed
that the expected credit loss rate is immaterial under
12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost was
recognised.

Financial guarantee issued

At 31 December 2019, the total maximum amount of
financial guarantee issued was HK$979,568,000 (2018:
HK$560,434,000). After considering the deposits received
from guarantee customers of amount HK$98,426,000
(2018: HK$36,540,000), the maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of the financial guarantees issued
and outstanding amounted to HK$881,142,000 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: HK$523,944,000).
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5. T A ()

51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(i

Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most of its monetary assets
and monetary liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the individual group entity.
The management is of the opinion that the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.
Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk sensitivity
analysis is presented. The significant balance carried
in the translation reserve account is occasioned by
the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group at
each reporting date.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to borrowings, lease liabilities and loans
receivables. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to receivables from
variable-rate cash and margin clients, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 51. 2T A (&)

(b) TREAMEEEERBE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) R (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) A =@ (48)
Sensitivity analysis BRE D

(ii)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
that the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis points (2018: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible changes in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2018:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the net effect of Group's
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
would decrease/increase by HK$2,453,000 (2018:
HK$2,326,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities which are
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI. The fair value
of these financial instruments will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the closing market prices of the relevant
listed equity securities. The Group's listed investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and in PRC. Listed investments held in the portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations. The management
manages this risk exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risk and return profiles
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/
lower, and held other variables constant, the other
component of equity of the Group would increase/
decrease by HK$637,000 (2018: HK$1,587,000), as
a result of changes in the fair value of listed equity
securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by
assuming that the price change had occurred at the
reporting date and has been applied to the Group's
investments at that date. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent price risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, and
to ensure compliance with SF(FR)R. In the management
of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents and credit facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitors the current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient
working capital are maintained and adequate committed
lines of funding from reputable financial institutions meet
its liquidity requirement.
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51.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

—NE+T-A=+—HIFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Liguidity table
As at 31 December 2019

5. T A ()

(b) TREAMEEEERBE (&)
mBETERE (B)

TRERHE A HOIHAEOR &
HRSASENITEESRMABER
REEI AR ETON TREE
MEBERBORFTRBASRE

HEEEX
R=F—-AF+=-A=+—~H

Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 13 3 months than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2019
RZB-h%
T=A
MEFH KERE Er=1
ERA%E  SR-ER -E=8R =@RE-%£ -ENE REAE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Non-derivative financial FTELREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables AR REMER T - 40,526 1,286 84,397 - 126,209 126,209
Borrowings - fixed rate 1“ T8 6.37% 416 831 14,749 79,318 95,314 78,302
Lease Liabilities ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ 6.37% 1,291 2,582 11,646 7,616 23,135 21,825
Deferred consideration ERRE
- non-interest bearing *T\ﬁ% = - - 5,853 = 5,853 5,853
42,233 4,699 116,645 86,934 250,511 232,189
Guarantees issued EELMER
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ REERBE - 162,438 90,453 572,348 154,329 979,568 979,568
As at 31 December 2018 RZZFE—-—N\FE+HA=+—H
Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 1-3 3 months than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31122018
RZZE-N\F
METH FBERE TZA=T-A
ERAx SR—EA —2=ff ZfRZ-% —EN)E mERE pd il |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TFiEn TFiEn FiEn TFiEn T
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3W$éﬁﬂﬁ
Trade and other payables ERERREENTE S 20,692 48,253 8,957 S 77,902 77,902
Borrowings - fixed rate 11“& EE E 6.37% 468 937 12,662 104,344 118,411 88,226
Deferred consideration BERE
- non-interest bearing -8 - - - 20,450 5,175 25,625 25,625
21,160 49,190 42,069 109,519 221,938 191,753
Guarantees issued BELMER
Maximum amount guaranteed ERERBE = 51,253 139,871 369,310 - 560,434 560,434
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52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 52 AN FEFT=E
(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at (i) AREMHEERATEFENESHE
fair value on a recurring basis ENRAFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair AEEBHPEMEER S MEHARIE
value at the end of each reporting period. The following AVEFE - TREHRUNAEETZSE
table gives information about how the fair values of TREEZATFENER(LHEER
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the AefEERN R ASE) -
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 RZZB-NAF+-A=+—-HWHWA¥F
BEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-8 %=1 PE 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHT FTHT FHT FHT
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEMEEKZE 2
other comprehensive income: SREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — EmRAES (Hita) 6,369 - - 6,369
Financial assets at fair value through R AFETABZEZ
profit or loss: SREE:
— Contingent consideration receivables — &R AR E (HiisEh)
(note b) - - 39,136 39,136
~ Unlisted investment fund (note c) —FLETREES (Mo - 28,664 1,596 30,260
Total FeBy 6,369 28,664 40,732 75,765
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—HHAF
BEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 B FE=H e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAEME2E K2
other comprehensive income: CREE:
— Listed equity securities (note a) — FIRAES (Kzta) 15,872 = = 15,872
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTABZZ
profit or loss: TREE:
— Contingent consideration receivables — U= AR E (HisEb)
(note b) - - 13,686 13,686
- Unlisted investment fund (note ¢) —FEmREES (MFo) - 37,552 40,143 77,695
Total Bt 15,872 37,552 53,829 107,253
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52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. 3 FEETE (&)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as the available-for-sale financial
assets at FVTOCI, for Level 1 fair value measurement are
quoted bid prices in an active market.

(b) The fair values of the contingent consideration receivables
are based on the valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which
are reviewed by and approved by the directors of the
Company.

As the Guaranteed Profits relating to the acquisition of
Access China Group and Sino Wealth Group covers a
period of more than one year, there are more interactions
to be assessed for the results. Monte Carlo simulation
is therefore adopted as the simulation that produces
distribution of possible outcome values. By assuming
probability distributions, variables can have different
probabilities of different outcomes occurring. Probability
distributions are a much more realistic way of describing
uncertainty in variables of the result.

A decrease in the probability of fulfillment of Guaranteed
Profits would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of contingent consideration receivables and
a decrease in discount rate would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of contingent consideration
receivables, and vice versa.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the contingent consideration receivables are based
on the management’s best estimates. The value of the
contingent consideration receivables varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The key inputs used of contingent consideration receivables
in relation to the acquisition of the Access China Group for
the Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant unobservable inputs 2018
Volatility N/A
Discount rate 21.34%
Time to settlement date (in year) 0.19

The key inputs of contingent consideration receivable in
relation to the acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group for
the Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant
unobservable inputs 2019 2018
Volatility 46.08% 43.52%
Discount rate 17.42% 20.55%-20.60%
Time to settlement

date (in year) 0.18 0.18-1.18

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in
the profit forecast, it is not practicable to provide any
meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions
concerning future profitability of the acquired business
and the potential impact on the fair value changes on
contingent consideration receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

(d) The fair value of an unlisted investment fund of
HK$28,664,000 (2018: HK$37,552,000) is determined
based on the net asset value with reference to the prices
of the underlying investment portfolio quoted by the fund
administrator.

The fair value of an unlisted investment fund of
HK$1,596,000 (2018: HK$40,143,000) is based on the
valuation performed by an independent professional valuer,
using a Discounted Cash Flow method, which are reviewed
and approved by the directors of the Company.

5. N EEETE (#)

() UEEMHEERATVEFENEHME
ENATE(E)
PisE: (%)
(O PRB|EPR RE=RATEFEM

= A B U088 Access China &= B 9 JE 1L
SANREAZZEHAZIHENT

FTERTHE
LIPN ¢ —E-N\F
18 TEH
R 21.34%
B B 8 1) BRI

(&%) 0.19

RBEHR RE=RAFEFEM
= A U Sino Wealth £ [E &9 fE I 5k
RRBIABATEHAEENT

FERAEE

WARE —E-NF ZE-N\F

K & 46.08% 43.52%

R =X 17.42%  20.55%-
20.60%

BN BH e 0.18 0.18-1.18

K ()

HRBRNEFEANEEEREE T
Rl - M AKAIERRERARILERE
WRE RS 2 RIRBFIRE D R UL A
REAFEEHCBEZENEAR
RMELEMAESENBRE DN -

(d) JEEMEEES KA F{E28,664,000
AL (=ZZ— \£:37,552,000% 7T)
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52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. 3 FEETE (&)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(d) (Continued)

An increase in discount rate would result in a decrease in
fair value measurement of the unlisted investment fund,
and vice versa.

The significant unobservable input in relation to the
privately offered fund in PRC for the level 3 fair value

() AEEMEERNTES
ENATE(E)
MiE: (&)
(d) (&)

FREEFAFBBELETREESH
NFHEAERRRD  R2TA-

MRBEPRR RE=RAFEFEM
FEETELEESNEATAER

measurement at the end of reporting period is discount BABE AR E13.16% (=T — N\
rate at 13.16% (2018: 14.67%). F:14.67%) °
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i) E=R L2 FEHFEZHE
Financial assets through
profit or loss:
ERERVEZ
SREE:
- Unlisted
investment - Contingent
funds  considerations Total
-%LEW
REES -RANE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FAEL T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—\FE—H—H = 9,879 9,879
Addition NE 35,607 - 35,607
Change in fair value recognised in profit or ~ F NP EZFFERH
loss during the year NTEES 6,247 3,807 10,054
Exchange realignment PE 5 F R (1,711) = (1,711)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=T—N\F+=ZA=+—H
EZZ-N&—HA—H 40,143 13,686 53,829
Disposal HE (38,092) - (38,092)
Compensation entitled EEZERHE - (9,152) (9,152)
Change in fair value recognised in profitor  FRREEERNATFEZE
loss during the year (304) 34,602 34,298
Exchange realignment [T (151) = (151)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-AF+ZA=1—H 1,596 39,136 40,732
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52.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are not material different from
their fair value as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

53.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

54.GUARANTEE ISSUED

At 31 December 2019, the total maximum amount
of financial guarantees issued was RMB875,709,000
(approximately HK$979,568,000) (2018: RMB492,300,000
(approximately HK$560,434,000)). The total maximum
amount of financial guarantees issued represents the
maximum potential loss amount that would be recognised if
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted.

55.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent assets or liabilities as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 other than those described
in Notes 54.

5. N EEETE (#)

(i) EH U AT EFIENSREER A E
ZATME

ARAEERB KREEXNAINEZ
cRHEENcHBENFRAEBEHREE
RZE-—NEFERZE-NF+=H
=t+—HNAFELTEERER-

53. 8 AN IE

R_E—NhER_E—N\FE+_A=+—
B K&EB KA R ETMEKE KK

= o

=

54.8 % AR

RZEBE—-AhFE+_A=+—8 B &L
&=l & EIR B A A R 875,709,000
7C (49979,568,0008 ) (—ZF— )\ F:
A R #492,300,0007T ( 4560,434,000/8
T0) ) BB BMEERESLBAMWMEF
T EEABAOSTHRRNZANELEERS
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56.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

()

(if)

Major acquisition

On 16 November 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company (“Purchaser”) entered into the
acquisition agreement in relation to the acquisition of
Xin Yunlian Investment Limited (“Target Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Target Group”) under which the
vendor conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Target Company and the sale loan, being
all such sum of money due and owing by the Target
Company to the vendor as at completion date, all free
and clear of any encumbrances, at the consideration,
which will be settled by the Company by way of
issuance of the convertible notes. The Target Company
is principally engaged in financial services, advertising
business and e-commence business in respect of
non-cigarette products. The Company, the Purchaser
and the consultant also conditionally entered into the
consultancy agreement, pursuant to which 100,000,000
shares will be issued under general mandate to settle the
consultancy fee in relation to the consultancy services
provided by the consultant to the Group in relation to
the acquisition. Please refer to the announcement for the
details of the acquisition agreement and the consultancy
agreement dated 16 November 2019.

As at the date of issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the acquisition is not yet completed.

Impact of Novel Coronavirus Outbreak to the Group

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") has impact on the global business
environment. Up to the date of these financial results,
COVID-19 has not resulted in material impact to the
Group. Pending on the development and spread of
COVID-19 subsequent to the date of these financial
results, further changes in economic conditions for the
Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial
results of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of these financial results. The
Group will keep continuous attention on the situation
of the COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
gz HZ BZE HE HZE
ZE-NE “E-N\F “T-tF I NS “2-1F
+=A=+-B +=ZA=+-B +ZA=+-A +zZA=+-H +=ZA=+-H
LEE IEFE 835 [IR:353 ILERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET TET TET TAET
RESULTS R&
Revenue WA 151,005 152,595 130,652 75,175 115,956
Cost of sales SHERA (62,402) (56,703) (62,969) (35,636) -
Gross profit £ 88,603 95,892 67,683 39,539 115,956
Other income, gains and HipA  Wm Rk
losses B# (39,028) (18,215) 89,103 (218,969) 121,549
Administrative and other TREREMEERR
operating expenses (141,642) (115,836) (99,797) (82,187) (83,304)
Finance costs BIBAAR (8.232) (11,560) (16,340) (15,200) (29,398)
Share of (loss) profit of E{EHE DA
associates (B8) a7 - - - (98,410) 9,324
Impairment loss on goodwill EEZREBE (111,257) (7,143) (14,650) = =
Impairment loss on intangible & & E 2 i EEE
asset (5,722) - - - -
Impairment loss on interests ~ FABE & A\ Al 2
in associates REEE - - - (267,410) -
Net loss on de-consolidation ~ EX /ﬁﬁﬁA)\/ﬂEW%
of subsidiaries YNG4 i3=b - - = (324,478) -
(Loss) profit before tax A (EB)EF (217,278) (56,862) 25,999 (967,115) 134,127
Income tax credit (expenses) ~ FiEH KR (F%) 10,883 (1,741) 43 (3,435) (17,997)
(Loss) profit for the year EN(F8) &R (206,395) (58,603) 26,042 (970,550) 116,130
Attributable to: ATALER:
Owners of the Company KAREEA (206,395) (58,603) 26,020 (970,550) 116,130
Non-controlling interests FERER - - 2 - -
(206,395) (58,603) 26,042 (970,550) 116,130
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
ZB-nF —E-N\F i S 2 —E-RF “E-RF
tZA=+-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-B tZA=+-H +ZA=t+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FEL FEL FAT FEL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ SEHEE
Total assets BEE 786,027 910,656 1,065,243 706,346 1,670,266
Total liabilities BEE (334,290) (246,031) (350,414) (284,343) (508,521)
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - (776) -
Equity attributable to RATERA
owners of the Company bR 451,737 664,625 714,829 421,227 1,161,745
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